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Message from the
President

On behalf of the Board of Directors and the Senior
Management Team of Gateway Rural Bank Incorporated,
I am pleased to present our Annual Report for the year
2024,

This past year once again proved our Bank’s dedication
to serving our communities and adding real value where
it matters most. We faced new economic challenges and
changing market conditions, yet we stayed true to our
goals, strengthened our operations, and focused on
keeping the Bank stable and growing for the long term.

The year 2024 showed us that with teamwork, clear
priorities, and the trust of our clients and partners, we
can continue to expand our reach and help more
families, farmers, and small business owners in the countryside gain access to financial
services. More than just numbers, our work this year was about building stronger ties
with our communities and laying down a solid foundation for the years ahead.

In fulfilling our mission as a trusted development partner in the rural banking sector,
we continued to widen access to financial services for individuals, families, and micro-
entrepreneurs in Bulacan and neighboring areas. This commitment is anchored on our
belief that financial inclusion is not merely a corporate responsibility but an imperative
for social and economic progress in the countryside.

Throughout the year, we reinforced our operational capabilities by refining our internal
systems, streamlining processes for better efficiency, and embedding stronger risk
management practices across all levels of our operations. We invested in capacity-
building initiatives to equip our teams with the competencies needed to navigate an
evolving banking landscape, while ensuring that our governance structures remained
sound and responsive to the changing regulatory environment.

As of December 31, 2024, the Bank recorded total assets of P1,098,455,629, total
liabilities of £907,243,000, and shareholder equity of P191,212,629. Despite various
market challenges and industry-wide adjustments, we successfully posted a net income



of P6,868,723, underscoring the strength of our financial position and the prudence of
our management.

Behind these numbers are the efforts of our dedicated officers and staff, who
continuously demonstrate professionalism and commitment in delivering reliable
banking services. I would like to express my profound appreciation to every member
of our Gatebank family whose dedication fuels our operations daily. I likewise extend
my sincere gratitude to our Board of Directors, whose collective wisdom and principled
leadership have guided the Bank through prudent decisions and timely interventions.

To our valued clients, stockholders, and community partners, thank you for your
enduring trust and loyalty. Your continued confidence in Gateway Rural Bank
Incorporated inspires us to innovate, to listen more intently, and to serve with greater
purpose.

Looking ahead, we recognize that sustaining growth and relevance requires
adaptability and a clear vision. We shall remain proactive in harnessing opportunities
for digitalization, expanding our reach to underserved areas, and designing financial
products that truly address the needs of our rural communities. Equally, we shall
maintain robust governance and compliance practices that uphold the integrity of our
institution.

As we build on the milestones of 2024, we reaffirm our commitment to drive positive
change, foster economic resilience in the countryside, and uphold our role as a catalyst
for inclusive development. We remain focused on delivering products and services that
truly meet the needs of our clients while strengthening our capacity to adapt to the
future.

We are determined to keep improving, to embrace digital innovations where they make
sense for our communities, and to maintain the trust that has kept us strong for
decades. Ensuring that Gateway Rural Bank Incorporated remains a reliable partner for
generations to come is at the heart of everything we do. With your continued support,
we are confident that Gateway Rural Bank Incorporated will not only endure but
flourish, creating ripples of progress for many more years to come.

Thank you for standing with us. We look forward to continuing this journey together.

MERCEDES S. COLOMA
President



Corporate Profile

Gateway Rural Bank Incorporated, more commonly known as Gatebank, is a trusted and well-
established financial institution serving the province of Bulacan and neighboring communities
for over 27 years. Founded on May 27, 1997, the Bank opened its inaugural unit in Balagtas,
Bulacan, strategically located beside the public market along McArthur Highway. From the
outset, Gatebank positioned itself as a grassroots banking partner, focused on delivering
accessible financial services to rural clients and underserved sectors.

The Bank’s first wave of expansion began in 1998 with the establishment of its Bustos branch,
followed by a Pandi branch in 1999, both targeting support for smallholder farmers, micro-
entrepreneurs, and community-based industries. By 2009, Gatebank had broadened its
geographic footprint across the province with the opening of branches in Pulilan, San Jose del
Monte, Malolos, San Ildefonso, San Rafael, and Norzagaray. The Plaridel branch, opened in
2013, marked the Bank’s tenth banking unit, reinforcing its presence as a leading rural financial
provider in Central Luzon.

Despite challenges in the rural banking industry—including tightening regulations, digital
disruption, and macroeconomic volatility—Gatebank has maintained strong operational and
financial performance. This resilience is underpinned by prudent risk management, customer-
focused service, and values-based leadership.

At the helm of this continued success is President Mercedes S. Coloma, a prominent figure in
the rural banking industry and a passionate advocate of financial inclusion. Her exceptional
leadership was recognized by the Rural Bankers Association of the Philippines (RBAP) when
she was named one of only two awardees of the prestigious Rural Banker of the Year Award,
a distinction honoring excellence, integrity, and impact in the rural banking industry.

Today, Gatebank is proud to be recognized as the largest rural bank in Bulacan, a position
earned through unwavering commitment to community banking and strategic growth. The
Bank continues to support national goals for countryside development by offering relevant
financial products, and inclusive credit facilities. In line with its mission, Gatebank ensures that
its operations reflect the values of service, sustainability, and shared prosperity.

As Gatebank looks ahead, it remains focused on innovation, risk-aligned expansion, and
deepening stakeholder engagement—-all in pursuit of empowering rural communities and
advancing inclusive economic growth.



Our Vision

» To maintain our position as the biggest and the most progressive rural banking
institution in Bulacan, and to become one of the top rural banks in Central Luzon
within the next five years.

» To be a significant instrument in poverty alleviation and the improvement of the
economic status of its clients, including the entrepreneurial poor

Our Misst
A. Poverty Alleviation and Social Development

e To provide the entrepreneurial poor with continued access to microfinance and social development
services in order to enable them to pursue viable livelihood projects, which shall improve their quality
of life.

B. Institutional Relationships

e To establish good business relationships with our accredited financial institutions as sources of funds.
e To continue upholding the highest standard of stewardship for bank’s stakeholders.

C. Product Development and Service Improvement

e To create new and innovative banking products and services that meet our clients' needs.

o To utilize a completely computerized banking system which shall significantly increase the efficiency
of the bank in providing its products and services.

e To maintain the culture of providing fast, personalized, friendly, and excellent customer service to
clients, which is the competitive edge of the bank.

D. Human Resource Development

e Toensure a work atmosphere of mutual respect and teamwork between each and every employee of
the bank.

e To work towards a shared vision between management and staff.

e To provide continuous training and staff development program for officers and employees through
seminars/webinars and workshops.

E. Growth

e To put up additional branches in the different towns of Bulacan and other towns and municipalities.
e To increase client outreach in the municipalities where the branches are located and in the
neighboring municipalities.

F. Corporate Social Responsibility

o To actively contribute to the betterment of the communities in which we operate by prioritizing the
well-being and development of our employees and other stakeholders. Through our unwavering
support and commitment, we strive to make a positive and lasting impact on the lives of individuals
and the overall welfare of the communities we serve.



Bank s Business Model and Brand

Gatebank is engaged in core banking activities, primarily focused on lending and deposit-
taking operations. The Bank maintains a strong commitment to financing micro, small, and
medium enterprises (MSMEs), as well as farmers and small entrepreneurs.

In addition to offering demand deposit products, one of the Bank’s branches is authorized to

accept government deposits from the local municipality where it operates. The Bank also

solicits deposits outside its premises in

‘EW accordance with regulatory guidelines and

operates a Foreign Currency Deposit Unit

(FCDU) to serve clients with foreign
exchange requirements.

Customer deposits remain the Bank's

primary funding source, comprising

/ \OW 73.02% of total resources, supplemented
by borrowings at 3.42% and capital at

Serpices 17.41%. On the asset side, lending

continues to be the principal revenue-
generating activity, with loans accounting for 50.80% of total resources.

Deposi

In terms of income composition, interest income from loans contributes 71.92% of the Bank's
total operating income. The remaining 28.08% is derived from other income sources, including
service fees and various banking services.

Gatebank extends credit to both corporate and individual clients, and provides a full range of
banking and financial services. Its Head Office is located along Mac Arthur Highway in Borol
1%, Balagtas, Bulacan, supported by 10 strategically located branches throughout key
municipalities in the province.

With a continued commitment to innovation and community service, Gatebank regularly
reviews and enhances its services to meet evolving customer needs, contributing to the
sustained growth and development of Bulacan and its people.

“Mahigit dalawang deRadang subok na matatag
Dito, siguradony pinahahalagahan ka.”



Financial Highlights

1,400,000,000
1,200,000,000
1,000,000,000

800,000,000

Amount

600,000,000
400,000,000

200,000,000

Financial Growth CY 2020 to CY 2024

CY 2020

CY 2021

CY 2022

CY 2023

CY 2024

M Total Asset

1,040,360,068

1,146,407,439

1,137,177,769

1,123,259,832

1,098,455,629

H Loan Portfolio

675,836,876

696,679,593

620,511,931

604,810,339

557,989,901

W Deposit Liabilities

760,276,866

819,261,296

834,211,146

807,014,270

802,053,303

o Networth

115,060,903

138,044,225

148,897,751

189,553,860

191,212,629

& Net Income

14,054,147

23,667,273

15,580,900

31,088,777

6,868,723

Gatebank maintained a strong and stable financial position throughout the past five years.
Total assets consistently stayed above 1 billion, starting at ®1.04 billion in 2020, reaching
PL.14 billion in 2022, and closing at ®1.10 billion by end-2024. This demonstrates prudent
resource management and the Bank’s ability to adapt to changing market conditions while
supporting growth.

The Bank’s loan portfolio has remained prudently managed and consistently aligned with its
conservative credit standards, reflecting a deliberate balance between growth and asset
quality preservation. In 2020, gross loans stood at #75.84 million, providing financing support
to qualified borrowers amid a challenging economic environment. This portfolio increased
moderately to #96.68 million in 2021, driven by improved borrower confidence and the Bank's
focused efforts to support creditworthy clients while maintaining strict credit evaluation
processes.

In the succeeding years, the Bank adopted a more cautious and calibrated approach to lending
in view of changing market conditions, evolving borrower needs, and the prevailing regulatory
landscape. As a result, the gross loan portfolio gradually declined to #20.51 million in 2022
and further decreased to #04.81 million in 2023. This controlled reduction reflected
management’s proactive measures to minimize credit risk exposure, prioritize collection
efficiency, and preserve the overall health of the bank’s loan portfolio.

By 2024, gross loans stood at #557.99 million underscoring the Bank's continued discipline in
extending credit only to thoroughly vetted and creditworthy clients. Throughout this period,
the Bank maintained rigorous underwriting standards, frequent portfolio reviews, and
enhanced monitoring of borrowers’ repayment capacities. These measures ensured that the
loan portfolio remained sound and responsive to both internal performance goals and
prevailing economic conditions, reinforcing the Bank's commitment to sustainable growth and
prudent risk management.




Deposits maintained an overall positive trend over the period. From #7/60.28 million in 2020,
deposits grew to P834.21 million in 2022 and stood at 802.53 million in 2024. The slight
movement in 2024 is attributed mainly to the normal use of funds by some clients for
investment and property-related needs. Overall, depositor confidence remained steady,
supported by continued relationship management and deposit generation initiatives.
Gatebank’s net worth demonstrated steady growth over the period, increasing from £115.06
million in 2020 to P191.21 million in 2024. This reflects sustained profitability, prudent capital
retention, and adherence to regulatory capital requirements.

Profitability showed variability over the review period. Net income increased from P14.05
million in 2020 to P23.67 million in 2021, declined in 2022, then reached a peak of £31.09
million in 2023, before dropping to 6.87 million in 2024. The significant decline in 2024 was
primarily due to increased loan loss provisioning and the rescission of a booked Sales Contract
Receivable, which resulted in the reversal of previously recognized income from the sale of
Real and Other Properties Acquired (ROPA).

Overall, Gatebank’s performance over the past five years highlights its financial soundness,
operational resilience, and steady commitment to responsible banking. The Bank remains well-
capitalized and compliant with regulatory requirements, backed by a solid asset base, stable
deposit levels, and a loan portfolio that is closely monitored to maintain quality and support
sustainable growth. These strong fundamentals position Gatebank to navigate market changes
effectively while continuing to serve as a trusted banking partner for its clients and
communities.

Moving forward, Gatebank will focus on reinforcing key priorities to support sustained growth
and strengthen stakeholder confidence. Managing and improving the quality of the loan
portfolio will remain a central objective, ensuring that credit policies stay responsive to
evolving borrower needs while maintaining prudent risk management. Alongside this, the Bank
will continue to diversify its revenue streams by exploring additional income sources and
innovative products that complement core banking services.

Expanding and deepening the deposit base will also be a critical focus. This includes
broadening market reach, enhancing customer experience, and implementing initiatives that
encourage long-term savings and client loyalty.

With these strategic directions firmly in place, Gatebank is confident in its ability to build on
its achievements and pursue sustainable growth. Guided by sound governance, a strong risk
culture, and a deep commitment to rural community development, Gatebank remains dedicated
to delivering consistent value today and for generations to come.



Financial Performance, Key Developments,

In 2024, Gateway Rural Bank Incorporated demonstrated stable financial performance with
improvements in key operational areas, as reflected in its comparative figures against the

previous year.

and Strategic Initiatives

Minimum Required Data 2024 2023

Profitability

Total Met Interest Income 50,905,717 48,274,659

Total Mon-Interest Income 27,223,484 05,011,818

Total Mon-Interest Expense 72,331,453 67,587,623

Pre-Provision Profit 8780142 41,424 339

Allowance for credit losses 27970524 22919811

Met Income 6,868,723 31,088,777
Selected Balance Sheet Data

Liquid Assets 369,028,559 320,405,000

Gross Loans 557 989 901 604 810 339

Total Aszets 1,098 455,629 1,123,259 832

Total Deposits 802,053,303 807,014,270

Total Equity 191,212 629 189,553,860
Selected Ratios

Return on Equity 1016% 46.28%

Return on fAssets 0.62% 2.70%

Met Interest Margin 9.15% 11.68%

Past Due Ratio 1412% 11.00%

Liquidity Ratio 4597% 39.63%

Capital Adequacy Ratio 1593% 16.21%
Others

Head Count

Officers 17 17

Staff 73 a7

Gatebank recorded a total net interest income of 50.91 million, reflecting a 5.45% increase
from P48.27 million in 2023. Total non-interest income stood at 27.22 million. After provisions
and taxes, net income reached P6.87 million, slightly below the 31.09 million achieved in
2023, largely due to higher credit loss provisioning of 27.97 million and due to the rescission
of the booked Sales Contract Receivable, resulting in the reversal of income from the sale of
ROPA.

Gatebank’s total assets amounted to P1.10 billion, up from P1.12 billion in 2023. Loans and
receivables, representing 50.80% of the bank’'s total resources, decreased by 8% or
P46.82million from P604.81 million to 557.99 million. The bank’s deposit liabilities decreased
by 1%, or P4.960 million, from Php807.014 million to 802.053 million and represented 73.02%
of total resources because some time deposit depositors withdrew their funds because they
chose to buy property. Total equity increased to 191.21 million, reinforcing the Bank’s capital
base.
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Key Financial Ratios

Return on Equity (ROE) stood at 10.16%, compared to 46.28% in the previous year. The
decrease was primarily due to the decline in net income, following higher loan loss
provisions and the reversal of previously recognized income from sale of ROPA. The
Bank remains committed to enhancing profitability through disciplined credit
strategies, with a continued focus on maintaining asset quality, managing credit risk,
and ensuring that lending activities support sustainable income growth. These efforts
are aligned with the Bank’s long-term objectives and its prudent approach to portfolio
management.

Return on Assets (ROA) was at 0.62%, lower than 2.70% in 2023. This ratio is consistent
with the movement in net income relative to the Bank's average total assets during the
year.

Net Interest Margin (NIM) stood at 9.15%, slightly decrease from 11.68% in 2023,
reflecting a cautious lending approach during the period. The Bank recognizes this as
a key performance area and will continue to implement strategies to improve margin
levels while maintaining credit quality.

The Past Due Ratio rose to 14.12% from 11.0% in 2023. This level remains manageable
and is being addressed through enhanced monitoring, proactive collection activities,
and ongoing engagement with borrowers to maintain repayment performance.

The Liquidity Ratio remained stable at 45.97%, demonstrating the Bank’'s continued
ability to meet short-term obligations through sufficient liquid asset holdings. This
level reflects the Bank's conservative approach to liquidity management, ensuring that
funding needs, depositor withdrawals, and operational requirements are met without
strain. The Bank maintained adequate buffers throughout the year, consistent with
internal limits and the liquidity standards set by the Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas.
Capital Adequacy Ratio (CAR) stood strong at 15.93%, slightly lower than 16.21% last
year, but comfortably above the regulatory minimum, underscoring the Bank’s solid
capital position and its capacity to absorb potential risks and support growth plans.

According to the Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas (BSP) list of the Top 100 Rural and Cooperative
Banks as of December 2024, Gatebank ranks among the Top 100 Rural Banks in the country
based on the following criteria:

. . 31-Dec-24
Banking Statistics Ranking
TOTAL ASSETS 59 P 1,094.17
TOTAL CAPITAL 68 P 185.72
TOTAL DEPOSIT 50 P 802.05
TOTAL LOANS 62 P 530.02

The year 2024 was marked by significant changes, key operational activities, and major
strategic initiatives that collectively supported Gatebank’s continued growth and strengthened
governance framework.



During the year, the Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas (BSP) confirmed
the appointment of Mrs. Cynthia T. Cruz as the Bank’s third
Independent Director, reinforcing the institution's board
independence and oversight capability. The Board likewise
approved the engagement of Lope Laranjo Bato & (Co., Certified
Public Accountants as Gatebank’s External Auditor. Gatebank
was also officially accredited by the BSP as one of its recognized
Currency Exchange Centers, further enhancing the bank’s service
offerings to its clients.

To support professional growth, the Bank sustained its capacity-

. building programs, providing
continuous training and development
for directors, officers, and staff to keep pace with regulatory updates
and industry best practices.

Operationally, Gatebank continued its monthly review and validation
of the Allowance for Credit Losses (ACL), ensuring that provisioning
remains accurate, timely and fully compliant with regulatory
standards. In addition to its credit provisioning efforts, one of the
Bank’s operational highlights in 2024 was the successful disposal of
acquired assets. A total of 34,489,051.14 in Real and Other
Properties Acquired (ROPA) was sold during the year, generating a
net gain of #22,996,153.19. This achievement reflects the effective
' asset recovery strategies implemented by the ROPA Management

Team and the Bank’s focus on optimizing its asset mix. The timely
| sale of these non-performing assets not only improved the Bank’s
liquidity position and asset turnover ratio but also reduced
administrative and maintenance costs associated with holding
foreclosed properties. The initiative forms part of Gatebank’s
continuing efforts to strengthen its financial performance, improve
capital, and comply with the regulatory timeline for ROPA disposition
under BSP regulations.

In line with Gatebank’s commitment to employee welfare and
performance recognition, the, Board approved several
employee incentives. These included a mid-year half-month
salary incentive bonus for officers and staff released on
August 8, 2024, amounting to P664,375, and a salary
adjustment effective October 2024 totaling P48,950.00. In
December 2024, a half-month year-end bonus amounting to
P767,635.44 was also distributed in December 2024.

To further promote performance excellence at the branch
level, Gatebank awarded £326,700.00 in monetary incentives
to branches and branch managers who achieved or exceeded




their targets based on the branch point system, which also recognized top-performing
branches and officers. In addition, the Bank allocated £2,501,637.44 for year-end expenses,
including Christmas giveaways for depositors and borrowers, employee rewards, and bonuses.
As an added token of appreciation for their pivotal role, Gatebank granted £250,000.00 in
monetary rewards to all Administrative Officers and Staff for their continued support and
guidance in helping the branches meet their 2024 targets.

Challenges, Opportunities and Responses during the Year

Gatebank remains cautiously optimistic about the economic outlook and is
committed to pursuing growth opportunities while maintaining prudent risk
management. Our strategic priorities are centered on three key areas:

e Training and Development: The Board and Management place high
importance on continuous capacity program for directors, officers and
staff through in-house training, participation in external programs and
seminars, and mentoring & guidance to strengthen expertise and service
quality across the organization.

e Expansion and Market Penetration: Gatebank continues to pursue
opportunities to broaden its market reach by identifying new growth
opportunities and deepening relationships with existing clients.
Employees are encouraged to proactively promote the Bank's wide range of products
and services, including loans, deposits, and payment systems.

e Digital Transformation: Gatebank remains committed to investing in advanced
technologies to enhance our digital infrastructure, improve operational efficiency, and
provide innovative, client-centric banking solutions aligned with the evolving demands
of the financial landscape and customer expectations.
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Clients’ Testimonial

Mula pa noong 2021, naging matatag na katuwang namin
ang Gatebank sa paglago ng aming negosyo. Bilang isang
borrower, ramdam po namin ang tunay na malasakit ng
bangko, hindi lamang sa pagbibigay ng pondo, kundi sa
pagtulong sa pagpapatuloy at pagpapalawak ng aming
operasyon sa Li-Let Products Manufacturing Inc.

Ang loan na naaprubahan ay naging mahalagang sandigan
sa aming pagbili ng raw materials, pag-upgrade ng mga
makina, at pagpapalawak ng aming production area. Ngunit
higit pa po sa pondo, ang tiwala na ibinigay sa amin ng
Gatebank ang siyang nagpalakas ng aming loob upang
magpatuloy, lalo na sa gitna ng hamon sa negosyo.

Lubos po ang aming pasasalamat sa Gatebank,sa kanilang
tiwala, suporta, at tunay na pakikilahok sa pag-unlad ng
maliliit na negosyante na gaya namin. Sa bawat produkto na
aming nailalabas, kasabay po nito ang kwento ng isang
bangkong naniniwala sa kakayahan ng mga MSMEs na

»
mangarap at umasenso.

Lilibeth Domingo
Business Operations Manager
Li-Let Products Manufacturing Inc.

Ako po ay isang tapat na borrower ng Gatebank sa

loob ng dalawampung (20) taon. Sa lahat ng yugto ng
aming kabuhayan, mula sa simpleng pagtitinda sa
palengke hanggang sa unti unting pag-angat ng aming
pamumuhay, kasama po namin ang Gatebank bilang
matatag na kaagapay.

Hindi lamang po puhunan ang naibigay sa amin ng
bangko. Ang tunay na naitulong ng Gatebank ay ang
pagbibigay ng pag-asa, kumpiyansa, at pagkakataong
makabangon sa bawat pagsubok. Sa tulong ng
kanilang pautang, nagkaroon kami ng panimulang
kapital para mapalago ang aming negosyo at
matustusan ang pang-araw-araw naming
pangangailangan. Ngunit higit sa lahat, ang
pinakatumatak sa aming pamilya ay ang
pagkakataong mapagtapos namin sa kolehiyo ang
aming anak, isang pangarap na dati ay malayo sa
aming abot, ngunit naging posible dahil sa tiwala at
suporta ng Gatebank. Para po sa amin, napakahalaga
ng ganitong uri ng pagtulong, yung tahimik pero may
tunay na epekto sa buhay ng mga simpleng pamilyang
gaya namin.

Hanggang ngayon, kami ay patuloy pa ring
namumuhay nang marangal bilang maliliit na
negosyante sa palengke. At sa bawat araw na kami’y
nagsusumikap, dala namin ang pananalig na hindi
kami nag-iisa. Ang Gatebank ay hindi lang po aming
bangko ito po ay naging katuwang namin sa buhay, sa
bawat hakbang ng aming pag-unlad, at sa bawat
pangarap na aming inaasam para sa aming pamilya. ”

Rogelio S. Feliciano, Jr
Chicken Dealership Business/Market Vendor
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Risk Management

Gatebank recognizes that risk-taking is inherent in its banking
operations and that it is exposed to various types of risk,
including credit, liquidity, market, operational, reputational,
legal, and other emerging risks. To sustain growth and create
long-term value for shareholders, the Bank remains committed
to effective risk management. Gatebank’s Management under the
oversight of the Board of Directors, plays an active role in the
identifying, measuring, monitoring, and reporting of risks, while
also assessing potential impact on the bank’'s financial and
operational objectives. Gatebank continuously reviews and
refines its risk limit structures and internal controls to ensure
that all activities remain within Board-approved policies and
fully comply with the regulations set by the Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas (BSP) and other
regulatory authorities.

RISK
MANAGEMENT
PROCESS

In addition, the Bank maintains adequate capital to support its overall risk exposures, thereby

ensuring financial resilience and compliance with prudential standards.

1. Credit Risk risk factors, and establishing appropriate
It is the risk arising from the borrowers’ limits for the various exposures.
failure to abide by the terms of the loan
agreement, more  specifically the Interest Rate Risk
agreement to pay the loan, including any It is the risk arising from mismatches of the
interest, penalties, and other charges, on timing of changes in interest rates on
the date that the same falls due. As a assets and liabilities. The risk becomes
matter of general strategy, the bank inherent in the current and prospective
manages this risk through a system of interest gapping of the bank's balance
policies, metrics, and authorities that sheet. The bank follows a set of policies on
govern the processes and practices of all managing its assets and liabilities so as to
credit-originating and borrowing, as well ensure that exposures to fluctuations in
as other units involved in the credit cycle. interest rates are kept within acceptable

limits.

2. (redit Concentration Risk
It is the risk of loss arising from over- Liquidity Risk
exposure to specific industries or It is the risk arising from the bank's failure
borrowers. The bank manages this risk to meet maturing obligations due to
through adherence to processes relating to mismatch in cash flows and incidence of
industry and counterparty assessments, high past due loans which may put pressure
observance of regulatory ceilings, and on the bank's liquidity position. The bank’s
setting of internal limits. strategy for managing this risk is generally

via limiting the maturity mismatch between
3. Market Risk assets and liabilities, and by holding

Itis the risk of loss arising from movements
in market prices. The bank manages this
risk via a process of identifying, analyzing,
measuring, and controlling relevant market

sufficient liquid assets of appropriate
quality and marketability.
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10.

Operational Risk

It is the risk arising as a result of fraud,
error, and the inability to deliver products
or services, maintain a competitive
position, manage information, weakness in
organizational structure, poor oversight
functions of the Board of Directors and
Senior Management, faulty hiring policies,
weak internal control system. The bank
manages this risk by implementing policies
that promote a strong control environment,
escalation, monitoring and reporting of risk
events, and adequate mitigation of
assessed risks.

IT Risk

It is the risk of loss resulting from failure
of computer hardware, software, devices,
systems, applications, and networks. The
bank’s strategy in managing this risk is
embodied in a comprehensive information
technology policy that encompasses IT risk
assessment, vulnerability testing,
monitoring, controls, and mitigation.

Information Security Risk

It is the risk of loss resulting from
information security/cyber security
breaches. The bank’s strategy in managing
this risk is embodied in a comprehensive
information security policy.

Business Continuity Risk

It is the risk of loss resulting from the
prospective inability to resume operations
in the event of a disaster. The bank's
strategy in managing this risk is embodied
in its Business Continuity Program.

Regulatory Risk

It is the risk of loss arising from probable
mid-stream changes in the regulatory
bodies affecting current position and/or
strategy. The bank’s strategy is to perform
impact assessment of new regulations and
market trends.

Compliance Risk

It is the risk arising from failure to comply
with relevant rules and regulations issued
by regulatory and/or supervisory bodies
and due to unsound banking practices. The

11.

12.

13.

risk exposes the bank and its directors and
officers to fines, monetary penalties and
administrative sanctions. The bank has a
designated Chief Compliance Officer in-
charge with overseeing the implementation
of an approved Compliance Plan and
Program, including anti-money laundering
processes, and controls.

Legal Risk

It is the risk arising as a result of
unenforceable contracts, lawsuits, or
adverse judgment. The bank assesses the
probability of cases being won or lost, and
accordingly sets up provisions, when

necessary. Potential legal liabilities are
reported immediately to higher
Management.

Strategic Risk

It is the risk of loss arising from adverse
business decisions, improper
implementation of decisions, or lack of
responsiveness to industry changes. The
bank’s strategy in managing this risk is to
imbed the same in the various business
functions as stated in its strategic and
business planning processes.

Reputation Risk

It is the risk of loss arising from
negative/adverse public opinion. The bank
manages this risk primarily through
processes observed and  activities
performed by a designated body tasked
with ensuring a healthy public image of the
bank.

14. Interest Rate Risk in Banking Books (IRRBB)

To effectively manage the risk associated
with adverse movements in interest rates,
Gatebank adopts a comprehensive
approach that takes into account the
impact on both earnings and capital. The
bank analyzes the interest rate sensitivity,
considering the composition of interest
rate-sensitive assets, liabilities, and off-
balance sheet exposures across short,
medium, and long-term horizons.
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15. Environmental and Social Risks

Gatebank has no appetite  for
environmental and social (E&S) risks that
could have an adverse effect on its
financial, legal, and/or reputation. As part
of its credit risk management strategy, the

environmental pollution, climatic risks
(both physical and transitional), and
hazards to human health, safety, and
security, and threats to community,
biodiversity, and cultural heritage, among
others.

bank does not finance projects that involve

Anti-Money Laundering Governance and Culture

The Bank’s Money Laundering and Terrorist Financing Prevention Program (MLPP) is
designed to guide employees in ensuring that Gatebank's products, services, and
operations are not misused for money laundering (ML) or terrorist financing (TF) activities.
The MLPP is regularly updated to align with the latest Anti-Money Laundering and Counter-
Terrorist Financing (AML/CTF) laws, rules, and regulations. Gatebank and its employees
adhere to fundamental principles in combating financial crime, which include strict
compliance with applicable laws and regulations, effective implementation of Know Your
Customer (KYC) procedures, cooperation with law enforcement authorities, regular
dissemination of policies, employee training, and robust risk management practices.

Gatebank fully complies with all applicable anti-money laundering and counter-terrorist
financing laws and regulations. The Bank strictly implements customer due diligence at
onboarding and during periodic reviews to verify client identities and maintain accurate
information. Transactions are continuously monitored to detect and flag any unusual or
suspicious activities, and records are properly maintained and securely stored in
compliance with regulatory requirements.

In line with its reporting obligations, the Bank ensures the timely and accurate submission
of Covered Transaction Reports (CTRs) and Suspicious Transaction Reports (STRs) as
required by the Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas (BSP) and the Anti-Money Laundering Council
(AMLC).

The Compliance Unit ensures consistent implementation of AML/CTF policies across all
business and support units and provides guidance to maintain high standards of
compliance. Regular training and awareness programs are conducted for directors and all
employees to strengthen their ability to identify red flags and handle potential risks
effectively.

Gatebank continues to enhance its compliance practices and upholds its commitment to
safeguard the trust of its clients and stakeholders.
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Corporate Governance

Gatebank’s Board of Directors is composed of seven (7) members, the majority of whom are
non-executive directors. Among them, three (3) serves as Independent Directors, providing
objective perspectives, impartial advice that support sound governance and protect the
interests of all stakeholders. Independent Directors are nominated and elected annually by
shareholders and serve a term of one (1) year until their successors are duly elected and
qualified.

Gatebank upholds the principle that a well-composed
= and diverse Board is critical to maintaining high
= i standards of governance and supporting sustainable

G growth. In selecting directors, the Bank considers a

CORPORATE =52
BRPEARK:;T[;:G[]VERNANCE wide range of qualifications such as professional
" AONITORING background, industry knowledge, technical skills,

BWD """55" education, leadership experience, integrity, community

standing, and alignment with the Bank’s corporate
values. Appointments are strictly merit-based and adhere to a fair and non-discriminatory
process, ensuring that no candidate is disadvantaged on the basis of gender, age, religion,
political beliefs, ethnicity, or cultural background.
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All candidates for directorship undergo a thorough screening process in line with regulatory
requirements. This includes evaluating their integrity, good moral character, professional
reputation, compliance track record, relevant experience, financial literacy, and demonstrated
commitment to uphold good governance principles.

Directors are expected to allocate sufficient time to perform their duties responsibly. They are
required to attend Board and committee meetings regularly, prepare thoroughly, contribute
actively to deliberations, and remain informed on developments in banking regulations,
industry trends, and emerging risks. The Bank places high value on each director’s ability to
exercise independent judgment and maintain objectivity in decision-making.

Gatebank conducts periodic performance reviews to ensure that each director continues to
meet the standards of fitness and propriety throughout their tenure. This includes regularly
monitoring compliance with the Bank’s internal policies, applicable laws, and regulatory
directives, and ensuring that all directors consistently demonstrate adherence to the highest
professional and ethical standards expected of their position.

To uphold strong governance and avoid any conflict of interest, Gatebank maintains clear
separation of duties and prohibits any member of the Board from concurrently holding the
position of Corporate Secretary or Chief Compliance Officer. This measure ensures that key
control and oversight roles remain independent and free from undue influence, reinforcing the
integrity of the Bank’s governance framework.
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Gatebank remains fully committed to building and sustaining a Board that is credible,
competent, diverse, and independent, equipped with the necessary experience, skills, and
perspectives to provide sound strategic guidance, effective risk oversight, and governance
leadership that will protect and grow stakeholder value in the years to come.

Selection Process for the Board and Senior
Management

Each year, the Bank's stockholders nominate
and elect members of the Board of Directors
during the Annual Stockholders’ Meeting. All
elected directors must meet the qualifications
prescribed for the role, ensuring they are
capable of fulfilling  their fiduciary
responsibilities.

Upon formation, the Board is tasked with
appointing the Bank's Senior Management
Team, which includes, among others, key
executives such as the President, Chief
Operating Officer, Chief Compliance Officer, Chief
Internal Auditor, This appointment process is
conducted in close coordination with the Human
Resource Department, ensuring that all
candidates meet the required standards and
qualifications.

Appointees to senior positions are expected to
possess a strong combination of relevant skills,
professional knowledge, leadership experience,
and diligence. Participation in training
programs, industry seminars, and other
development activities is highly valued to
ensure that executives remain aligned with
current best practices and regulatory
expectations. Gatebank emphasizes the
continuous professional growth of its senior
leadership team.

Furthermore, the Bank considers tenure and
institutional experience in the selection process,
recognizing the value of long-standing service
and in-depth  understanding of the
organization’s culture, systems, and operations.

Board’s Overall Responsibility

The Board of Directors is committed to
upholding the highest standards of
honesty, integrity, and transparency in the
performance of its duties  and
responsibilities. It is dedicated to fostering
the long-term success and sustainable
competitiveness of the Bank, while
consistently  exercising its  fiduciary
responsibilities in the best interests of the
Bank and its stakeholders—including
shareholders, depositors, creditors,
employees, regulators, government
agencies, the communities it serves, and the
general public.

The Board is primarily responsible for the
approval and oversight of the Bank's
strategic objectives, business plans, risk
management framework, corporate
governance policies, and institutional
values. It convenes regular and special
meetings to evaluate senior management'’s
performance against the Bank's strategic
goals and annual budget, and to deliberate
on key areas such as risk management,
compliance, governance practices, and
operational matters.

Furthermore, the Board is tasked with
establishing a robust corporate governance
framework, ensuring that governance
structures, policies, and mechanisms are
aligned with the Bank's organizational
structure, business model, and risk profile.
It also sets the professional standards and
corporate values that promote a culture of
integrity, accountability, and ethical
conduct throughout all levels of the
organization, including senior management
and staff.
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Description of the Role and Contribution of Executive,
Non-executive and Independent Directors, and of the
Chairman of the Board

> Executive Director

The President serves as the Bank's primary executive officer and is responsible for providing
leadership in the overall administration, daily operations, and management of the Bank's
business activities. The President oversees the implementation of the Board-approved
strategies, policies, and business plans, and ensures that day-to-day operations comply with
applicable regulations and are carried out effectively and efficiently. The President is also
tasked to keep the Board informed of significant developments, operational results, and
emerging risks, and to recommend appropriate actions for the Board’'s consideration.

» Non-Executive and Independent Directors
Gatebank’s Board is composed mainly of non-executive directors, six (6) in total, three (3) of
whom serve as independent directors as required under prevailing governance standards. Non-
executive directors contribute an external perspective, free from involvement in day-to-day
management, enabling them to provide independent oversight of Management's performance
and the Bank's overall direction. They play a crucial role in challenging Management
constructively and ensuring that key decisions are sound, balanced, and aligned with the best
interests of the Bank and its stakeholders.

Independent directors, who form part of the non-executive members, bring a high degree of
objectivity, integrity, and board-level expertise critical to maintaining robust corporate
governance. Their principal contribution lies in providing independent judgment, offering
unbiased advice, and actively promoting accountability and transparency during Board
discussions and decisions. They help safeguard shareholder interests and strengthen the
Board's ability to make well-informed, balanced, and transparent decisions.

» (hairman of the Board
The Chairman of the Board serves as the Presiding Officer and plays a pivotal role in leading
and guiding the Board’s activities. The Chairman sets the tone for the Board's work and is
responsible for promoting a culture of open dialogue, trust, and integrity. In addition to
presiding over Board and shareholders’ meetings, the Chairman ensures that meetings are
productive, all directors are encouraged to contribute their insights, and that the Board
deliberates thoroughly on significant matters.

The Chairman also supports the formulation of policies and strategies aligned with the Bank’s
long-term vision and objectives, working closely with the President and Management to ensure
that decisions made by the Board are properly implemented. Furthermore, the Chairman
facilitates communication between the Board and Management and ensures that dissenting or
diverse viewpoints are given due consideration, fostering an environment where independent
and critical thinking is valued. Through this, the Chairman upholds the Board's effectiveness in
fulfilling its governance responsibilities and in steering the Bank towards sustainable growth.



Board Level Committees

To strengthen governance and support the effective execution of its responsibilities, the Board has
established three key committees at the board level: the Audit Committee, Credit Committee, and
Related Party Transactions (RPT) Committee. These committees provide focused attention on critical
areas of the Bank's operations and ensure that governance, risk management, and compliance
standards are rigorously maintained in accordance with regulatory requirements and industry best

practices.

Each committee has a clear mandate, defined roles and responsibilities, and operates under a Board-
approved charter to help the Board discharge its oversight functions effectively. Each committee
focuses on a distinct area of governance essential to the Bank’s operations and regulatory compliance:
the Audit Committee oversees financial reporting, internal controls, and audit functions; the Credit
Committee is responsible for credit risk oversight and is authorized to approve credit accommodations
up to B5 million per borrower, enabling timely decisions within established risk limits, and the RPT
Committee monitors related party transactions to prevent conflicts of interest and ensure fairness and

transparency.

Each committee’s charter sets out its specific objectives, membership structure, scope of authority,
meeting procedures, and reporting responsibilities to the Board. To support organized and efficient
committee operations, a Committee Secretary, designated by the Board, is tasked with preparing and

circulating meeting notices, agendas, and minutes in a timely manner.

Audit Committee
The Audit Committee shall be composed of
three (3) members of the Board of Directors,
all of whom shall be non-executive
directors, with the majority—including the
Chairman—being independent directors.

This committee plays a critical role in
supporting the Board of Directors in the
execution of its oversight responsibilities.
It is tasked with reviewing the Bank's
financial reporting processes, internal
control  systems, risk management
practices, audit functions, and compliance
with regulatory requirements. Additionally,
the Audit Committee assesses the adequacy
and effectiveness of the Bank's existing
policies and procedures. It is also
responsible  for  implementing  and
recommending appropriate actions based
on the findings and recommendations of
both internal and external auditors,
thereby reinforcing transparency,
accountability, and good governance.

The
composed of at

Credit Committee
Credit Committee shall be
least three (3)

members, two (2) of whom must be
members of the Board of Directors.

The Committee is appointed by the
Board to act on its behalf in carrying
out the following key responsibilities:

a.

Provide oversight of the Bank's
credit and lending strategies
and objectives to ensure
alignment with overall business
goals and risk appetite;

Oversee the Bank’s credit risk
management framework,
including the review and
endorsement of internal credit
policies and the establishment
of portfolio limits;

Evaluate the quality and
performance of the Bank's credit
portfolio to ensure sound credit
practices and asset quality are
maintained.

RPT Committee

The Related Party Transactions (RPT) Committee
shall be composed of at least three (3) members
of the Board of Directors, of whom two (2) shall
be independent directors, including the
Chairperson, and one (1) director who is not
related within the fourth (4th) degree of
consanguinity or affinity to any substantial
shareholder. A substantial shareholder refers to
any individual or entity holding at least 10% of
the Bank's outstanding capital stock.

The Committee is appointed and authorized by

the Board to assist in strengthening corporate

governance, particularly in the oversight and
management of Related Party Transactions

(RPTs). Its responsibilities include:

a. Reviewing and endorsing all RPTs,
including those involving DOSRI (Directors,
Officers, Stockholders, and Related
Interests), which require final approval by
the Board;

b. Formulating and revising RPT policies,
subject to Board approval;

¢. Conducting investigations as necessary to
fulfill its mandate regarding RPT
oversight;

d. Overseeing the implementation of the
Bank’s system for identifying, monitoring,
measuring, controlling, and reporting
related party transactions.
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Board and Committee Attendance

Board of Directors

. No. Of Meetings | Percentage Of
[ 1 i rEELor Attended (17) Attendance
Mr. Emilio M. Cabigao 17 100%
Mrs. Mercedes S. Coloma 17 100%
Mr. Jerry B. Coloma, Jr. 17 100%
Mrs. Jeremy Rose C. Lomibao 17 100%
Atty. Jerry S. Coloma III 17 100%
Mr. Ronnie L. Garrido 17 100%
Mrs. Cynthia T. Cruz 14 82%
Mrs. Rosario SP. San Pedro' 3 18%

Audit Committee

Number of Meetings

Audit Committee Members Regular (12) Percentage Of
egutar Attendance
Ronnie L. Garrido (Chairman) 12 100%
Emilio M. Cabigao 11 92%
Jerry B. Coloma Jr. (Replaced)? 7 100%
Cynthia T. Cruz 5 100%
Marvin Joseph S. Gutierrez (Ex- 12 100%

Officio Member)

Credit Committee

Number of Meetings

Credit Committee Members Regular (51) Percentage Of
S Attendance
Mrs. Mercedes S. Coloma (Chairman) 51 100%
Mrs. Rosario SP. San Pedro’? 51 100%
Mrs. Jeremy Rose (. Lomibao 41 80%
Mrs. Camille G. Sendin* 10 20%

RPT Committee

Number of Meetings

RPT Committee Members Regular (4) Percentage Of
egutar Attendance
Cynthia T. Cruz (Chairman) 3 100%
Emilio M. Cabigao (Chairman) 4 100%
Mrs. Rosario SP. San Pedro (Replaced)? 1 100%
Ronnie L. Garrido (Member) 4 100%
Marvin Joseph S. Gutierrez (Ex-0fficio Member) 4 100%
Abigail P. Carillo (Ex-0fficio Member) 4 100.00%

£ Replaced by Mrs. Cynthia T. Cruz on March 5, 2024

¥ Mr. Jerry B. Coloma was replaced by Mrs. Cynthia Cruz on August 27, 2024
3 Replaced by Mrs. Jeremy Rose Lomibao on March 5, 2024

¥ Replaced by Mrs. Rosario SP. San Pedro on March 5, 2024

2 Replaced by Mrs. Cynthia Cruz on May 28, 2024
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Our Board of Directors

MR. EMILIO M. CABIGAO

69 years old, Filipino

Independent Director / Chairman of the Board

Type of directorship: Non-Executive

Number of years served as director: 2 years

Number of shares held: 1

Percentage of shares held to total outstanding shares of the bank: 0.00%

Mr. Emilio M. Cabigao was elected as Independent Director and elected Chairman of the
Board of Directors on November 16, 2022. He also serves as a member of the Audit
Committee.

Mr. Cabigao brings with him over 33 years of experience at the Land Bank of the Philippines,
where he held various key positions including Field Service Assistant, Estate Development
Coordinator, Field Operations Supervisor, Chief of Division, and Branch Manager before his
retirement. His extensive background in banking operations and development finance
significantly contributes to the Bank's strategic oversight and governance.

In support of his role as an Independent Director, Mr. Cabigao completed a Corporate
Governance Seminar held on December 14-15, 2022, reinforcing his commitment to uphold
best practices in corporate leadership and accountability.

MRS. MERCEDES S. COLOMA

11 years of age, Filipino

President/Director

Type of directorship: Executive

Number of years served as director: 26 years

Number of shares held: 177,394

Percentage of shares held to total outstanding shares of the bank: 24.73%

Mrs. Mercedes S. Coloma has been a Director of Gateway Rural Bank Incorporated (Gatebank) since its
inception in 1997. With nearly five decades of experience in rural banking, she has played a central role
in Gatebank’s growth and strategic direction. Her deep industry expertise also benefited Zambales Rural
Bank, Inc. (Zambank), where she served as a Director, making significant contributions to its
development and operational strengthening.

She is the current Chairman and President of Pandi Livestock Producers Marketing Corporation (since
March 2022), and serves as Director of several institutions, including Bridgeway Rural Banking
Corporation (since May 2019), College of Saint Lawrence, Inc. (since June 1990), and Holy Angels’ College
(Bulacan), Inc. (since May 1989). As of 2024, she also serves as a member of the Board of Directors of
the Rural Bankers Association of the Philippines (RBAP), providing strategic insight and industry
representation at the national level. Her leadership experience across banking, education, agribusiness,
and industry organizations reflects her enduring commitment to community development and inclusive
financial growth.

Mrs. Coloma earned her Bachelor of Science in Business Administration, major in Accounting, from the
University of the East and passed the Certified Public Accountant (CPA) licensure examination in
September 1975. She is a former President of the Confederation of Central Luzon Rural Banks (CCLRB)
and was recognized in 1990 by the Rural Bankers Association of the Philippines (RBAP) as Rural Banker
of the Year—one of the highest distinctions in the industry.

Before joining Gatebank, she held various key positions at the Rural Bank of Pandi (Bulacan), Inc.
starting in April 1974, laying the foundation for a career marked by unwavering dedication to rural
banking. Her strong leadership, deep operational insight, and commitment to countryside development
continue to drive the sustained success of the institutions under her guidance.
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Our Board of Directors

MR. JERRY B. COLOMA, JR.

74 years of age, Filipino

Type of directorship: Non-Executive

Number of years served as director: & years

Number of shares held: 177,395

Percentage of shares held to total outstanding shares of the bank: 24.73%

Mr. Jerry B. Coloma, Jr., is @ major shareholder and director of Gateway Rural Bank Incorporated
(Gatebank). He currently serves as the president and director of Zambales Rural Bank, Inc.
(zambank). In addition to his executive roles, he is an active figure in the rural banking sector,
serving as an adviser to the Zambales Rural Bankers Association (ZARBI), where he previously
held the position of president. He is also a director of the Rural Bankers Association of the
Philippines (RBAP), having served as its national president for the 2002-2003 term.

Mr. Coloma earned his Bachelor of Science degree in Business Administration, major in Accounting,
from the University of the East. He passed the Certified Public Accountant (CPA) licensure
examination on November &4, 1973, and began his professional career at Sycip Gorres Velayo & Co.
(SGV), one of the country’s premier accounting and professional services firms.

As the founder and key driving force behind Gatebank, Mr. Coloma has played a pivotal role in
the Bank’s growth and development. Through strategic leadership, sound financial stewardship,
and a strong commitment to rural banking, he has helped shape Gatebank into a vital financial
institution serving the needs of the local community.

ATTY. JERRY S. COLOMA, III

48 years of age, Filipino

Type of directorship: Non-Executive

Number of years served as director: 4 years

Number of shares held: 25,890

Percentage of shares held to total outstanding shares of the bank: 12.63%

Atty. Jerry S. Coloma III served as Legal Consultant for Gateway Rural Bank Incorporated (Gatebank)
from 2012 to 2020. He currently holds the position of Chief Operating Officer and Director of
Zambales Rural Bank, Inc. (Zambank). Previously, he was the President of Bridgeway Rural Banking
Corporation (Bridge bank). He also serves as a Director in several organizations, including Cleanslate
Corporation (since May 2019), Verdance Holdings Corporation (since March 2018), and ARX Inc. (since
March 2022). He also holds the position of Corporate Secretary in multiple entities such as the
College of Saint Lawrence, Inc. (since March 2011), Sustansiya (since May 2016), Rappler Holdings
Corporation and Rappler Inc. (since April 2018), Evolution Data Centres Philippines (since September
2022), and SMEC Philippines Inc. (since December 2020).

Atty. Coloma graduated magna cum laude with a Bachelor of Science in Business Administration
from the University of the Philippines and earned his Bachelor of Laws from the UP College of Law.
He passed the Philippine Bar Examination in 2004. He is a name partner at MOSVELDTT Law Offices,
one of the country’s leading firms, and has completed both the Basic (2004) and Advanced (2018)
Corporate Governance training courses.

With extensive legal experience, particularly in corporate law and governance, Atty. Coloma
continues to provide leadership across various sectors, contributing his expertise to the
advancement of institutions he serves.
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Our Board of Directors

MS. JEREMY ROSE C. LOMIBAO

45 years of age, Filipino

Type of directorship: Non-Executive

Number of years served as director: 5 years

Number of shares held: 25,890

Percentage of shares held to total outstanding shares of the bank: 12.63%

Mrs. Jeremy Rose (. Lomibao is a graduate of the Bachelor of Science in Accountancy from the
Philippine School of Business Administration and a licensed Real Estate Broker. Her professional
background spans the banking, food service, and creative industries, having held key leadership
roles such as Chief Operating Officer of Gateway Rural Bank Incorporated, Director and General
Manager of TAJMA Food Inc., Manager of Boomtown Recording Studio, Director and Manager of Soup
and Ladle Inc., and Director and Chairman of the Board of Zambales Rural Bank, Inc.

Demonstrating a strong commitment to lifelong learning and regulatory compliance, she has actively
participated in a wide range of professional development programs and industry seminars organized
by the Rural Bankers Association of the Philippines (RBAP), the Confederation of Central Luzon Rural
Banks, the Bulacan Federation of Rural Banks, and the Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas (BSP). Notably,
she completed both the Basic and Advanced Corporate Governance Seminars held on September 19—
21, 2018, underscoring her dedication to ethical leadership and sound corporate governance.

MR. RONNIE L. GARRIDO

59 years of age, Filipino

Independent Director

Type of directorship: Non-Executive

Number of years served as director: 3 years

Number of shares held: 1

Percentage of shares held to total outstanding shares of the bank: 0.00%

Mr. Garrido is a Certified Public Accountant and a graduate of the Bachelor of
Science in Accountancy from Regina Carmeli College. He devoted three decades of
his career to the Land Bank of the Philippines, where he gained extensive
experience in financial operations and internal audit. His professional journey at
the bank began as a Security Guard (January 1987 - December 1991), followed by
roles as Accounting Clerk (January 1992 - June 14, 1993), Examiner (June 15, 1993
- August 31, 2001), and finally as Internal Auditor (September 1, 2001 - February
28, 2017).

Committed to continuous professional growth, Mr. Garrido has attended various
seminars and training programs conducted by reputable institutions, including the
Land Bank of the Philippines, SGV & Co., the Anti-Money Laundering Council
Secretariat, the Center for Human Resource Strategies Asia Inc., the Civil Service
Commission, and Gatebank. He further enhanced his knowledge of governance
practices by completing a Corporate Governance Seminar on October 15, 2020.
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Our Board of Directors

MRS. CYNTHIAT. CRUZ

63 years of age, Filipino

Independent Director

Type of directorship: Non-Executive

Number of years served as director: 9 months

Number of shares held: 1

Percentage of shares held to total outstanding shares of the bank: 0.00%

Mrs. Cruz holds a Bachelor of Science in Commerce, Major in Accounting, from the
Polytechnic University of the Philippines, graduating Cum Laude. She is a Certified
Public Accountant with an accomplished 40-year career in the banking industry,
primarily with Rizal Commercial Banking Corporation (RCBC).

Throughout her extensive tenure at RCBC, Mrs. Cruz progressed through various key
positions, including Accounting Clerk, Disbursement Clerk/Accruals, Methods
Analyst, Supervisor of the Sundry Section, Section Head of Corporate Disbursement,
Payroll & Sundry, Branch Operations Head, and Branch Manager. She later held
senior leadership roles as Assistant Regional Sales Director (ARSD) and District
Sales Director (DSD) for Northeast Luzon, positions she held from July 2008 until
her retirement on September 30, 2021.

Following her retirement, Mrs. Cruz chose to dedicate her time to her family and
has since embraced the role of a full-time homemaker, while continuing to bring
a wealth of experience and leadership to any role she is engaged in.
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MRS. MERCEDES S. COLOMA, CPA
President
11 years of age, Filipino

Graduate of Bachelor of Science

in Business Administration Major
in Accounting at the University
of the East

MRS. DIANA MARIE DG. DE JESUS
CHIEF ACCOUNTANT
36 years of age, Filipino

Graduate of Bachelor of Science in
Accountancy at the College of Mary
Immaculate

MRS. ROSARIO SP. SAN PEDRO
Chief Operating Officer
64 years of age, Filipino

Graduate of Bachelor of Science in
Business Administration Major in

Banking and Finance at
University of East - Manila

MS. ABIGAIL C. BAGAY
EXECUTIVE ASST./CORPORATE
SECRETARY

35 years of age, Filipino

Graduate of Bachelor of Science in
Accountancy at the College of Mary

Immaculate

MRS. ABIGAIL P. CARILLO
Chief Compliance Officer
42 years of age, Filipino

MR. MARVIN JOSEPH S. GUTIRREZ
CHIEF INTERNAL AUDITOR

26 years of age, Filipino

Graduate of Bachelor of
Science in Accountancy at
the Polytechnic University of
the Philippines

Graduate of Bachelor of Science in
Accountancy at the College of St.
Lawrence Incorporated

MR. JOEL H. MARCELO
CREDIT RISK OFFICER
49 years of age, Filipino

MS. CAMILLE G. SENDIN
GENERAL MANAGER
31 years of age, Filipino

Graduate of Bachelor in
Agricultural Technology

Graduate of Bachelor of Arts in
Legal Management

MR. PAOLO M. GALVEZ
CHIEF LOAN OFFICER
35 years of age, Filipino

Graduate of Bachelor of Science in
Business Administration Major in
Banking & Finance

MS. IRENE A. RABAGO
HUMAN RESOURCE OFFICER
32 years of age, Filipino

Graduate of Bachelor of Science
Major in  Human  Resource
Development and Management
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Branch Managers &
Officer-in-Charge

Ms. Anabelle C. Ramos  Ms. Alyanna Marie M. Rubio Ms. Catherine N. Matias Mr. Ferdinand A. de Guzman
Balagtas Branch Bustos Branch Pandi Branch Pulilan Branch

Ms. Florianne S. Garcia Ms. Hannah C. Victoria Ms. Hermie F. Mendoza Ms. Jastine Bea L. Vargas
SJDM Branch Malolos Branch San Ildefonso Branch San Rafael Branch

Ms. Arlene S. Ignacio Ms. Roselle S. Aurelio
Norzagaray Branch Plaridel Branch
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Performance Assessment Program

To uphold a culture of accountability, professionalism, and continuous improvement, the Bank
conducts an annual performance evaluation to assess the accomplishments and effectiveness
of the Board of Directors, Board Committees, individual directors, officers, and staff. The Board
of Directors, leads the self-assessment process and the evaluation of the committees and the
Compliance Officer. This evaluation is designed not only to measure accomplishments but also
to assess how effectively each individual or group contributes to the Bank’s overall goals and
governance standards. The Audit Committee is responsible for assessing the performance of
the Internal Auditor, while Senior Management is evaluated by the President. All other officers
and staff are evaluated by the Chief Operating Officer, General Manager, or their respective
Branch Heads, as applicable.

Once the performance evaluations are completed, the results are submitted to the Board of
Directors for review, together with recommendations based on the evaluation ratings.
Depending on the outcomes, these may include merit increases, promotions, or other
appropriate forms of recognition. All evaluation activities, supporting documents, and
recommended actions are properly recorded by the Board, the President, and the designated
officers to ensure transparency and accountability.

To encourage continuous improvement, the Board, the President, and relevant officers provide
constructive feedbacks and practical guidance to each employee or officer evaluated. This
feedback highlights accomplishments, clarifies expectations, and outlines clear steps for
improvement. Follow-through actions such as targeted training, workshops, or coaching
sessions are arranged as needed, based on the specific areas identified for development. This
approach helps strengthen individual performance, enhance overall operational efficiency, and
supports good governance practices, ultimately contributing to the Bank’s long-term growth
and success.

Orientation and Training Program

uJ The Bank's Board of Directors and Senior Officers maintain a strong commitment
to upholding the highest standards of professional conduct and continuously
improving their knowledge and skills to keep pace with industry
developments and regulatory changes. They recognize that ongoing
learning is essential to effective governance, sound decision-making, and
maintaining the trust of clients and regulators alike.

To support this commitment, the Chief Compliance Officer regularly
organizes in-house learning sessions and briefings specifically for the
Board and key Officers. These sessions cover a range of priority topics,
including risk management practices, updates on Anti-Money Laundering (AML) laws
and regulations, new banking guidelines issued by the Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas
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(BSP), and other relevant policies and compliance matters.
These briefings ensure that the Bank's leadership stays
compliant

informed and
requirements.

In line with this, the Human Resources Department (HRD)
implements an annual training plan for all employees, both
Officers and rank-and-file personnel. This plan is based on
training needs assessments, performance evaluation results,
and the operational priorities of each unit. Training activities
include a mix of in-house seminars, online courses, external
workshops, and participation in industry conferences or BSP-
led learning sessions, depending on the identified needs.

with the

latest

regulatory

Mark Lester Cas.

Newly hired employees also undergo an orientation program that familiarizes them with the
Bank's mission, vision, core values, operational procedures, customer service standards, and
basic compliance requirements. This onboarding process helps ensure that new employees
understand their roles clearly and perform their duties in line with the Bank’s policies and
regulatory expectations from day one.

From January to December 2024, the Bank successfully conducted a total of 28 training sessions
and seminars for its Directors, Officers, and staff. Topics covered included customer relations,
credit documentation, AML compliance, risk awareness, internal control procedures, and basic
financial reporting, among others.

Identified Training Area

Pa—

Independent Credit Review Function &
Evaluztion, and Responding to Credit
Risk-relatad Diractives in the ROE

President, GM, CRO & Exec. Asst.

Identified Training Area

.

Anti-Money Laundering Act (AMLA)

All Employees

Credit Process

Eranch Manager, Officer-in-Charge,
Loan Officer & Internal Auditors

Digitalization in Rural Banking

Internal Auwditors, Chief Compliance
Officer, and Campliance Assistant

Basic Course on Anti-Money and
Counter-Terrorism and  Proliferation
Financing (AML/CTPF)

Board of Director

Right of Use Asset and Finance Lease
Liability

President, (00, GM, CCO, Chief
Accountant, Chief Intermal Auditor,
Internal Auditors, Branch Manager,
Accte. Asst., Acctg Staff, & Bookkeeper

Amendments to the Cure Period Policy
Training

Eranch Manager, Officer-in-Charge,
Loan Dfficer & Internal Auditors

Easic Corporate Governance for Bank
Directors and Officers

EBaard of Director

Amendments ta the Accounting Policies
and Proceduras

Eranch Manager, Officer-in-Charge,
Eaokkeeper & Internal Auditors

Best Practices in Accounting Schedules
and Reporting

Bookkeeper

Allowance for Credit Losses Computation
and Booking Part II

President, (00, GM, CCO, Chief Internal
Auditor, Chief Loan Officer, Credit Risk
Dfficer, Branch Manager, & Executive
Assistant

AML Intermadiate Course on Institutional
Risk Assessment {IRA)} and Transaction
Manitoring

(hief Compliance Officer & (Chief
Internal Auditor

Loan Disbursement Procedure

Branch Manager & Loan Dfficer

Employment Termination: Do's and

Don'ts

HR Officer

Client Interview, Loan DOocumentztion,
and EBriefing on Loan Restructuring
Training

Eranch Manager, Officer-in-Charge,
Loan Officer, Intzrnal Auditors, &
Newly hired employeas

New Cure Period Policy and System
Enhancement

Branch Manager & Loan Officer

Credit Risk Rating

Branch Manager & Loan Dfficer

Loan Computation and Bast Practices

Eranch Manager, Officer-in-Charge,
Loan Officer, Intarnal Auwditors, &
Newly hired employaas

Rural Banking 101

President, (00, GM, CCO, Chief Internal
Auditor, Compliance Asst, & Exec. Asst.

Performance  Management,
Coaching, and Competencies

[atalytic

HR Officer

Webinar on Revenue Regulation on Easa
of Paying Tax (EOPT) Act

(hief Accountant

Internal Auditors and Compliance
Officers  Seminar/Workshop  with
discussion on Manuals and Banking
Operations

Board of Directors, President, (00, C(O,
Compliance Asst, Internal Auditors &
Exec. Asst.

Basic Coursa on Cash Dperation

Cashiers, Loan Intzrnal

Auditors

Officer,

PESO Real Time Gross Settlement (RTGS)
Forum

Chief Accountant, Accounting Assistant,
& IT Officer

Know Your Money

President, (00, GM, Officers, Branch
Manager, & Cashier

Loan Restructuring and Allowance for
Credit Losses Booking

President, (00, GM, (L0, CRO, Chief
Internal Auditor, Branch Manager, &
Exec. Asst

Palicies and Procedures Manual Write-
shop

[hiaf Compliance Officer

Anti-Money Laundering Act (AMLA)

Newly hired employees
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Through this comprehensive orientation and training program, the Bank strengthens the skills
and knowledge of its people, supports high-quality service delivery, and reinforces its
commitment to good governance, regulatory compliance, and long-term institutional growth.

Remuneration Policy

A program crafted by Gatebank formalizes the Compensation Program for Directors and
Officers. This provides clear information on the ranges of compensation provided to directors
and officers of the bank.

e Directors and the corporate secretary of the bank receive a per diem for actual
attendance at meetings. The said directors will also receive a director’'s bonus, which
will be based on the results of the bank’s operations.

e The salary structure for the top officers is based on the board-approved Compensation
Program of the bank.

On top of the salaries, the bank’s employees, including its senior management, also receive
other compensation and benefits, such as:
e Performance based incentive bonus
13th Month pay
Leaves (Vacation and Sick)
Retirement Benefits based on tenure and salary

In addition, a Service Achievement or Loyalty Award is also in place to recognize the employees
or officers who have dedicated years of service to the bank.

Retirement and Succession Policy

The normal retirement date for the bank’'s employee shall be the first day of the month that
coincides with or follows the employee’s 60th birthday. However, the employee may continue
his or her employment subject to the approval of the Board of Directors of the bank. On the
other hand, the bank does not impose a mandatory retirement age for the directors. Moreover,
independent directors, as provided under Section 132 of the Manual of Regulations for Banks
(MORB) may only serve as such for a maximum cumulative term of nine (9) years, after which
the independent director shall be perpetually barred from serving as an independent director
but may continue to serve as a regular director.

Gatebank has provided specific qualifications for an officer that will be considered the
successors of the President, Chief Operating Officer, General Manager, Compliance Officer,
Internal Auditors, Chief Accountant, and others mentioned as officers of the bank, or those
whose duties as such are defined in the by-laws, or are generally known to be the officers of
the bank (or any of its branches and offices other than the head office) either through
announcement, representation, publication, or any kind of communication made by the bank.
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For the succession of regular bank staff, a mentoring system is implemented by the
Management such that each position shall have an understudy based on the aforementioned
succession system. Gatebank develops a continuing staff development and training program
on various topics by getting resource speakers who are knowledgeable in their chosen field of
expertise. To avoid disruptions in branch operations and to systematize the procedures of the
bank, a reliever program is also adopted.

Related Party Transactions

Gatebank has adopted a comprehensive Related Party Transactions (RPT) Policy to ensure full
compliance with applicable laws, regulations, and best practices in corporate governance. The
policy is designed to uphold transparency, prevent potential conflicts of interest, and mitigate
the risk of abuse in transactions involving related parties.

To support the identification and monitoring of related parties, the Human Resource Officer
maintains a regularly updated Related Interest (RI) database, which is reviewed monthly or as
necessary. Transaction proponents are responsible for verifying whether clients or
counterparties qualify as related parties prior to transaction initiation.

All RPTs undergo evaluation by the Related Party Transactions Committee, with material
transactions—defined as those amounting to 1% or more of the Bank’s total assets based on
the most recent audited financial statements—requiring additional approvals from the Board
of Directors and, where applicable, the shareholders. Related parties involved in such
transactions must disclose their interests and are required to abstain from any deliberation or
voting on the matter to maintain objectivity and independence.
The policy outlines the minimum information required for RPT submissions, including:

e The nature of the relationship

e Transaction type and value

e Terms and conditions

e Potential risks

e Basis for pricing comparisons

Ongoing monitoring is conducted by the Internal Audit, Compliance, and Credit units to ensure
adherence to internal controls and regulatory requirements. Gatebank also promotes
accountability by encouraging employees to report any suspected abuse or unethical behavior
through its Whistleblowing Policy.

In line with its commitment to fair and prudent banking practices, Gatebank ensures that
deposit transactions with related parties follows standard interest rate. The Board of Directors
appoints the members of the RPT Committee, tasked with evaluating the fairness, transparency,
and justifiability of RPT terms.

This policy applies to any transaction where the Bank is a direct participant and the related
person has or is expected to have a material interest, whether direct or indirect. Through the
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rigorous implementation of this policy, Gatebank reinforces its dedication to responsible
governance and stakeholder trust.

Self-Assessment Function

The Compliance Unit is composed of two members: the Chief Compliance Officer (CCO) and the
CCO’s Assistant. Its core responsibility is to ensure that the Bank fully complies with all
applicable laws, regulations, and policies issued by regulatory authorities, particularly the
Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas (BSP). The Compliance Unit conducts regular compliance testing
across all branches and auditable Head Office units to ensure that the Bank’s operations remain
consistent with applicable laws, BSP regulations, and internal policies. These testing activities
follow a risk-based compliance plan and program, based on compliance risk assessments. The
plan prioritizes areas with greater regulatory exposure or operational vulnerability but also
includes periodic reviews of other units to maintain comprehensive coverage.

Through these reviews, the Compliance Unit is able to identify gaps in policy implementation,
lapses in procedure, or potential control weaknesses. It provides timely recommendations for
corrective actions and works closely with concerned units to ensure that these are properly
implemented and monitored. The Unit also offers compliance guidance when needed to help
operating units understand evolving regulatory requirements and internal standards. These
efforts contribute to the Bank’s broader goal of maintaining sound compliance practices,
strengthening operational controls, and fostering a proactive culture of accountability and
integrity throughout the organization.

The Internal Audit Department implements the Bank’'s Audit Program and reports directly to
the Audit Committee. It is led by the Chief Internal Auditor, supported by a team of four (4)
internal auditors, maintaining a ratio of one auditor for every two (2) branches. The Internal
Audit Team conducted scheduled and risk-based audits in accordance with the approved
Annual Audit Plan, covering ten (10) operating branches and eight (8) auditable units at the
Head Office. These reviews assessed the adequacy, effectiveness, and efficiency of the Bank’s
internal control system, with recommendations for improvements provided where necessary.

Audit observations were formally reported to the Audit Committee during its regular meetings,
in accordance with the Internal Audit Charter and established reporting protocols. Each report
included a detailed summary of noted control deficiencies, process lapses, or compliance
issues, along with corresponding recommendations for corrective actions, preventive
measures, and opportunities for operational improvement. Management responses and
timelines for implementation were also reviewed to ensure accountability and timely
resolution of audit findings.

The internal audit process remains a critical component of the Bank's governance structure. It
provides the Board and Senior Management with an independent and objective assessment of
the Bank's risk management practices, internal controls, and operational efficiency. Through
regular audit engagements, the Internal Audit Department helps reinforce operational
discipline, improve process integrity, and identify emerging risks. More importantly, the
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insights generated from audit reviews support the continuous enhancement of internal systems
and controls, contributing to the Bank’s long-term sustainability and continuous strengthening
of its governance practices.

Both the Compliance Unit and the Internal Audit Department regularly present their findings
and accomplishment reports to the Board of Directors, based on their respective approved
annual plans. These presentations serve as a vital component of the Bank’'s governance
oversight process, allowing the Board to assess the effectiveness of internal controls, ensure
compliance with regulatory requirements, and monitor the implementation of risk
management measures across all operational units. Through these sessions, the Board is able
to identify control gaps, process inefficiencies, or compliance issues that may require corrective
action or policy improvement. Discussions also provide an avenue to evaluate emerging risks,
propose enhancements to internal policies and procedures, and reinforce accountability at all
levels of the organization. This ongoing feedback mechanism contributes meaningfully to the
continuous strengthening of the Bank’s internal governance environment.

Corporate Social Responsibility

Gatebank places strong emphasis on Corporate Social
Responsibility (CSR) and actively collaborates with both
government and private institutions to support poverty
alleviation and rural development. The Bank is dedicated to
expanding access to microfinance and social development
services, particularly for entrepreneurial individuals from
low-income communities, helping them improve their
economic standing and overall quality of life.

As part of its commitment to
youth development, Gatebank
offers on-the-job training (0JT) opportunities for graduating
college students from various schools across Bulacan, providing
them with hands-on experience in banking operations and
enhancing their employability. The Bank likewise supports work
immersion programs for senior high school students, aligned with
the K-12 curriculum, to expose them to real-world working
environments and develop career readiness at an early stage.
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In pursuit of financial inclusion, the Bank conducted Financial Literacy Seminars for
elementary, high school, and college students within its service areas. These sessions aimed
to build foundational financial skills—such as saving, budgeting, and responsible borrowing,
empowering young individuals to make sound financial decisions
and become financially literate citizens.

Gatebank also remains proactive in environmental sustainability.
In 2024, the Bank completed the installation of solar panels at its
Head Office, marking a deliberate shift toward renewable energy
and greener operations. In addition, the Bank continues its
implementation of color-coded waste bins across all branches
and offices to promote proper waste segregation and instill
environmentally responsible habits among employees and
clients.

In response to national calamities, Gatebank extended humanitarian support through
donations to communities affected by recent typhoons. Relief assistance included food packs,
clean water, and basic necessities, demonstrating the Bank's responsiveness and compassion
in times of crisis.

Through these diverse and meaningful initiatives, Gatebank affirms its role not only as a
trusted rural financial institution, but also as a socially responsible partner committed to
sustainability, inclusive development, and community upliftment.

Consumer Protection Practice

Gatebank places high value on its customers and is committed to delivering exceptional
banking service built on more than two decades of experience. In line with this commitment,
the Bank has implemented the Consumer Assistance and Management System (CAMS) to
enhance customer satisfaction and ensure a seamless service experience. This system is
designed to receive, document, and resolve customer concerns, complaints, and compliments,
with the goal of continuously improving service delivery and promoting transparency in all
banking transactions.

The Consumer Assistance Group, in coordination with Branch Managers, is tasked with handling
customer issues. Customers may raise concerns through personal interactions at the branch or
via the Bank’s dedicated contact numbers, ensuring accessibility across multiple channels.
Feedback and resolution suggestions are provided to customers within a prescribed timeframe,
reinforcing Gatebank's commitment to responsive and customer-focused service.

Over-all responsibility of Board and Senior Management:

The Board of Directors has ultimate responsibility for the Bank's consumer protection
framework. It approves the consumer protection policies and ensures that these are effectively
implemented across all business units. The Board also oversees the performance of Senior
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Management in managing consumer-related risks and promoting a culture of fairness,
transparency, and accountability in all customer interactions.

As part of its oversight role, the Board ensures that consumer protection is integrated into the
Bank’s strategic direction, governance structure, and risk management systems. It regularly
reviews reports on policy implementation, emerging consumer issues, and overall compliance
with regulatory expectations.

Senior Management is accountable for the day-to-day execution of the Board-approved
consumer protection policies. This includes aligning operations with applicable regulations,
ensuring that staff are trained and guided by internal standards, and that systems are in place
to address customer concerns promptly and effectively. Senior Management also ensures that
customer welfare principles are embedded in product design, service delivery, complaints
handling, and staff conduct.

Together, the Board and Senior Management ensure that the Bank’'s consumer protection
framework remains proactive, responsive, and aligned with both regulatory requirements and
customer needs.

Dividend Policy
The bank may distribute dividends to stockholders, in either cash, stock, or both, in compliance
with the policies and relevant rules and regulations of the BSP, provided that the excess
earnings at the end of each fiscal year are first allocated to:

a. A capital retirement fund to provide for the gradual retirement of the government
equity investment in the bank, if any, in the manner and at such rate as the Rural
Bank Act and the implementing rules and regulations of the Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas
may provide;

b. Establishing and maintaining a reserve for bad and/or doubtful accounts, for
retirement of officers and employees, for future expansion, and for any other
contingencies;

c. Replenishing any impairment to its capital.

Overview of Environmental and Social Risk Management
System

Gatebank recognizes that climate change, along with broader environmental and social (E&S)
risks, presents long-term challenges that may impact its operations, financial performance,
and overall sustainability. In light of this, the Board of Directors and Senior Management are
committed to embedding sustainability principles across the Bank’s governance structure, risk
management framework, strategic direction, and day-to-day operations.
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The Bank is proactively cultivating a culture of environmental and social responsibility,
strengthening its internal capabilities to identify, assess, and manage climate-related and
EGS risks. These efforts include enhancing organizational awareness, integrating E&S
considerations into existing risk processes, and promoting resilience across all levels of the
institution.

Gatebank also recognizes the importance of incorporating both current and emerging
environmental and social risks—such as shifting weather patterns, extended droughts, and
other climate-induced disruptions—into its strategic planning. By deepening its understanding
of physical and transition risks, the Bank aims to responsibly support priority sectors such as
agriculture, housing, and micro, small, and medium enterprises (MSMEs) through sustainable
and inclusive financing solutions.

Loans Subject to E and S Risk Exposure as of December 31, 2024

Loan Product Current Past Due Total
Performing | Mon-Performing

Agn-agra

&. Agranan Feform Credit
Loan B8 1488094041 | B 300,00000 | & 137368070 | & 16,554, 755.11

b. Other Agnculiural Credst
Loan i 5oL | 8 05875 8 BA2XEG |8 o1,808,340.14
Microfnance 95,434 59 43 451 54 45,622 92 184, 519.15
SME Loans

a. Small Enerprise 150,337 26162 4,247 462 80 25,186,849.80 179,773,504 22

b. Medum Enierprze 140 586,637 53 16,517 64915 157,084,286 .68
Other Loan 120,393,777 32 2,534, 19.92 19,655,836.45 142 584 40569

Total 4 479219 167 80 | & 714667501 | & 71,624,058 18 | & 557 989,900 99
% to Total Loan
Partfolio 85.88% 1.28% 12.84% 100.00%:
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Corporate Information

ORGANIZATIONAL STRUCTURE

Name of Officer Position
1. Mercedes S. Coloma President
2. Rosario SP. San Pedro Chief Operating Officer
3. Abigail P. Carillo Chief Compliance Officer
L. Marvin Joseph S. Gutierrez Chief Internal Auditor
5. Diana Marie DG. De Jesus Chief Accountant
6. Joel H. Marcelo Credit Risk Officer
7. Camille G. Sendin General Manager
8. Paolo M. Galvez Chief Loan Officer
9. Anabelle C. Ramos Branch Manager

10. Alyanna Marie M. Rubio

Officer-in-Charge

11. Catherine N. Matias

Branch Manager

12. Ferdinand A. de Guzman

Branch Manager

13. Florianne S. Garcia

Branch Manager

14. Hannah C. Victoria

Officer-in-Charge

15. Hermie F. Mendoza

Branch Manager

16. Jastine Bea L. Vargas

Branch Manager

17. Arlene S. Ignacio

Branch Manager

18. Roselle S. Aurelio

Branch Manager

LIST OF THE BANK'S MAJOR STOCKHOLDERS

Percentage

Percentage

Name of the Stockholder  Nationality ~ of (S Voting of PS Voting
. Status p Status
Ownership Ownership
Jerry B. Coloma Jr. Filipino 22.00% Voting 50.01% Non-voting
Mercedes S. Coloma Filipino 22.00% Voting 49.99% Non-voting
Jerry S. Coloma III Filipino 14.00% Voting
Jeremy Rose (. Lomibao Filipino 14.00% Voting
Jeanne Charmagne (. Ebert Filipino 14.00% Voting
Jeditte Margaret S. Coloma Filipino 14.00% Voting
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LIST OF BANKING UNITS

Bank Office
Head Office

Balagtas Branch

Bustos Branch
Pandi Branch
Pulilan Branch
SJOM Branch
Malolos Branch
San Ildefonso
Branch

San Rafael Branch

Norzagaray Branch

Plaridel Branch

(ontact Persons

Location

Ms. Rosario SP. San Pedro - C00  2* Floor, Gatebank Bldg, Mac
Ms. Camille G. Sendin - General Arthur  Highway, Balagtas,

Manager

Ms. Anabelle . Ramos

Ms. Alyanna Marie M. Rubio
Ms. Catherine N. Matias

Mr. Ferdinand A. de Guzman
Ms. Florianne S. Garcia

Ms. Hannah C. Victoria

Ms. Hermie F. Mendoza

Ms. Jastine Bea L. Vargas
Ms. Arlene S. Ignacio

Ms. Roselle S. Aurelio

Bulacan

Ground Floor, Gatebank Bldg,
Mac Arthur Highway, Balagtas,
Bulacan

Gen. Alejo Santos Highway,
Poblacion, Bustos, Bulacan
Sergio Osmena Street, Poblacion,
Pandi, Bulacan

National Road, Poblacion, Pulilan,
Bulacan

Poblacion 1, City of San Jose Del
Monte, Bulacan

Paseo del Congreso, (atmon, ity
of Malolos, Bulacan

(agayan Valley Road, San Juan,
San Ildefonso, Bulacan

(ruz na Daan, San Rafael, Bulacan

M. Palad Street, Poblacion,
Norzagaray, Bulacan

(agayan Valley Road, Banga 1st,
Plaridel, Bulacan

OUR WEBSITE

1 SR

Company Profie

~ (ontact Numbers
(044) 802 5717/

0947 897 0780/

0947 899 6033

(04) 802 5717/ 0998
843 8652

(044) 617 0766/ 0998
8469709

(044) 769 1062/
0916 694 0700
(04&) 769 9201/
0922 802 0226
(044) 913 5336/
0998 972 5230
(044) 794 9820/
0998 975 2473
(044) 797 0749/
0998 982 8915
(044) 815 6188/
0922 846 8102
(04&) 815 8480/
0932 867 5748
(044) 794 3819/
0998 985 8095

https://gatebank.com.ph

b | 02
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PRODUCTS AND SERVICES

« Deposits

Regular Savings Deposit

Young Saver’s Account
Time Deposit
Current Account

= ;“:' - Foreign Currency Deposit
| with Passbook

o« Loans

Loan Products
Agricultural Loans

Commercial Loan

Industrial Loan
Salary Loan

Other/Personal/Consumption
Loans

e Other Services

Gatebank, in partnership with ECPay, lets you pay your bills in the most

Minimum deposit of One Thousand Pesos (P 1,000.00)
Minimum deposit of One Hundred Pesos (P100.00)
Minimum deposit of Five Thousand Pesos (P 5,000.00)
Minimum deposit of Three Thousand Pesos (P 3,000.00),
with no interest;

Inward checks are included in Metro Manila clearing
Minimum deposit of One Hundred US Dollars (US $100)

Description/Projects
Construction of farm building, Corn Production, Duck
Raising, Feeds Dealership, Fish Production, Fruits
dealership, Fertilizer dealership, Hog Production/Piggery
business, Palay production, Palay Trading, Poultry
Production, Purchase of farm equipment, Vegetable
production, Vegetable dealership and Others
Business engaged in trading, trader - millers, buy - and -
selling operators, fish - livestock - vegetable stores,
hardware stores, pharmaceutical and medical stores,
commercial malls and establishments, buildings, stores,
commercial malls and establishments, and service
services.
Mills, manufacturing, warehouses, welding, construction
and machine shops, farm tractor fabrication and design
shops, etc.
Travel, Household, Other personal consumption and
Others.
House construction/renovation, Purchase of vehicle,
Payment of hospital bills and Others

a. Pay your bills at Gatebank Powered by ECPAY
ec»>

convenient, reliable, and easiest way. Pay your electric and water utilities,
postpaid mobile phone, loans, insurance, cables, and internet through ECPay at

any of the ten (10) branches of Gatebank.

LN b, Social Security System Collecting agents for member's contributions and loan

payments

40



Capital Structure & Capital
Adequacy

Gatebank's Capital Adequacy Ratio (CAR) as of December 2024 stood at 15.93%, well above the Bangko
Sentral ng Pilipinas (BSP) minimum requirement of 10%. This reflects the Bank's strong capital position
and its ability to absorb potential losses, demonstrating that its capital is sufficient to support its
current level of risk-weighted assets.

(apital Stock  Authorized Subscribed Paid-up
Common 80,000,000.00 64,725,000.00 64,725,000.00
Preferred 25,000,000.00 7,000,000.00  3,250,000.00
Total 105,000,000.00 71,725,000.00 67,975,000.00
BSP Report Audited FS
2024 | 2023 2024 2023
A. |Calculations of Qualifying Capital
1|Tier 1 Capital
Common Equity Tier 1 Capital 182,469,528 186,109,544 189,794 793 186,303,860
Deduction from Tier 1 Capital 13,985,594 17,175,911 15,430,388 14019,725
Total Tier 1 Capital 168,483,934 168,933,632 174,364,410 172,284,135
Common Equity Tier 1 Capital Ratio 15.26% 15.04% 15.72% 15.38%
Tier 1 Capital Ratio 15.26% 15.04% 1572% 1538%
2 |Tier 2 Capital
Paid-up Perpetual and Cumulative Preferred Stock 3,250,000 3,250,000 3,250,000 3,250,000
General Loan Loss Provision 4,195,260 4,637,720 4,195,260 4637720
Unsecured Subordinated Debt - - -
Sub-total 7,445 260 7,887,720 7,445 260 7,887,720
Deduction from Tier 2 Capital - - - -
Total Tier 2 Capital 7,445,260 7,887,720 7,445,260 7,887,720
Total Qualifying Capital [Sum of 1 and 2] 175,929,194 176,821,353 181,809,670 180,171,855
B. | Calculation of Risk-Weighted Assets
1| Total Credit Risk-Weighted Assets 990,717,541 1,015,065 468 995,389,525 1,012 045954
2| Total Market Risk-Weighted Assets
3| Total Operational Risk-Weighted Assets 113,458,173 107,844 657 113,458,173 107,844,657
Total Risk-Weighted Assets [Sum of 1, 2 and 3] 1,104,175,714 1,122,910,125 1,108,847,698 1,119,890,611
C. |Risk-Based Capital Adequacy Ratio [A divied by B] 15.93% 15.75% 16.40% 16.09%

* The above (AR differs from the (AR reported to the Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas (BSP) as compared to the Audited Financial
Statements (AFS) due to adjustments related to deferred tax assets, leases, and liabilities, which impacted both the total

qualifying capital and the risk-weighted assets. *
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Financial Statements of

Gateway Rural Bank

Incorporated

December 24 and

[MiJiope Loranjo Bate & Co., cPAS

A member firm of the Leading Edge dlliance Glabal

STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY
FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The management of Gateway Rural Bank Incorporated is responsible for the preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements including the schedules attached therein for fhe December 31,
2024 and 2023 in accordance with the prescribed financial reporting framework indicated therein, and
for such internal condrol as management determines is necessary io enable the preparation of fhe
financial statements that are free from material missiatement, whether due to fraud or ermor.

In preparing fhe financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to
continue as a going concem, disclosing, as applicable matters related to going concermn and using the
going concem basis of accounfing unless management either intends io Bguidate the Company or to
cease operabons, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors (Trustees) is responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting
Process.

The Board of Directors (Trustees) reviews and approves the financial statements including the
schedules attached therein, and submits the same to the shareholders of the Company.

Lope Laranjo Balo & Co., CPAs, fhe independent auditors appointed by the Boand of Directors have
audited the financial stalements of the company in accordance with Philippine Standands on Auditing,
and in their reports fo the Board of Directors, have expressed their opinions on the faimess of
presentation upon completion of such audits.

'
Signature: Cy_nﬂ'l_g T. ?ﬁ

(Chairman of the Board

My

Signature: A
President

Signed this B day of April 2025



Lore Laranso Bato & Co.
Certified Public Accountants
(4 Member Firm of the Leading Edge Alliance Global)
2F Baw Buiiding, Coastal Road, Zowe |, Kanswagan
9000 Philippines
, (+63)917.702-4175 & (+ 6399857 1.5654
and junbute Uil gmail com
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leading edge alfiance
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Branches: REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

Metro Mantha Offsce
Dkt 527 South St Maza
Oursetia ighwa
psretr—t i The Shareholders and Board of Director
—_—
Gateway Rural Bank Incorporated

Cebu Branch

Prow's Accrediaticns:

BOA Acciecsintion ho. 4358
Vet unts Saphwmbes 13 2037

B Accimcirion No. 15006725-000-2023
Vet urtt Japtambes 9. 2036

BC Group C Acciedichion Ho. £338-58C
Veties el Prancics Audt) 2028

BSF Group B Acoeciaton No. 4358857
Vil vt Pnancics Aucst 2005

CDA CEA Accimeiion Wo. 120-AF

Valict urtt Decwmber 10, 3034

Gatebank Bldg, Borol 1% Mac Arthur Highway
Balagtas, Bulacan, Philippines

/0 Beyes & Sats Comniting Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
T R e, G
Mantass Chy L0146

Previnen Qpinion
el o d We have audited the financial statements of Gateway Rural Bank Incorporated, which comprise the

Davae Branch

statements of financial position as at December 31, 2024 and 2023, and the related statements of

see 21t armek wannmee  COMprehensive income, statements of changes in equity, and statements of cash flows for the years
B e Twees then ended, and notes to financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

Col (463 928- 7233317

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects. the

Hutuan Branch

financial position of Gateway Rural Bank Incorporated as at December 31, 2024 and 2023, and of its

27 MeACA B
Tikipn b o™ financial performance and its cash flows for the years then ended, in accordance with Philippine

e Financial Reporting Standards (PFRSs).

Col: [463) 9171133320

Ozamiz Branch Basis for Opinion

T We conducted our audits in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing (PSAs). Our
mrecrrog Lol responsiiities under those standards are further described in Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Bank in accordance with
Malaybalay Branch the Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants in the Philippines (Code of Ethics), together with the
e e ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements, and we have fulfiled our
ors-csn s (L other ethical mwnshlhes_m accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit

frem—
Tol N (0015643621

Malaysatay Oty.

bortoe o el i we have obtained s ient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

e esiesune  ReSpONSIbiltieS of t and Those with Govemance for the Financial Statements
Lot Sy Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
el No_ 0e2esTaInL accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRSs) and for such internal control as

Coli: (+65) 929-400%-091

management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free

siqutjor Branch from material misstatement, whether due 1o fraud or emor.

Siguerm
Cat Mo {+43) $43-2196-101

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Bank's ability to

continue as a going concem, disclosing, as applicable, matiers related to going concern and using the
going concem basis of accounting unless management either intends o liquidate the Bank or to cease

operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

LS & Co.

.2-

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Bank's financial reporting

process.
Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of Financial Statements

Our objective is to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements, as a
whoe, are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditors’ report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with PSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with PSAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate fo provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a matenial misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resuiting from error, as fraud may invoive collusion,
forgery, intenfional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control;

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropniate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Bank’s internal control;

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management:

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concem basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Bank's
ability fo confinue as a going concem. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attenfion in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, fo
meodify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or condiions may cause the
Bank o cease to confinue as a going concem; and

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in intemal control that we identify during our audit.
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Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial
statements aken as a whole. The supplementary information required by the Bangko Sentral
ng Pilipinas (BSP) and by the Bureau of Intemal Revenue (BIR) as disclosed in Notes 26 and
28, to the financial statements is presented for purposes of filing with the Bangko Sentral ng
Pilipinas (BSP) and with the Bureau of Internal Revenue (BIR) and is not a required part of the
basic financial statements. Such supplementary information is the responsibility of Gateway
Rural Bank Incorporated and has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in our
audit of the basic financial statements. In our opinion, the supplementary information is fairly
stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.

In compliance with Revenue Reguiations V-20, we are siating that we are not related by
consanguinity or affinity to the President, Manager, or any shareholder of the Bank.

Report on the niary Information Required by Revised SRC Ruie 68

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial
statements taken as a whole. The supplementary information on the reconcikation of retained
eamings avaiable for dividend declaration as required by the Securities and E

Commission (SEC) under the Revised Securities Regulation Code (SRC) Rule 68 is presented
for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial statements.
Such information is the responsibility of Gateway Rural Bank incorporated. The information in
such supplementary schedule has been subjected fo the auditing procedures applied in the
audit of basic financial statements. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated, in all material
respects, when considered in relation fo the basic financial statlements taken as a whole.

LOPE LARANJO BATO & Co.

Nsob

@%ov L. BATO, J
Manajieng Partner

CPA Cert. No. 73964
TIN 102-081-516
BIR Accreditation No. 16-006925-001-2023, valid until September 29, 2026
SEC Group C Accreditation No. 73964, valid until Financial Audit 2025
BSP Group B Accreditation No. 73964, valid until Financial Audit 2025
PTR No. 6207502A, January 2, 2025, Cagayan de Oro City, Phiippines

April 8, 2025
Cagayan de Oro City, Philippines
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STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Gateway Rural Bank Incorporated

Amaunts in Phiippine Paso
Decamber 31 Maolas 2024 2023
ASSETS

Cash 4 369,026,559 320,405,000
Loans and Receivables 5 579,083,016 641,480,254
Bank Premises, Furniture and Equipment 5 42,319,906 38,296,933
Investment Properties 7 67,982,713 86,783,057
Other Assets 8 40,041,433 36,294 579
Total Assets 1,098.455,629 1123250823
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS® EQUITY

Deposit Liabilities 1 802,053,303 807,014,270
Bills Payable " 37,610,417 63,216,467
Retirement Benefits Obligation 2 11,766,810 11,083 352
Finance Lease Liability 7 28,624,089 31,419,927
Other Liabilities i 27,186,381 20,871,947
Total Liabilities 907,243,000 933,705,963
Shareholders’ Equity 191,212,629 189 553,860
Total Liabilities and Shareholders' E 1 629 1123250873

See Notes fo Financial Stafements.



STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Gateway Rural Bank Incorporated Gateway Rural Bank Incorporated
Amounts in Phiippine Paso Amounts in Phifipping Peso
Years Ended Dacember 31 Notas 2024 2023 December 31 MNolgs 2024 2023
INTEREST INCOME 16 SHARE CAPITAL % 67,973,000 B7.175.000
On loans and receivables 71,674,382 71,396,708
On bank deposits and investments ¢ 761,924 146,044 POST-EMPLOYMENT DEFINED BENEFIT RESERVE =~ 12 (1,832,169) (1.832,169)
Total Interest Income 72,436,306 71,542,752
SURPLUS FREE
INTEREST EXPENSE 17 21,530,589 23,268,093 Balance at beginning of year 116,904,780 86,615,537
Profit for the year 6.868.723 31,088.777
NET INTEREST INCOME 50,905,717 48274658 Appropriation to surplus 15 - (2.240,192)
Adjustmeris 15 (6,009,954 1,440,658
OTHER INCOME 18 27.223 484 65611.818 Balance at end of year 117,763,549 116,904.780
INCOME BEFORE IMPAIRMENT LOSS 78,129,201 113,886,477 SURPLUS RESERVE 15
Balance at beginning of year 7.306.249 5066057
IMPAIRMENT GAIN (LOSS) 9 2,982,394 (4874515) Appropriation for the year . C 2,240,192
Balance at end of year 7.306.249 7.306.24%
INCOME AFTER IMPAIRMENT LOSS 81,111,595 109,011,962
191,212,629 189,553,860
OPERATING EXPENSES 18 72,331,453 67,587,623 Sea Notes to Financial Statements.
PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX 8,780,142 41424339
INCOME TAX EXPENSE L 1,911,419 10,335,562
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 6,868,723 31.088.777
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
ltems that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or
foss:
Lossonr of post-employ 12 - (211.831)
Tax benefit - 52,958
Other comprehensive income — net of tax - (158.873)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 6,868,723 30.929.904
EARNINGS PER SHARE 2 10.10 46.28

Sea Notes fo Financial Statements.



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Gateway Rural Bank Incorporated
Amaunts in Philippine Peso

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Gateway Rural Bank Incorporated

Amounts in Phiippine Peso

‘fears Ended Dacember 31 Nalss 2024 2023

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit before income tax 8,780,142 4144 330

Adpustments for:
Prior period expenses 15 (3,803) (2,638)
Depreciafion and amorfizafion 19 8,205,6M1 9,256 461
Gain on disposal if nvestment properties 18 (28,415,598) (15.902,178)
Reversal for allowance 18 - (27,794,326)
Impairment (gain) loss 9 (2,982,394) 4874515
Refirement benefit expense 19 1,251,601 404,784
Post-employment defined benefit 12 - {211,831)

Changes in operating resources and Eabiifies:
Decrease in loans and receivables 5 37,573,763 12,425 969
Decrease (increase) in ofher assels B 882,255 11,129,546)
Decrease in deposit liabilities 0 (4,960,967) (27,196,876)
(Decrease) increase in refirement benefits obligation 12 (366,142) 2,794 931
Increase in other Eabiifies 14 6.214.434 B38.979

Cash generated (for) from operation 45,078,984 (417.417)

Inceme tax paid f's.];i (6,540,529) (3.743,887)

Net Cash (for) from Operating Activiies 30,438,455 (7.161.284)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Additions to bank premises, funiture and equipment [} (9,823,537) {1,315,972)

Adjustments and disposals of bank premises, fumniture and 615

equipment y (66,377) (518,751)

Additions to investment properties 7 (21,612,806) (14,600, 790)

Proceeds from disposals of investment properfies T 68,269,712 48140738

Net Cash from Investing Activities 36,766,992 3N T4 2%

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Payments of bills payable-net i1 (235,606,050 (59,442 483)

Finance lease 13 (2,795,838) (2.561,990)

Proceeds from issuance of commen shares 800,000 -

Net Cash for Financing Activities (27,601,888) (62,004,473

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH 48,623,559 (37 451,531)

CASH AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 4 320,405,000 357,856,531

CASH AT END OF YEAR 4 369,028,339 320.403,000

Saa Notes o Financial Statements.

Note 1
SGenera Information

Organizaiion

Gateway Rural Bank Incorporated (the Bank) was incorporated and registered with the Securities and
exchange Commission (SEC) on February 14, 1957, with SEC Registration No. A198702071. The Bank
is presenfly engaged in rural banking opesations. It is extending rural credit to small farmers and tenants
and fio desenving rural industries or enterprises. As a rural bank, it exercises all authorities and power,
doing and performing all acts, and transacting all business, which may be allowed for nural bank under
and in accordance with the Republic Act No. 7353 (Rural Banks Act of 1282), including all things
incidental thereto and necessary and proper in connection with said purposes within such territory, as
may be determined by the Monetary Board of the Bangko Senfral ng Piipinas (BSP).

Bank Address

The Bank's registered office, which is also its principal place of business, is located at Gatebank
Building, Borol 1%, Mac Arthur, Highway, Balagias, Bulacan, Philippines. It has 10 branches namely,
Balagias, Bustos, Pandi, Pulilan, San Jose Del Monte, Malolos, San Bdefonso, San Rafael, Morzagaray,
and Plaridel.

Approval of the Financial Statements
The financial statements of the: Bank for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 were aufhorized

for issue by the Bank's Board of Directors (BOD) on Apiil 8, 2025,

Naote 2
Summarv of Significant Accounting Policies
The significant accounting policies that have been used in the preparation of these financial statements

are summarized below. The policies have been consistently applied to all fhe year presented, unless
otherwise stated.

{00 OF Hinayicd dlemenis

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis except for financial
assets and financial kabilities at fair value through profit or loss (FWTPL) and financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive income (FYOCH) that have been measured at fair valwe. The financial
statements are presented in Philippine peso, which is the Bank's funconal and presentafion curency. Al
values are rounded fo the nearest peso uniess ofherwise stated.

The financial statements provide comparative: informafion in respect of the previous period.

Statement of Compliance

The financial statements of the Bank have been prepared in accordance with Philippine Financial
Reporfing Standards (PFRSs). PFRSs includes statements named PFRSs and Philippine Accounting
Standards (PAS). and interpretations of the Philippine Interpretations Commitiee (PIC), Standing
InterpretaBions Committee (SIC) and International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee
(IFRIC) which have been approved by the Financial Reporfing Standards Council (FRSC) and adopied
by SEC.
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Cha in Accou Policies
The Bank's accounting policies are consistent with those of the previous financial year, except for the
adopfion of the following new accounting pronouncements effective as at January 1, 2024,

Unless otherwise indicated, the adoption of these new standards did not have an impact on the financial
statements of the Bank.

[Effective beginning on or after January 1. 2024
= Amendments to PAS 1 Classification of Liabiiies as Current or Non-current

The amendments to PAS 1 are the following:

+ clarify fhat the classification of liabdities as cument or non-cument should be based on
rights that are in existence at the end of the reparting penod and align the wording in
all affected paragraphs to refer to the "rght” to defer setiement by at least twelve:
months and make explicit that only rights in place "at the end of the reporfing period”
should affect the dassification of a liability;

» clarify that classificaion is unaffected by expectations about whether an entity will
exercise its right to defer sefflement of a Eabiity; and

= make clear that setilement refers to the transfer to the counterparty of cash, equity
instruments, other assets or services.

+ Amendmenis to PFRS 16 Leases—| ease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback

The amendments to PFRS 16 add subsequent measurement requirements for sale and
leaseback transactions that safisfy the requirements in PFRS 13 Revenue from Confracis with
Cusbomers o be accounted for as a sale. The amendments reguire the seller-lessee to
determine ‘lease payments' or ‘revised lease payments” such that fhe seller-lessee does not
recognize a gain or loss that relates to the right of use retained by the seller-lessee, afier the
commencement date.

The amendments do not affect the gain or loss recognized by fhe seller-lessee relafing to the
partial or full termination of a lease. Without these new requirements. a seller-lessee may have
recognized a gain on the right of use it retains solely because of a remeasurement of the lease
liability (for example, following a lease modification or change in the lease term) applying the
general requirements in PFRS 16. This could have been particularly the case in a leaseback
that includes variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or rate.

A seller-lessee applies the amendments retrospectively in accordance with PAS B io sale and
leaseback transactions entered into after the date of inifial application, which is defined as the
beginning of the annual reporting pesiod in which the enfity first appied PFRS 16.

» Amendments to PAS 7, Statement of Cash Flows and PFRS 7, Financial Instruments:
Discosures — Supplier Finance Arrangements

The amendment to PAS 7 requires an enfity (fhe buyer) to disclose qualitative and quantitative
informafion about its supplier finance arangements, such as ferms and conditions — including,
fior example, extended payment terms and secunty or guarantees provided.

Amaongst ofher characieristics, PAS 7 explains that a supplier finance arangement provides the
enfity with extended payment terms, or the entity's suppliers with early payment erms,
compared to the related invoice payment due date.

.3
Standards and Interprefation Issued but Not Yet Effective

Pronouncements issued but not yet effective are Esbed below. Unless otherwise indicated, the Bank
does not expect that the future adopdion of the said pronouncements will have a significant impact on
its financial statements. The Bank intends fo adopt the following pronouncements when they
become effective.

Effective beginning on or after January 1, 2025
« PFRS 17, Insurance Confracts
= Amendment to PFRS 17, "Initial Application of PFRS 17 and PFRS 9 - Comparative
Informafion”

An enfity shall apply PFRS 17 refrospectively unless impracticable, except that an entity is not
resquired fo present the quantitative information required by paragraph 28{f) of PAS 8
Accounting Polbicies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors and an entity shall not apply
the: option in paragraph B115 for penods before the date of inifial application of PFRS 17. If,
and only if, it is impracticable, an entity shall apply either the modified refrospective approach
or the fair valee approach.

The above standards are not applicable to the Bank since the Bank does not have activities
that are predominanfy connected with insurance or issue insurance confracts.

On December 15, 2021, the FRSC amended the mandatory efiective date of PFRS 17 from
January 1, 2023 to January 1. 2025. This is consistent with Circutar Letter No. 2020462 issued
by the: Insurance Commission which deferred the implementation of PFRS 17 by two (2) years
after its effective date as decided by the 1ASB.

PFRS 17 is effective for annual pericds beginning on of after January 1. 2025. Early
application is permitted for entiies that apply PFRS 9 Financial Instruments and PFRS 15
Revenue from Contracts with Customers on or before the date of initial applicaon of PFRS 17.

Effective beginning on or after January 1, 2026
= Amendments to PFRS 9 and PFRS 7 "Amendments to the Classification and Measurement of
Financial Instruments”
. Amud Improvements to PFRS Accounting Standards—Volume 11
Amendments to PFRS 1, Hedge Accounting by a First-ime Adopter
= Amendments to PFRS 7, Gain or Loss on Derecognition
= Amendments fo PFRS 9, Lessee Derecognition of Lease Liabiities and Transacfion
Price
= Amendments fo PFRS 10, Determination of a ‘'De Facto Agent
= Amendments to PAS 7, Cost Method

Effective beginning on or after January 1, 2027
= PFRS 19 "Subsidiaries without Public Accountability: Disclosures”
+ PFRS 18 "Presentation and Disclosure in Financial Statements”

Deferred effectivity
« Amendments to PFRS 10, Consolidated Financial Statements,
= PAS 28, Sale or Contribution of Assets between an investor and its Associate or Joint Venture;
and

The Bank continues to assess the impact of the above new and amended accounting standards and
intespretafions when these become effective. Addiional disclosures required by these amendments
will be included in the financial statements when these amendments are adopled.



e

Accounting policies currently being used are as follows:

Lash

Cash and cash equivalents include cash and other cash items, due from BSP and due from other banks
include cash on hand, savings, and demand deposits and short-term, highly liquid investments with
original maturities of three months or less, readily convertible o known amount of cash and which are
subject to insignificant risk of changes in value. Due from BSP includes the statutory reserves required
by the BSP which the Bank considers as cash equivalents as withdrawals can be made to meet the
Bank's cash requirements as allowed by the BSP.

Linancial Assets
Financial assets are recognized only when the Bank becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the financial statements.

Financial assets are classified based on their cash flow istics and the b
model for hokding the instruments. Financial assets are initially measured at fair value plus transaction
costs, except FVPL. Financial assets classified as FVPL are initially at fair value; {

costs are expensed immediately.

Financial assets that are debt instruments

Financial assets measured at Fair Value through Profit or Loss (FVPL)
A ial asset shall be d at fair vaiue through profit or loss, except in the following cases:
« The financial asset is part of a hedging reationship, in which case, the provisions of PFRS 9
on fhe hedge accounting shall apply,
o The financial asset is measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI); or
o The financial asset that is a debt instrument is measured at amortized cost.

Financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss shall consists of the following:

i Financial assets heid for trading (HFT), which include stand-alone and/or embedded
derivatives, except a derivative that is a financial guarantee contract or designated and
effective hedging instruments, as defined in PFRS 9;

Financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss (DFVPL) as defined in
PFRS 9.

The Bank may, at initial ition, i bly designate financial assets that are debt
instruments as measured at fair value through profit or loss in accordance with the
condition mentioned under PFRS 9, subject to the following requirements:

« Bank shall have in place appropriate risk management systems including refated

nisk 0 policies, proced controis; and
o Bank shall apply the fair value option only to insiruments for which fair values can
be reliably estimated.

m

Other financial assets which are mandatorily measured at fair value through profit or loss
(MMFVPL) refers to financial assets that are required to be measured at fair value through
profit or loss under PFRS 9, other than those that are HFT and DFVPL.

Financial assets at Fair Vaiue through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCI)
A financial asset measured at FVOCI shall meet both of the folowing condifions:
o The financial asset is held within a business mode! whose objective is achieving by both
collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets; and
o The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest (SPP1) on the principal amount outstanding.

e

Financial assets measured &t amortized cosf
A financial asset that is a debt instrument, other than those that are designated a fair value through
jprofit or kess, which meet both of the following conditions:
»  The financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets
in onder fo collect contractual cash flows; and
+ The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal amount outstanding.

Financial s5sets that &re instriments

Financial assets that are equity instuments shall be classified under any of fhe following calegories:
a. Financial assets measured at fair value through profit or kess which shall include financial
assets HFT,

b. Financial assets at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCH) which shall
consists of:

i Financial asset designated at fair value through other comprehensive income
{DFVOCI). Bank may, at initial recognition, imevocably designate financial assets that
are equity instruments that are neither held for frading nor confingent consideration
recognized by an acquirer in a business combination to which PFRS 3 applies, as
measwed at far value frough other comprehensive income.

Financial assets mandatorily measured at fair value. This includes investment in an
equity instrument, previously accounted at cost per PAS 39, which does not have a
quoted pace in an active market for an identical instrument.

Impaimment of Financial Assets

The Bank uses an expected credit loss (ECL) moded in measuring credit impairment, in accordance with
the provisions of PFRS 9. In this respect, the Bank recognized credit impairment/allowance for credit
losses even before and objective evidence of impairment becomes apparent. The Bank considers past
events, current conditions, and forecasts of fulure economic condiBions in assessing impaiment.

a. The Bank applies the ECL method on credit exposures covered by PFRS 9, which
include the following:

i. Loans and receivables that are measured at amortized cost;

ii. Investments in debt instruments that are measured at amaortized cost or fair
wvalue through other comprehensive income (FYOCH); and

iii. Credit commitments and financial guarantee contracts that are not measured
at fair value through profit or loss (FVPL).
b. Credit exposures are classified into three stages using the following horizons in
measuring ECL:

i. Stage 1 - credit exposures that are considered “performing” and with no
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition or with low credit
Tisk.

Stage 1 recognizes twelve (12)-month expected credit kosses.

ii. Stage 2 - Credit exposures that are considered “under-performing” or not yet
naon-performing but with significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognision.

Stape 2 recognizes Lifefime expected credit losses.

iii. ‘Stage 3 - Credit exposures with objective evidence of impairment, fhus
considered as “non-performing”



¢. The Bank prompéy recognizes and maintains adequate allowance for credit losses at
all times. It shall adopt the principles provided under the Enhanced Standards on
Credit Risk Management in implementing sound and robust credit risk measurement
methodologies that adequately considers ECL. In this respect, the ECL methodology
shall not be considered as a separate and distinct process but as an important
element of the entire credit risk management process.

Twelve (12)-Month ECL

a. Bank considers reasonable and supportable information, including forward-looking information
that affects credit nsk in estimating the 12-month ECL. The Bank exercises expenenced credit
judgement and considered both qualitative and quanfitative information that may affect the
assessment.

b. Zero allowance for exposures under Stage 1 shall be rare. It shall be expected only for
exposures with zero percent (0%) credit risk-weight under the Risk-Based Capital Adequacy
Framework, such as Philippine peso-denominated exposure to the Philippine National
Govemment and the Bangko Sentral.

Lifetime ECL

a. The Bank evaluates the change in the risk of default occurming over the expected life of the
exposures in assessing whether these shall be moved to a kfeime ECL measure. Although
collateral will be used to measure the loss given a default, tis should not be primarily used in
measuring risk of a default or in fransfeming to different stages.

b. Bank shall measure lifetime ECL of the following:

« Exposures that have significantly increased their credit risk from onigination (Stage 2);
and

«  Non-performing exposures (Stage 3).

Assessment of ing information

Bank shall clearly demonstrate how forward-looking information, including macroeconomic factors, have
been reflected in the ECL assessment and how these are linked to the credit risk drivers of the
exposures. Experienced credit judgement is essential in assessing the soundness of the forward-
looking information and in ensuring that these are adequately supported.

Transfers from Stage 1 to Stage 2- Assessing of the significant increase in credit nisk
The Bank fransfers credit exposures from Stage 1 to Stage 2 if there is significant increase in credit risk
from inital recognition

a. Bank shall establsh well-defined criteria on what constitute significant increase in credit sk

Bank shall consider a wide range of information, which includes among others, information on
ic conditions, ic sector, and the geographical region relevant to the

borrower, and other factors that are borrower specific. The criteria on what constitutes

significant increase in credit risk shall consider, at a minimum, the Est provided in PFRS 9.

b. Bank shall classify exposures to Stage 2 if the exposures have potenfial weakness, based on
current and/or forward-ooking information, they warrant management's close attention. Said
weaknesses, if left uncorected, may affect the repayment of these exposures. Bank shall also
classify to Stage 2 if there are adverse or foreseen adverse economic or market conditions that
may affect the counterparty’s ability to meet the scheduled repayments in the future.

c. The BSP shall apply the following indicators of significant increase in credit risk in Banks noted
fo have weak credit loss methodologies:

« Exposures considered especially mentioned under Section 143 of the new

. ExmammMpammfaMMMy(M)dm:and

2 F

« Exposures with risk raings downgraded by at least two (2) grades (e.g..
exposure with risk rating of *3" on the originaion date was downgraded to
risk of *5" on the reporfing date) for Banks with below fifteen (15) risk rating
grades, and three (3) grades for Banks with fifteen (15) or above risk rating
grades.

Transfers from Lifetime ECL to Twelve (12) month ECL

Bank shall transfer the exposures from Stage 3 (non-performing) to Stage 1 (performing) when there is

sufficent evidence to support their full collection. Exposures should exhibit both the quantitative and
indicators of p llection prior their transfer. The quantitative indicator is characterized

by payments made within an cbservation period (e.g., regularly pays during the minimum observation

period). The qualitative indicator pertains to the result of assessment of the borrower’s financial capacity

(e.g., improvement in counterparty’s situation).

As a general rule, full collection is probable when payments of interest and/or principal are received for
at least six (6) months.

Banks shall observe the following guidelines for exp that were d:

a. Non-performing restructured exposures that have exhibited improvement in creditworthiness of
the counterparty may only be transferred from Stage 3 fo Stage 1 after a total one (1) year
probation period (i.e.., six (6) months in Stage 3 before transferring to Stage 2 , and another six
(6) months in Stage 2 before transferring to Stage 1; or directly from Stage 3 to Stage 1,
without passing through Stage 2, after twelve (12) months); and

b. Restructured accounts classified as “performing™ prior to restructuring shall be initially
classified under Stage 2. The transfer from Stage 2 to Stage 1 will follow the six (6) month rule
menboned above.

Muitiple exposures to specific counterparties

In measuring ECL of multiple exposures to a single countesparty or mulfiple exposures fo a single
counterparty or multiple exposures to counterparty belonging to a group of related entities, the following
shall apply:

a. Exposures fo non-retail counterparties. Banks with mutiple exposures to a non-retail
counterparty shall measure ECL at the counterparty level. In parficular, the Banks shall
consider all exposures to a counterparty as subject to a ifeime ECL when any of its material
exposure is subjected to lifetime ECL;

b. Exposures fo a retai counterparty. Banks with mulfiple exposures fo a retail counterparty shall
measure ECL at the transaction level. In particular, Banks may classify one transaction under
Stage 1 and another fransaction under Stage 3. However, Banks are not precluded from taking
into account the potential of cross default, such that if one exposure is dassified under Stage 3
all ofher exposures may be classified under Stage 3; and

c. Exposures fo counterparties befonging to a group of related entities. Banks with multiple
exposures to counterparties that belong to the same group of related entiies shall measure
ECL at the counterparty level (per entity). Banks shall likewise consider in determining the
stage under which the exposures shall be classified.

Banks shall not recognize interest income on non-p: i except when p is
received. On the other hand, nlemtmmmuedmnm—pemmmexmsum(sma
mns)brmmosesdpmpanngﬂwmmmmms(AFS)Mbedsmdnﬂw
AFS. This shall ikewise be included in the list of g items the p | reports and
the AFS that is being submitted to the BSP.
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Considering that the Bank operation is considered simple, it adopted simple loan loss methodologies
fundamentally anchored on the principle of recognizing Expected Credit Losses (ECL) in accordance
vnﬂlPFRSQasdnswssedabove memmwbeyondmepastdueormmedmnzahmn

fying exp: and in providing an allowance for credi losses. The Bank used Appendix 15 of
the MORB as a guide, at minimum, in |mplemenmgmeslnpleiomlos methodologies in recognizing
Expected Credit Losses (ECL).

Loans and Receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. They arise when the Bank provides money, goods, or services directy
10 a debtor with no intention of trading the recefvables. Inciuded in this category are financial assets
anising from direct loans to customers and all receivables from customers and other Banks. Loans and
receivables are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method, less
impairment losses. Any change in their value is recognized in profit or loss. Increases in estimates of
future cash receipts from financial assets that have been reclassified in accordance with PFRS 9 and
PFRS 7 (Amendments) shall be recognized as an adjusiment to the effective interest rate from the date
of the change in estimate.

Derecognition of financial assets occurs when the right to receive cash fiows from the financial
expire or are d and substanBially al of the risks and rewards of ownership have
been transferred.

Bank Premises, Furniture, Fixtures and Equipment

Land is stated at cost less any impaimment in value, while deprecs i g building,
fumiture, fixtures and equipment, and leasehold improvements, are shted at cost less accumulmd
depreciaion and any accumulated impairment losses. The initial cost of property and equipment
consists of its purchase price and any directly attnbutable costs of bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use. Expenditures incurred after the assets have been put info
operation, such as repairs and maintenance, are normally charged against profit or loss in the year in
which the costs are incurred. In situations where it can be dlearly demonstrated that the expenditures
Mvemultedinmincreaseinmehnue ic benefits d to be obtained from the use of
property and beyond its originally assessed st: of per the expenditures are
capitalized as addmonal cost of property a\d equipment.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-ine method to write down the cost of the property and
equipment to their residual values over their estimated useful lives. Land is not depreciated. The
esbmated useful lives are as follows:

Buiding 25 years
Furniture and fixtures 3-5years
Information technology equipment 35 years
Other Office equipment 35 years
Transportation equipment 35 years
Leasehold rights and improvements 10 years
Other infangible assets 3-5years

The assets’ residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at each financial year-end to ensure that these are consistent with the expected pattern of
economic benefits from the items of property and equipment.

An item of property and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits
areeweaediomnsuseordisposal Any gain or loss ansing on derecognition of the asset (calculated
as the difference b the net di and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in
meshtememso(pmﬁtotlossmmeyea:measseusdetemgnmed

The camying values of property and equipment are reviewed for impairment when events or changes in
circumstances indicate the camying value may not be recoverable. If any such indication exists and
where the camying values exceed the estimated recoverable amount, the asset is written down to its
recoverable amount.

Invesiment Properties
Investment properties perain to properties held by fhe Bank for sale in the next 12 months.

Investment properties are inifially measured at the camying amount of the loan (i.e. outstanding loan
balance adjusted for any unamortized premium or discount less allowance for impairment bosses based
on PFRS 9 provisioning requirements, which take info account the fair value of the collateral) plus
booked accreed interest less allowance for impairment bosses plus transaciion cost incurred upon
acquisition {such as non-efundable capital gains tax and documentary stamgp tax paid in connection
with the foreclosurefpurchase of the acquired real estate property).

Real properties acquired in setlement of loans and receivables are booked under ROPA accounts as
follows:

= upon fhe date of entry of judgement in case of jundical foreclosure; or
= upon the date of Sheriffs Certificate of Sale in case of extrajudicial foreclosure; or
= upon the date of notarization of Deed of Dacon in case of dacon in payment.

These properties are carmied at cost, which is the fair value at acquistion date including certain
transachion cost, less accumulated depreciation, and impairment in value. Transaction costs, which
include nonrefundable capital gains tax and documentary stamg tax, incurred in connection with
foreclosure are capitalized as part of the carmying values of the cost of the real properties acquired.
Investment properties acquired through a non-monetary asset exchange is measured initially at fair
value unkess (a) the exchange lacks commercial substance or (b) the fair value of neither the asset
received nor the asset given up is reliably measurable, where the net camying value of the related loans
and receivable is used. The difference between fhe fair value of the foreclosed properiies and the
carrying value of the related receivables given up is recognized in 'Gain (loss) on asset exchange’
acoount in fhe statement of compr ive income. Subsegquent to initial recognifion, real properties
acquired in of lcans and recef are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
any accumulated impairment in value. Depreciation is compuied on a straight-ine basis over the
esiimated useful life from the fime of acquisition of the invesiment properties but not fo exceed 10 years.

The transfer of a property to, or from, investment property when, and only when, there is evidence of a
change in use. A change of use occurs if property meets, or ceases to meet, the definition of investment
property. Investment properties are derecognized when they have esther been disposed of or when the
invesiment properties are permanently withdrawn from use and no fubure benefit is expected from their
disposal. Any gain or koss on derecognition of an investment property is recognized in the statement of
profit or bkoss in the year of derecognition. Expenditures incumed after the investment properfies have
been put info operations, such as repairs and maintenance, security maintenance and other hobding
costs are nomally charged to income in the peniod in which the costs are incurred.

TheBmIt E]ul‘lj' |nvE.sImenI& Hank jpremises, fumiture, fixfures and equipment, invesiment properiies
and ofher assets are subject to impairment testing. All individual assets are tested for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that fhe camying amount may not be
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized for the amount by which the asset's carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is fhe higher of fair value, reflecting market
condifions less costs to sell, and value in use, based on an infemal evaluation of discounted cash flow.
Al assefs are subsequently reassessed for indications that an impairment loss previously recognized
may no longer exist and the carmying amount of the asset is adjusted to the recoverable amount
resulfing in the reversal of the impairment loss. Any amount recovered is recognized in profit or loss
during fhe period.
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Financial Liabilities

Financial liabilises include deposit liabilities, bills payable and other liabilites.

Financial liabilifes are recognized when the Bank becomes a party o the contractual agreement of the

instrument. All interest and related charges are recognized as an expense in the statement of profit or
loss under the caption Interest Expense.

Deposit kabiities and other liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and subsequentiy measured at
amortized cost less setflement payments.

Bills payables are recognized initially at fair value, which is the issue proceeds (fair value of consideraion

received), net of direct issue costs. Bills payable and subordinated notes payable are subsequently
measured at amortized cost; any difference between proceeds, net of fransaction costs, and the
redemption value is recognized in profit or loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective
interest method.

(Other Babiities and deposit liabilities are initially recognized at their nominal value and subsequently
measured at amortized cost less settiement payments.

Dividends distributions to shareholders are recognized as financial Eabities when the dividends are
approved by the shareholders.

Provisi
Provisions, if any, are recognized when the Bank has legal or constructive obligations as a result of a
past event: it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settie the obligation and
estimate can be made of the amount of obigation. Provisions are recognized when present obligafion
will probably lead to an outflow of economic resources, and they can be estimated reliably even if the
fiming or amount of the outflow may still be uncertain. A present obligaion arises from the presence of a
legal or constructive commitment that has resulted from past events.

Provisions are measured at the estimated expenditure required to settle the present obligation, based
on the most reliable evidence available at the statement of financial condition date, including the risks
and uncertainBes associated with the present obligation. Any reimbursement expected to be received in
the course of settlement of the present obligation is recognized, if virtually certain as a separate asset,
not exceeding the amount of related provision.

Provisions are reviewed at each statement of financial condition date and adjusted to reflect the current
best estimate. In those cases, where the possibie outflow of the economic resources as a result of
present obligation is considered improbable or remote, or the amount to be provided for cannot be
measured reliably, no liability is recognized in the consolidated financial statements. Probable inflows of
economic benefits that do not yet meet the recognition criteria of the asset are considered contingent
assefs, hence, are not recognized in the financial statements.

_ of Financial Liabil
A financial Eabiity is derecognized when the obligabon under the Eabity expires, is discharged or
cancefied. Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on
substangally different terms, or the terms of an existing Eabdity are substantially modified, such an
exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a
new Eability, and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the statement of
profit or loss.

-

Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will fiow to the Bank
and the revenue can be measured refiably. The following are the specific recognition criteria in
recognizing revenue:

a. Interest income and expenses are recognized in profit or loss for all instruments measured at
amortized cost using the effective interest method.

The effective interest method is a method of calcutating the amortized cost of a finandial asset
or a financial liability and of allocating the interest income or interest expense over the relevant
peniod. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument or, when appropriate,
a shorter penod to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or financial liability. When
calcutating the effective interest rate, the Bank estimates cash flows considering all contractual
terms of the financial instrument but does not consider future credit losses. The calculation
includes all fees and points paid or received between parties to the contract that are an integral
part of the effective interest rate, ion costs and all other premiums or discounts.
Once a financial asset or a group of simiar financial assets has been written down as a result
of an impairment loss, interest income is recognized using the rate of interest used to discount
the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss.

b.  Service charges, fees and commissions are generally recognized when the service has been
provided. Other non-finance charges on loans and penalBies on delinquent accounts are
recognized upon actual collection.

c.  Income from assets sold or exchanged — Income from assets soid or exchanged is recognized
when the tifle to the assets is transferred to the buyer or when the collectabiity of the enfire
sales price is reasonably assured. This is included as part of Other income account in the
statement of profit or loss.

d.  Rental income — Rental income arising from leased properties is accounted for on a straight-
line basis over the lease terms on ongoing leases and is recorded in profit or loss as part of
Other Operating income.

€. Inferest income from Bank deposits and investments is recognized on the accrual method.

Expense Recognition
Expenses are recog! when it is probable that a in future economic benefit refated to a

decrease in an asset or an increase in kabiity has occumed and the decrease in economic benefits can be
measured refiably. Revenues and expenses that relate to the same transaction or other event are recognized
simultaneously.

Leases
The Bank assesses at confract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the confract

conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of ime in exchange for consideration.
The Bank applies a single recognifion and measurement approach for al leases. except for short-term leases
and leases of low-value assets. The Bank recognizes lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-
use assets representing the right fo use the underlying assets.

i Right-of-use assets (ROU)

The Bank recognizes ROU assets (included in "Property and Equipment) at the commencement date of the
lease (i.e., the date the underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use asses are measured at cost, less
any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease
liabiities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease kabilities recognized, iniial direct costs
incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received.
ROU assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and estimated useful
ives of the asseis is 1 fo 25 years for Office space.

1
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i  Lease fabiities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Bank recognizes lease liabidities measured at the present value
of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including in-
substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, vanable lease payments that depend on an
index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease payments also
incude the exercise price of a purchase opfion reasonably certain i be exercised by the Bank and payments
of penalties for ferminating a lease. if the lease term refiects the Bank exercising the option fo terminate.
Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognized as expense (unless they
are incurred fo produce inventories) in the penod on which the event or condifion that figgers the payment
occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Bank uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date because the inferest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the
commencement date. the amount of lease Eabiifies is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and
reduced for the lease payments made. In addifion, the carrying amount of lease Eabilities is remeasured if
there is a modification, a change in the lease term. a change in the lease payments (e.g., changes to future
payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine such lease payments) or a change in
the assessment of an opBion to purchase the underiying asset.

Determining the lease term of contracts with renewal options

The Bank detemmines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with any periods
covered by an oplion to extend the lease if it is reasonablly certain fo be exercised, or any periods covered by
an option fo ferminate the lease, if & is reasonably certain not to be exercised. After the commencement date,
the Bank reassesses the lease term if there is a significant event or change in crcumstances that are within
s control and affects its ability to exercise (or not to exercise) the opion to renew (e.g., a change in business
strategy).

The Bank's lease kabilibes are included in Note 13.

L Short-term leases and leases of low-value assefs

The Bank applies the lease of low-value assets recognifion exemption to leases of staff house that are
considered of low value (.e., P10,000 and below). Lease payments on leases of low-value assefs are
recognized as expense on a straight-ine basis over the lease temn.

Lmplovees Benefils
The Bank's empl are provided with the

wivy

benefits:

@ Retirement Benefits Obligation. Refirement benefits are established based on actuarial
valuations as required under PASAAS 19 Employee Benefits and PAS/IAS 26, Accounting and
Reporting by Retirement Benefit Plans.

@ Termination Benefits. Termination benefits are payable when employment is terminated by the

Bank before the normal reti date, or wh an employee accepts voluntary
redundancy in exchange for these benefits. The Bank recognizes termination benefits when it
is demonstrably commitied to either: (a) terminating the empl of current empl

acoording to a detailed formal plan without possibility of withdrawal: or (b) providing termination
benefits as a resuit of an offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy. Benefits falling due
more than 12 months after the statement of financial condiion date are discounted to present
value.

°  Comp Ab Comp d absences are recognized for the number of paid leave
days (including holiday entitement) remaining at the balance sheet date. The amounts
recognized are included in Trade and Other Payables account in the balance sheet at the
undiscounted amount that the Bank expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlement

=13

Share
Basic eamings per share (EPS) is computed by dividing the net income for fhe year atiributable o
common shareholders (net income for the period bess dividends on converfible redeemabée preferred
shares) by the weighted average number of common shares issued and outstanding during the year
and adjusted to give retroactive effect to any stock dividends declared during the period.

Diluted EPS is computed by dividing the net income for the year atinbutable to common shareholders
by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the year adjusted for the effects
of dilutive convertibée redeemable preferred shares. Diluted EPS assumes the conversion of the
outstanding prefermed shares. When the effect of the conversion of such prefemed shares is anti-gilutive,
no diluted EPS is presented.

Income Taxes

Current tax

Current tax asset and current tax liabilities for the cument peniod ar d at the amount expected
1o be recovered from or paid to the {axation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the
amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacied as of the reporting date.

Deferred tax

Defemed fax is provided, using the batance sheet liability method, on all temporary differences at the
reporting date between the fax bases of asset and liabilies and their carrying amounts for financial
reporting purposes.

Defesred fax Babdities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences. Defemed tax assets are
recognized for all deductible temporary differences, camyforward of unused iax credit from the excess of
Minimum Corporate Income Tax (MCIT) over the Regular Corporate Income Tax (RCIT), and unused
Net Operafing Loss Carryover (NOLCO), to the extent fhat it is probable that sufficient taxable profit will
e available against which the deductible temporary differences and carryfiorward of unused tax credit
from MCIT and unused MOLCO can be uiilized. Deferred tax assets and defemed tax Eabiities,
howewes, is not recognized on temporary differences that arise from indtial recognifion of an asset or
[Eability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at fhe ime of the transacfion, affects
nedther the accounting income nor taxable income.

The carmying amounts of defered tax assets are reviewed at each reporiing date and reduced fo the
exfent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxabde profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset fo be ufilized. Unrecognized defemed tax assels are reassessed at each reporting
date and are recognized io the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profit will allow the:
deferred tax assef fo be recovered.

Defesred fax assets and liabilities are measured at the fax rabes that are applicable to the period when
the asset is realized or the liability is settied, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted at the statements of financial posifion date. Deferred tax assets and defemed
tax liabiliies are offset if a legally enforceable right exsts to set off current tax assets against current tax
Eabdities and deferred taxes related to the same taxable enfity and the same taxation authority.

Provisions and Contingent Ligbilifies

Provisions, if any, are recognized when the Bank has legal or consinucfive obligations as a resultof a
past event: it is probable that an outflow of resources will be reguired fo setfie the obligation and
esfimate can be made of the amount of obigation. Provisions are recognized when present obligation
will probably lead fo an outflow of economic resources, and they can be estimated reliably even if e
timing or amount of the outfiow may still be uncertain. A present obligafion arises from the presence of a
legal or constructive commitment that has resulied from past events.
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Provisions are measured at the estimated expenditure required to seftle the present cbligation, based
on the most reliable evidence available at the statement of financial position date, including the nisks
and uncertainties associated with the present obligation. Any reimbursement expected to be received in
ﬂ\ecoursedsenlememo(mepmsemoblgahmmmmed rfvmallycemnasasepamasset
not exceeding the amount of related p are reviewed at each statement of financial
mimdaleandad]usledbreﬂeamemnentbmmme In those cases, where the possible
outfiow of the economic resources as a result of present obigation is considered improbable or remote,
or the amount to be provided for cannot be measured reliably, no liability is recognized in the financial
statements. Probable inflows of economic benefits that do not yet meet the recognition criteria of the
asset are considered contingent assets, hence, are not recognized in the financial statements.

Subsequent Events

Post year-end events that provide additional information about the Bank's posiion at statement of
financial position date (adjusting events), are reflected in the financial statements. Post year-end events
that are not adjusting events are disclosed in the notes to financial statements when matenal.

Note 3
ificant Accounting J and Estimates
The Bank's financial statements prep: in with Philippine Financial Reporting Stand:

require management to make judgments and estimates that affect amounts reported in the financial
statements and related notes. Judgments and estimates are continually evaluated and are based on
historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under circumstances. Actual results may ultimately differ from these estimates and the
differences coukd be significant.

In the process of applying the Bank's accounting policies, management has made the following
judgments, apart from those involving estimation, which have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognized in the financial statements:

Leases

Bank as lessor

The Bank has entered into commercial property leases on its investment properties portfolio and over various
ftems of fumiure, fidures, and equipment. The Bank has determined, based on an evaluation of the terms
and conditions of the arangements (i.e., the lease does not transfer ownership of the asset to the lessee by
the end of the lease term, the lessee has no option o purchase the asset at a price that is expected fo be
sufficiently lower than the fair value at the date the option is exercisabie and the lease term is not for the
major part of the assef’s economic life), that it retains all the significant risks and rewards of ownership of
these properties which are leased out on operaing leases.

Bank as lessee

The Bank determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with any periods
covered by an opfion to extend fhe lease if it is reasonably certain fo be exercised, or any periods covered by
an option to terminate the lease, if it is reasonably certain not to be exercised.

The Bank has several lease contracts that inciude extension and termination opions. The Bank appies
judgment in evaluating whether it is reasonably certain whether or not to exercise the opfion 1o renew or
ferminate the lease. That s, it considers all relevant factors such as leasehold improvements and location
that create an economic incentive for it to exercise either the renewal or termination. Afier the
commencement date, the Bank reassess the lease term if there is a significant event or change in
circumstances that is within its control and affects its ability fo exercise or not fo exercise the opfion to renew
or to terminate.
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Estimating the IBR for lease liabiliies

The Bank cannot readily determine the interest rate impiict in the lease, therefore, it uses its IBR to measure
lease liabiities. The BR for lease Eabilities is the rate of interest that the Bank would have fo pay to borrow
over a similar term, and with a similar security, the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value o the
ROU assetin a smiar economic environment. The Bank estimates the IBR for lease liabilities using
observable inputs (by reference to prevailing risk-free rates) adjusted to take into account the entity’s credit
fisk (i.e., credit spread).

The camying values of the Bank's right-of-use assets and lease Eability are disclosed in Notes 6 and 13,
respeciively.

Classifying Financial Assets Measured at Amortized Cost

The Bank follows the guidance of PFRS 9 in classifying non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments and fixed maturity as Financial Asset Measured at Amortized Cost. This
classificaion requires significant judgment. In making this judgment, the Bank considers its intention
and ability to hold such investments to maturity. Management has confirmed its intention and
determined its abiity to hold the investments up to maturity. if the Bank fails to keep these investments
at maturity (ofher than for the allowed specific circumstances, €.g., selling more than an insignificant
amount close to maturity), it will be required to reclassify.

The investments would therefore be measured at fair value and not at amortized cost through profit or
loss or fair value through other comprehensive income.

Impairment of Financial Assets

The Bank follows the guidance of PFRS 9 in determining when an investment is permanently impaired.
This determination requires significant judgment. In making this judgment. the Bank evaluates, among
other factors, the duration and extent to which the fair value of an investment is less than its cost and

the financial health of and near-term business outlook for the i including factors such as
industry and sector performance, in technology and ional and financing cash flow.
Distinction Between Operating and Finance Leases

The Bank has entered into varicus lease agreements either as a lessor or lessee. Critical judgment was
exercised by management to distinguish each lease agreement as either an operating or finance lease
by looking at the transfer or retention of significant risks and rewards of ownership of the properiies
covered by the agreements. Failure to make the right judgment will result in either overstatement or
understatement of resources and Eabilities.

Fair Value Determination for investment ies and Other jes

The Bank classifies its acquired properties as Property and Equipment if used in operations, as
Investment Properties if intended to be held for capital appreciaion, as Financial Assets if qualified as
such in accordance with PFRS 9 or as Other Properties if held for sale but the depreciable properties
are not yet disposed within three years. At initial ition, the Bank determines the fair value of the
acquired properties through internally or externally generated appraisal. The appraised value is
determined based on the current economic and market conditions as well as the physical condition of
the properties.

The following are the key assumptions conceming the future and ofher key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the end of the reporting period that have significant risk of causing material adjustment to
the carrying amounts of resources and liabilities within the next financial year.

Impairment Losses on Financial Assets

The Bank reviews its investments and loans and receivabl rtfolios to assess impai atleaston
a quarterly basis. lndetetmmmgwheﬁuannwamwﬁbsss&nldberewdedmpmﬁtubs&me
Bank makes judgment as to whether there is any observable data indicating that there has been
measurable decrease in the estimated future cash fiows from a portfolio of similar financial assets.
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This evidence may include observable data indicating that there has been an adverse change in the
payment status of borrowers or issuers in a group, or national or local economic condition that
comelates with defauits on assets in the Bank. Management uses estimates based on historical loss
experience for assefs with credit risk characieristics and objective evidence of impairment similar fo
those in the portfolio when scheduling its future cash flows. The methodology and assumptions used for
esfimafing both the amount and fiming of fulure cash flows are reviewed regulary fo reduce any
diffierences befween loss esiimates and aciual loss expenience.

The Bank camies certain financial assefs at fair valee, which requires the exiensive use of accounting
esfimates and judgment. Significant components of fair value measurement are determined using
wverifiable objective evidence such as foreign exchange rates and volatility rates. Howewver, the amount
of changes in fair value would differ if the Bank had utilized different valuafion methods and
assumplions. Any change in fair value of these financial assets and liabilies would affect profit or loss
and ofher comprehensive income. The total impairment kosses on financial assets recognized in profit or
loss is presented in Note 9. An impairment boss is reversed only to the extent that the assed's camying
amount does nof exceed the camying amount that would have been determined, if no impairment loss
had been recognized. A reversal of an impairment boss is recognized as impairment gain.

Estimating Useful Lives of Property and Equinmenf and Invesimenf Properies

The Bank reviews annually the estimated useful lives of iis property and equipment based on expected
asset utilization. Itis possible that fufure results of operations could be materially affected by changes in
these estimates. A reduction in the estimated useful ives of these properties wouk increase: recorded
depreciaion and amortization expense and decrease fhe related asset accounts. The carrying amount
of property and equipment are presented in Note 6, while the camying amount of investment properfies
are presented in Mote 7. Based on management's assessment as of Decembber 31, 2024, there is no
change in the estimated useful lives of the assets.

Actual results, however, may vary due o changes in esBmates brought about by changes in factors
such as physical wear and tear, fechnical or commercial obsolescence or begal or other limits on the use
of the assets.

Inveshnenl pmperlles ane maasured usngihe Em! model The fair value disclosed in Note 7 to the
financial statemenis are mainly based on existing market condifions and actual fransaciions at the
reporting date, such as selling price, expected fiming of sale and appropnate discount rates. The
expected selling price is determined based on current appraised values of the properties or simiar
jproperties in the same location and condition.

The Bulc assass&s 1he |rrpﬁ|rment of its non-financial assets whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the camying amount of the asset may not be recoverable. An impairment
loss is recognized whenever fhe carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s net selling price and fhe value in use. The net selling
jprice is the amount obfainable from the sabe of an asset in an am's length fransaction while value in
use is the present value of estimated future cash fiows expected fo arise from the confinuing use of an
asset and from its disposal at the end of its useful ife. Recoverable amounts are estimated for indhvidual
assets or, if it is not possible, for the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. For impairment
loss on specific asset, the recoverable amount represents fhe net seling price. In determining the
jpresent value of estimated future cash flows expected to be generated from the continued use of the
assets, the Bank is required o make esfimates and assumplons that can materially affect the Bank's
financial statements.
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Valuation of Post-Er Defined Benefits

The determination of the Bank's obligation and cost for pension and other employee benefits is
dependent on the selection of certain assumplions used by management in calcutating such amounts.
While the Bank believes that the assumplions used are reasonable and appropriate, significant
diffierences in the actual experience or significant changes in assumption may materially affect
employes benefits obligation.

Erpyision and Contingencies
Judgment is exercised by management to distinguish between provisions and contingencies. Policies

on recognition and disclosure of provision are discussed in Note 2.

Note 4

LCash

For purposes of presenting the cash flows, cash consists of the following as of December 31, 2024, and
2023:

December 31 202 2023,
Cash and oiher cash items 16,272,598 14,829,566
Dus from Bangko Sentral ng Piipinas (BSP) 40,795,018 £1.234,087
Dus from other banks IMGE0MI 244341347

369,028 559 320,405,000

Cash consists primarily of funds in the form of Philippine cumrency nofes and coins in fhe Bank's vault
and fhose in fhe possession of tellers. Other cash items indude cash items (other than currency and
coins on hand) such as checks drawn on other banks or ofher branches afier the bank's clearing cut-off
fime unfil the dose of the regular banking howrs. This account includes $231,382 USD in 2024 and
$18,095 USD in 2023, which was converted bo funchional cumency (Peso) using fhe exchange rate as of
December 31, 2024, and 2023, respectively. The PDEWAR used o convert this from US Dollar to Peso
is P57.845 in 2024 and P55.370 in 2023.

Due from Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas (BSP) represents the Bank's demand deposit with the BEP in
compiance with BSP's reserve requirements. SecBion 252 of the MORB further provides that such
deposit with the Bangko Sentral are not reguiar cument accounts, drawings against such deposit shall
be limited fo {a) setilement of obligations with the Bangko Sendral, and (b) withdrawats to meet cash
requirements.

Due from other banks consist of:

Dagember 31 2024 2023
Demand deposis 230,555,170 220,691,778
Savings deposits 80,794,794 22 B41,028
Time deposit 610,979 608,543

311,960,943 244 341,347
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Due from other banks eamned an average interest rate of 0.25% for the years ended December 31,

2024, and 2023, respectively.

Decembear 31 2024 2023

Rizal Commercial Banking Corporation (RCBC) 124,800,907 135,517,345

Land Bank of the Philippines (LBP) 98,610,677 74,970,063

Bank of the Phiippine Islands (BPI) 4317814 14,450,872

Development Bank of the Philippines (DBP) 4,497,835 10,901,408

China Banking Corporation 45,987,191 4,766,655

BDO Unibank Inc. 33.746.519 3.735.004
311,960,943 244341347

Note 5

Loans and Receivables

The composition of loans and receivables is as folows:

December 31 2024 2023

Loans:

Small scale enterprise

Loans to individual for other purposes
Medium scale enterprise

Other agricultural credit loan
Agranan reform credit loan
Microfinance loan

179,773,594 255474 873
142,584,406 161,329,173
157,084,287 107777274
61,808,340 52,695,151
16,554,755 27,288,959
184,519 244909

Total
. ¢ for impai losses

557,989,901 604,610,339
27,970,524 25.985.939

Net loans receivable

530,019,377 578,824 400

Other Receivables:
Sales contract receivable 42,386,905 65,965,180
Accrued interest receivable 1,556,981 1463916
Accounts receivable 7,295,728 4878414
Total 51,239,614 72,307,510
Allowance for impairment losses 2,175,975 9,651,656
Net other receivables 49,063,639 62,655.854
579,083,016 £41.480.254
The amount p ted is net of ized discount ting fo P46,871 and P78,031 for December

31, 2024, and 2023, respectively.

Accounts receivable is composed of:

December 31 2024 2023
Receivable from borrowers 840,742 570,034
Health card 387,750 269,387
EC pay 270,321 209,155
SSS matemity - 850
Receivable-others 5,796,909 3.828.988

7,295,728 4876414

Accounts receivable is non-interest bearing and P557,861 allowance was provided since per bank's

assessment, the amount will not be collected (see Note 9).
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Recesvable from borrowers pertains fo notarial, documentary stamp and offer necessary expenses that
will be paid by the bank for the account of the bormower relafing bo loan availed in the bank which will be
deducted from the borrowers account upon release. Receivable other pertains to the withholding tax for
time deposit that are accrue monthly but are only transfer as a Rabdity when there is an actual roll-over
for time: deposit. Due to the volume of the time deposit, the accruals fom the significant porfion of
accounts receivables.

The koans receivable from the Bank's cusiomers are categorized as fiollows:

The maturity profile of the loans is as follows:

Dacember 31 2024 k] 2023 %
Due within one year 25,469,160 4.56% 18,191, 507 n
Over one year to five years 246,686,169 2% 281,774 689 4328
Duwe more than five years 285,834,572 $.23% 324844 163 §3.nM
Total 337,989,901 100.00% 604610339 100

Breakdown by Age of Accounts

December 31 2024 % 2023 %o
Cument 479,219,168 B5.88% 538,257 881 89.00
Past due performing 7,146,675 128% 23,562,071 3.90
Past due-non-performing 70317126 12.60% 35,536 835 5.87
In litigation 1,306,932 0.23% 7453.552 1.23
Total 597,989,901 100.00% 604810238 100

The non-performing loans as defined under MORE 304 amounted to PT1,624,058 and P42, 990,387 on
December 31, 2024, and 2023, respectively.

Generally, non-performing loans refer fo loans fhat even without any missed contractual payments,
when it is considered impaired under existing accounting standards, classified as doubtful or loss, in
lifigation, and/or there is evidence that full repayment of principal and interest is unlikefy without
foreclosure of collateral, if any.

All ofher loans, even if not considered impaired, shall be considered non-pesforming if any princapal
and/or interest are unpaid for more than ninety (90} days from contractual due date, or accrued interests
for more than ninety (90) days have been capilalized, refinanced, or delayed by agreement.

Microfinance and other small loans with similar credit characterisfics shall be considered non-performing
after contractual due date or after it has become past due. Restructured loans shall be considered non-
performing. However, if prior to restructuring, the loans were categorized as performing, such
classificalion shall be refained.

Non-perfiorming loans shall remain classified as such untll (a) there is sufficient evidence to support that
full collection of principal and interests are probable and payments of inferests andior principal are
received for at least six (6) months; or (b) written-off. Porfion of fhe past due accounis and accounts
under liigation are covered by real estaie morigages, which could be foreclosed fo reduce possible
losses from non-collection.

The Bank's loans fo Directors, Officers, Stockholders and Related Interests (DOSRI) amounted to
P as of December 31, 2024, respeciively (see Note 28).



Sales confract receivable (SCR) refers to real and other properties acquired and subsequenily sold on
an installment basis whereby the tite of the property is transfemred to the buyer only upon full payment
of the agreed selling price. SCR is indially recorded at the present value of the installment receivable
discounted at imputed rate of interest. A discount shall be accreted over the life of the SCR by credifing
interest income using the effective interest method. Any difierence between the present value of the
SCR and the derecognized assets shal be recognized in profit or loss in accordance with Revenue from
Confracts with Customers”. Furthermare, SCR shall be subject to impairment provision of PFRS 9.

Sales confract receivable represents the outstanding balance of receivable for the sale of investment
jproperties through agreed installment payment ferms. Contracts fo sell were also entered info between
the Bank and several borrowers, wherein the |atter reacquire the loan through equal installment

jpayments for a period of six months to five years.

Accrued inferest receivables represent accruals of amortization on loans receivables fhat are due within

three () months. The accrued interest receivable from koans is considered not impaired.

Accounts recefvable is non-interest bearing and allowance, per management, assessment on the

collectability of this account was provided.

The camying amount of sales contract receivable as of December 31, 2024, and 2023 are as follows:

December 31 Jiote 2024 2023
Sales contract receivable—performing 30,853,738 23547 404
Sales contract receivable—nonperforming 11,533,167 A2 417776
Total 42,386,905 65,965,180
Allowance for impaimment lbsses g 1,618,114 9,111,656
Total 40,768,791 56,853.524
The loan breakdown as to their status is as follows:
Decamber 31, 2024 Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Loans receivable:
Performing
Current 479,219,168 - - 479,219,168
Past due - 7,146,675 70.317.127 77,463,802
479,219,168 7,146,673 70317127 336,682,970
Won-performing
Past due - - - -
In-Litigation - - 1.306 932 1.306.932
- - 1.306.932 1.306.932
Total 479,219,168 7.146 673 71.624,058 557,989,901
Expected Credit Loss Allowance (6.805436)  (4.926940)  (16.238.148) (27,970,524)
Carrying Amount 476,608,992 2,219,735 55.385.910 330,018,377

The computaion and booking of the allowance consider the intemally developed loan loss estimation
methodology with reference on Section 143 of MORB (See Noke 9). The amount reported in stage 3
includes fhe loans that is under six (6) months curing pesiod, thus, upon cut-off date, sl to be reported

as part of stage 3.

2.

Note &

Bank Premises. Furniture and Equipment
The property and equipment, which are stated at cost, consists of the following:

Dacembar 31 2024 2023
Land 5,715,543 5.715,543
Building 21,447,336 13,168,983
Furniture and fixtures 2,525,796 255,226
Information technology equipment 5,768,845 5384 475
Other office equipment 10,464,275 9514519
Transportation equipment 8,867,883 8740333
Leasehold rights and improvements 91,846 125,744
Other intangible assets 3,700,631 3617123
Right-of-use assets 43,367,290 43.265,752
Total 101,949,445 92,088,698
Less accumulated depreciation on
Bank premises, fumiture, and 35,206,688 32.376,342
Right-of-use assets 24,422 851 21415423
Net Book Value 42,319,906 38.296.933
The reconciation of the movements of the accounts follows:
Retirements/
Decamber 31. 2024 Beg Balance Addiions Adustments End Balance
Cost
Land 5,715,543 = - 5,715,543
Buiding 13,168,983 8,278,353 = 21,447,336
Fumiture and fixturas 2,556,226 2 30430 2,525,796
Information technology equipment 5384475 384,370 - 5,768,845
Other offics equipment 9,514,519 949 756 = 10,464,275
Transportation equipment 8,740,333 127,550 - 8,867,883
Leasehold rights and improvements 125,744 - 33,898 91,846
Other intangible assets 3.617.123 83.508 - 3,700,631
48,822 946 9,823,537 64328 938,582,133
Accumulated Depreciation
Buiding 5,884,865 1,112,743 s 6,997,608
Furmiture and fixtures 2293355 74510 47642 2,320,223
Information technology equipment 4094373 201.741 29,887 4,266,227
Other office aquipment 9,151,403 751718 - 9,903,121
Transportation equipment 7405842 649,522 - 8,055,364
Other intangible assets 546,504 117.641 - 3,664,145
32.376,342 2,907 875 77,529 35,206,688
Net Book Value 16.446.604 6,915,662 (13.201) 23,375,467
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Retiraments’

Dacembar 31, 2023 Bex. %r.\:s Aduitions .I'Ici'usrrnsnra End Balance
Cost

Land 5,715,543 - 5715543
Building 12 508,603 570,380 - 13,168 983
Furniture and fictures 21951158 - 304,032 2,356,226
Information technology equipment 5,909,410 - 614,835 5,384,475
Other office equipment 9,024 816 659,626 169,033 8,514,519
Transpostafion equipment 8,662,964 77,465 - 8,740,333
Leasehold rights and improvemenis 1,500,612 ) 1,383,868 125,744
Other intangible asseis 3.608.632 8,401 - 3617123

50,070,642 1,315,972 2,563,668 48 522 M6

Accumulated Depreciation

Building 5,370,830 514,035 - 5,804 865
Furniture and fciures 2714673 144 754 566,077 2,293,355
Information technology equipment 4367 969 908,322 1,179,918 4004373
Other office equipment 8,561,309 338,029 {252.065) 8,151,403
Transpostation equipment 6,704,748 TE2.704 153,700 7405842
Leasehold rights and improvements 1,065,173 384,065 1,451,240 -
Other intangible assets 3.425.978 112.035 [B.481) 3,546,504

32.302.682 3.164.039 3,080,379 32,376,342

Net Book Value 17,767,960 (1.848,06T) (526,711} 16,446, 604

Mo disposal was made on the Bank's fumiture, focture and equipment for the years ended December 31,

2023 and 2024

The Bank recagnizes a nght-of-use asset on its existing lease contracts as follows:

Dacember 31 Mois 2024 2023

Cost

Beginning balance 43,265,752 43,265.752

Adjustments 101,538 -
43,367,290 43,265.752

Accumulated Depreciation

Beginning balance 21,415,423 18,459,503

Additions to current year 2,939,067 2,955,920

Adjustments 15 48,361 -

End Balance 24,422 851 21.415.423

Met Book Value 18,944 439 21,850,328

The adjustments to the right- of-use asset is due fo the changes in the rate and adjusiments in rental
payments that were used in the computation of fhe present value of the right-of-use asset presented in

the cumrent year.
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The balances of the right-of-use asset at the end of the year is as follows:

December 31 2024 2023
Pandi 14,197,040 14,197,040
Busfos 2,916,298 2916238
Malolos 3,053,791 5,053,791
San Bdefonso 2,935,242 2,555,242
San Rafael 3,195,005 3,185,085
Pulilan 2,435,793 2.455,793
San Jose Del Monte 9,314,925 9,314,925
Plaridel 3,679,106 3.577.568
Total 43,367,200 43.265,752
The detail of depreciation is as follows:
\Years Ene Doember 31 fas 2024 2023
Bank premises, fumniture, and equipment 2907 875 3164039
Investment properiies. 7 2,181,148 3,136,502
Right-of-use asset 2,959,067 2,955,920
8,048,001 9,236 461
Note 7
Investment Properties

Investment properties consist mainly of parcels of land and improvements acquired in setilement of
koans which are held for capital appreciation. Per MORE Section 382, the camying amount of ROPA
shall be allocated to land, building, other non-financial assets, and financial assets. Buildings and other
non-financial assets shall be depreciated over the remaining useful ife of the assets, which shall not
exceed ten (10) years and three (3) years from the date of acquisition, respecively. Land, buildings, and
other non-financial assets shal be subject o the impairment provisions of PAS 38 “Impaiment’.

The reconciation of the camying amount of investment properfies is as follows:

Discember 31 Mots 2024 2023
Land 39,088,238 £3,191.904
Building 21,435,804 4,382 266
Total 80,524,042 99,574,170
Accumulated depreciation - net 11,853,231) {(12,103,017)
Allowance for impaimment losses 9 (6:88,096) (688.096)
Net Carrying Amount 67,982,715 86,783,057
Dec_a’.'\‘.la'S‘ Nods 1|E4 2023
Balance at beginning of year 93,400,287 120,217 581
Additions 21,612,806 14,600,790
Disposals (34.489,051) (35.244.181)
Total 80,524,042 99,574,170
Accumulated depreciation - net (11,833,231) {(12,103,017)
Allowance for impaimment losses § (E:88,096) (688.096)

67.982.713 86,783,057

Real and ofher properties acquired (ROPA) are acquired by the Bank in sstliement of loans through
forechosure or dation in payment and/or for other reasons, whase carmying amount will be recovered

principally through a sale fransaction.



Deferred tax asset consists of the following:

Decamber 31 Note 2024 2023
Beginning balance 13,949,106 19,435,285
Provision for imparment loss 9 (745,599) 1,218,629
Reversal of provision for impairment loss [ - (6,948,582)
Post-employment defined benefit reserves 12 - 52,958
Provision for post-employment benefits plan 12 312,900 101,196
Finance lease liability 13 45324 89.620

13,561,731 13,949,108

The Bank recog: net gain on disp properties g fo P28,415,598 and
£15,902,178 as of December 31, 2024, and 2023, respectively (See Note 18)
December 31, 2024 Land Building
Balance at beginning of year 65,191,904 34,382,266
Additions 17,304,243 4,308,563
Adjustments (3,095,166) (3,078,717)
Disposals (20.312.743) (14,176.308)
59,088,238 21.435804
Movements in the Bank's accumulated depreciation on & t properties are as follows:
Dacember 31 Natss 2024 2023
Balance at beginning of year 12,103,017 11,963,135
Depreciation expense [ 2.181,149 3.136.502
Total 14,284,166 15,099,637
Disposals (2,430.935) (2.996.620)
Balance at end of year - net 11,853,231 12.103.017

ROPA are booked initially at the carrying amount of the loan (I e ROPA are booked initialy at me
g loan balance

carying amount of the loan (i.e.

d for any

discount less allowance for impairment Ioss&c based on PFR'S 9 provisioning requirements, whlch take
into account the fair value of the collateral) plus booked accrued interest less allowance for impairment

losses pius transaction cost incurred upon

(such as non.

documentary stamp tax paid in

of the

fundable capital gains tax and
ired real estate property).

Before foreclosing or acquiring any property in settiement of loans, the Bank properly appraised the
property to determine its true economic value. If the amount of real and other properties acquired

(ROPA) to be booked exceeds P5 miion, an indep

to the BSP conducts

the apprasal The Bank made an in-house appraisal of all ROPA at least every other year. Moreover,
app is d on ROPA, which materially decline in value.

Allowance for impairment losses is set up for any anticipated losses based on appraisal reports, current
negotiations, and programs fo dispose these properties. The ROPA's latest appraisal date was made on
various date from 2023 io 2024. Real and other properties acquired have an estimated fair value of

P195,833.205 in 2024 and is solely composed of real estate properties.

Note 8
Other Assets
This account consists of the following:
Decente 3 toe _2024 223
Deferred tax asset 13,561,731 13,949,106
Retirement fund 12 12,867,952 12,192,671
Provident fund " 5,498,032 5,498,032
Prepaid income tax 2t 4,629,109 559,127
Supplies 764,447 1,359,939
Petty cash §5.000 55,000
Prepayments 20,890 98679
Deferred charges - 5667
Miscellaneous asset 2644272 2.576.358
40,041,433 36,294.579

Deferred tax assets represent the tax effect of temporary differences arising from the application of
PFRS 16, Leases and other adjustments for the prior and current year. Since not all account has been
provided with deferred tax asset, an additional recognition which form part of an adjustment to retained
eamings was made for December 31, 2024.

Provident fund is a contributory funds of the Bank and its employees. The source of funds comes from
3% monthly contribution from the employee's basic salary and the Bank shall contribute 5% from the
employee’s basic salary which is recognized as expense for the year (See Note 19).

Miscellaneous assets consist of refundable deposits from vanous suppliers.

Note 9

Allowance for Impairment Losses

The acoounting of the of the for i losses consists of the following:

Safes
Lofin Cmrrac! Account Invesfmenf

December 31 See Note 5 (See Note 5 (Ses Note 5] (See Nots 7) Total
December 31, 2022 53,780,265 4237141 540000 668,006 50,245 502
Provision - 4874515 - - 4874515
Reversal (27.794.326) - - - (27.794,326)
December 31, 2023 25,985,030 0,111,656 540000 668,006 36,325,691
Provision 4493286 (7.493,542) 17,861 - (2.982,304)
Adjustment (2.508.701) - - - (2.508.701)
December 31, 2024 27.970.524 1,618,114 557,861 668,006 30,834.5%

Aliowance for impairment losses for loans receivables is set up in accordance with BSP guidelines in the
classificabion of loans, and the provisioning requirements for classified loan accounts The Bank already
follows the loan loss provision matrix for its computaion for fhe allowance as required by MORB 143
Appendix 15. The adjustment in the loan receivable refiects the impai tloss iated with

that have been transferred to Real and Other Property Acquired (ROPA)




Note 10
Deposit Liabilities
This account consists of:
Dacember 31 2024 2023
Savings deposits:
Active 252,619,815 231,946,904
Dormant 6,078,055 8,401.506
Total savings deposits 258,697,870 240,348410
Demand deposis 72,269,852 64,397 256
Time deposits 471,085,581 502.268.604
Total 802,053,303 807.014.270

Regular savings deposits eamn annual fixed inferest of 0.15% per annum. These are withdrawabée upon
presentation of a properly accomplished withdrawal slip together with the corresponding passbook.

Time deposits eam an annual interest ranging from 0.25% to 5% and are due within ninety (90) days to
five (5) years, renewable at the option of the depositor. The FCDU in savings deposit amounted fo
$228,135 USD and $18,160 for 2024 and 2023, respectively, was converted to the functional currency
(Peso) using the exchange rate as of December 31, 2024, and 2023, respectively.

The interest expense of the Bank refated to the deposit liabiliies amounted to P16,720,823 and
P16,378,365 for 2024 and 2023, respectively (See Note 17).

The analysis of the residual maturity of time deposits are as follows:

5
December 31, 2023 Maturity
Name of Type of Purpose Duein1 Due more
Creditor Collateral Amount year than 1 year
LBP Assignment of To Augment 11,039,800 11,039,800

borrowers’ working Capital
PNs and REM | via rediscounting

Assignment of |  of eligible sub- 52,176,667 | 40.260,000 [ 11916667
borrowers' borrower’s
DBP PNs and REM | promissory note

63216467 | 51.299.800 | 11,916,667

The bills payable is secured by the " secured promissory notes de d at 85% of the face
value. The Bank is in compli with the and on loans as of end of year.

The interest expense of the Bank refated to biis payable amounted fo B3,018,193 and P4,883,189 for
2024 and 2023, respectively, based on interest rates of 6.930% for LBP and 2.500% for DBP (See Note
17).

Dacember 31 2024 - 2023 %
Due within one year 353,820,246 7511 390486932 7774
QOver one year to five years 117,265,335 24.89 111.781.672 22.26
Total 471,085,581 100.00  502.268.604 100.00
Note 11
Bills Pavable
This account is composed of the following:
December 31, 2024 Maturity
Name of Type of Purpose Duein1 Due more
Creditor Collateral Amount year than 1 year
LBP Assignmentof |  To Augment 32,193,750 | 32.193.750
borrowers’ working Capital
PNs and REM | via rediscounting
Assignment of | of eligible sub- 5416667 e 5,416,667
borrowers' borrower’s
DBP PNs and REM | promissory note
37.610417 | 32.193.750 5416667

Note 12
Retirement Benefits Obligation

The Bank's refirement benefits obligations as of the year end were established based on actuarial
valuations as required under PASAAS 19 Employee Benefits and PAS/IAS 26, Accounting and
Reporting by Retirement Benefit Plans. The computed retirement benefits obligation approximates the
recorded retirement Eability, thereby stating fairly the Bank's retirement benefit liability at the end of the
year.

Normal retirement shall be the first day of the month coincident with or next foflowing the employee's
60" birthday. The reirement shadl represent 100% of the employee’s basic monthly salary in the final
year of service multiplied by the number of years in service provided that he has served the Bank for at
least five () years of credited service.

The employee may opt to confinue employment beyond normal refirement date but not beyond age 65.
Such late retirement. however, shall be subject to the approval of the Board of Directors of the Bank on
as case fo case as yearly extension basis. The retirement shall represent 100% of the employee's basic
monthiy salary in the final year of service mulfiplied by the number of years in service, including the
extension of service.

An employee is allowed by the Bank to opfional refirement of he has been employed for at least five (5)
years regardless of age. The reti shall rep! 50% of the employee’s basic monthly salary in
the final year of service multiplied by the number of years in service if he has served for five (5) to less
than ten (10) years, otherwise, the retirement shall represent 100% of the employee’s basic monthly
salary.

The amounts presented below are based on the ial valuation report obtained from an independ
actuary for the period December 31, 2023.
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The movements in the present vakue of the posi-employment defined benefits obligation are as follows:

Decamber 31 2024 2023
Balance at beginning of year 11,083,352 9318973
Current service cost 577,511 577,511
Interest expense 674,089 673,053
Remeasurements — Actuarial losses (gains) from:

Experience adjustments - 1,053,742
Benefits paid (966,142) (939.927)
Balance at end of year 11.768.810 11.,083.35;

The movements of the retirement fund shown below: (see Note 8)

Decamber 31 2024 2023
Balance at beginning of year 12,192,6T 11,2322
Interest income - 645,780
Retum on plan assets (excluding amounts included

i nef inkerest) - (B41,911)
Contributions to the plan 1,241,424 1,496 508
Benefits paid (566,142) (539,927}
Balance at end of year 12,867,952 12192671

The amount diassified as plan asset by the achuary for the purpose of computation for the acoount is a
cash in bank, under the name of the Bank but is managed by the board of directors and officer as
trustees. However, since the control is not yet transferred bo fhe third party, such did not qualify as plan
asset thus, was not presented net of liability.

The components of amounts recognized in profit or boss and in ofher comprehensive income in respect
of the post-employment defined benefit plan are as follows:

Yoars Ended December 31 2024 2023

Reported in profit or loss:

Current service cost sTTAN ar7an

Net interest expense 674,089 (172,727}
1,231,600 404,784

Reparted in other comprehensive income:
Actuanal (gains) losses ansing from:

Changes in financial assumptions - 1,053,742
Retum on plan assets (excluding amount incheded in net interest) = (B41,911)
- 211831

Amounts recognized in other comprehensive income were inchuded within items that will not be
reclassified subsequently to profit or loss.

In determining the amounts of the defined benefit post-employment obligation, the following significant
actuarial assumptions were used:

Discount rates 6.08%
Expected rate of salary increases 4.00%

Assumpons regarding future mortality experience are based on published stafisfics and mortality
tables. The average remaining working lives of an individual refiring at the age of &5 is 17.52 years for
both males and females.
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These assumptions were developed by management with the assistance of an independent actuary.
Discount faciors are defermined dose o the end of each reporfing period by reference to the interest
rates of zero-coupon government bonds with ierms o makurity approximating the terms of the post-
employment obligation. Other assumplions are based on cument actuarial benchmarks and
management’s historical experience.

The plan exposes the Bank fo actuanial risk such as interest rate risk, longevity risk and salary risk.

Interest Rate Risk

The present value of the defined benefits obligation is calculated using a discount rate determined by
reference to market yields of government bonds. Generally, a decrease in the interest rate of reference
govemment bonds will increase the plan obligation. However, this will partially offset by an increase in
the retumn on the plan's investments in debt securities and cash and cash equivalents and if the retum
on plan asset falls below this rate, it will create a deficit in the plan. Currently, the plan consists of cash
and cash equivalents and government securities.

Longevity and Salary Risk

The present value of the defined benefit obligafion is calculated be reference fo the best estimaie of the
mortality of fhe plan participants both duning and after fheir employment, and to their future salaries.
Conseguently, increases in the life expectancy and salary of the plan parficipants will result in an
increase in the ptan obligation.

The maturity profile of estimated undiscounted expected benefit payments from the plan is within ten
years as of December 31, 2024, as per management computation.

The esimated weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting
period is thirty-one (31) years.

Note 13
[Einance Lease Liability

This account represents the present value of the finance lease payments for the year ended December
31, 2024, amounting to P23,624 089. This amount consists of rental payments that are not paid as of
the date of application of PFRS 16, Leases, discounted using fhe rate of 5.92%.

Dacembar 31 ot 2024 2023
Maturity Analysis — contractual undiscounted cash flows
Less than one year 4983173 4,739,666
One to five years 18,891,878 23,589,902
More than five years 13,438,511 14,484 802
Total undiscounted lease liabilifies 38.314,5M 42,814,370
Lease liabilities included in the statement of financial position
Current 3,378.2M 2,958,0%
Non-current 23,245 818 28,461,801
Total Finance Lease Liabdity 28.624.080 JL419.907




December 31 - Nats 2024 2023
Interest on lease §abiities 7 1,791,573 1,945,178
Variable lease payment not included in the measurement of - -
lease liabilities

Expenses relating to short-ferm leases - -
Expenses relating to leases of low-value assets, excuding - -
short-term leases of low value asseis

The following relate fo deferred tax asset as follows:

Decamber 31 Note 2024 2023
Depreciation expense on right of use assets [] 2,959,067 2,955,920
Interest on lease liability 7 1,791,573 1,945,178
Total rental payments during the year (4,569,346) (4,542.616)
Less shori-term lease presenied as rent exp . e
Over claim of expenses for income tax purposes 2 1!1.2_94 358.48&
Deferred tax asset QS% of temporary difference) 8 45,324 89.@

The Bank leases land and buidings 1o be use as office for eight (8) of its branches. These lease
contracts typically run for a period of 10-25 years, with an option for renewal for an additional period
subject to mutual agreement between the Bank (lessee) and the lessors. There are no existing
provisions for variable lease payment in any of the Bank's lease contracts.

Note 14
Other Liabilities
This account consists of the following:
Decamber 31 2024 2023
Accounts payable-provident fund 4,134,602 3841241
Accrued interest payable 4,536,425 3190443
Accounts payable 3,998,211 3,880,880
Accrued expenses 3,916,457 4,718,262
Uneamed income 7,379,252 3,018,936
Percentage tax payable 1,871,074 916416
Due to the Philippine Deposit Insurance Corporation 813914 810443
$SS, Phihealth and Pag-ibig payable 237,102 260,885
Due to Treasurer of the Philippines 135,000 182,680
Withholding tax payable 164,344 151.761
21,186,381 20971947
Accounts payable provident fund refers to the contributory rets of the employees and the

employer. Accrued expense refers fo accruals of year end expenses, accrual of leave credits and
incentive bonus of officers and staff. The uneamed income pertains to the loans need to be amortized
which in accordance with the PFRS 9 (Classifi and M of Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities) per BSP recommendation (See Note 5).

3.
Note 15
Adjustments
Ac to retained ings have been made for the years 2024 and 2023. These consist of the
following:
Decante 3 foo __mm4 20
Adyustments on real and other properties acquired (6,173,884) -
Funding ) of reti benefits obligati - 1,435,336
Accumulated depreciation-night of use asset 6 - 7,960
Prior period adjustments on foreign currency denominated unit (3,803) (2,638)
Other adjustments 167,733 -

(6009.954) 1440656

The adjustments to Real and Other Properties Acquired (ROPA) were made in response to the
observations of the Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas (BSP) Examination Team during the reguiar
examination as of the cut-off date of 30 September 2024. These adj ts address the improp
recording of ROPA transactions, which were noted to be inconsistent with the provisions of Section 382
of the Manual of Regulations for Banks (MORB).

Other ad consist of adp on fax exp ts of percentage tax, right-of-use
asset, lease liability, advances, and other reclassifications.
Surolys Reserve

The Bank aims to expand the business operation; thus, a surplus reserve was appropriated for the pian
expansion of the Qaqk Wwhich already amounted to P7,306.249 for both 2024 and 2023 inciusive of

approp to P2,240,192 for 2023 only.
Note 16
Interest Income
This account consists of:
Yaars Ended December 31 Note 2024 2023
Interest income on loans receivables 65,450,194 67,341,832
Interest income on SCR receivables 6,224,188 4.054.876
Total 71,674,382 71,396,708
Interest income on bank deposits 4 761,924 146.044
Interest income on loans receivables 72.436,306 71,54275_2

Service charges and processing fees include service income, finance charges, notarial fees, and other
processing fees passed-on by the Bank to the b redative to loan rel Interest rates on
loans ranges from 8% to 25% per annum. Penalty rate on past due loans is 3% per month. Interest
income from fees and commission includes the FCDU account amounting to P205,041 and P478 for
2024 and 2023, respectively.
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Mote 17
Interest Expense

This account consists of the following:

Vears Enced December 31 Hate 2024 2023

Deposit Eabiities w 16,707,863 16,378,365

Bommowed funds n 3,018,193 4,883,188

Finance lease 13 1,791,573 1,945,178

Interest expense others 12,960 61,381
21,530,589 23,268,093

Inferest expense others consist of interest expense on redeemable preferred shares and savings

deposit— FCOUL

Note 18

Other Income

This account consists of the following:

Yaars Ended Dacembar 31 Nolss 2024 2023

(Gain on disposal of investmeni properties 7 28,413,598 15,902,178

Fees and commission income 2127443 a71.17%

Reversal of abowance for impairment loss 9 - 27,794,326

Loss — SCR Recission (21,057.928) -

Miscellaneous income 17.738.371 20.944 139
27,223 484 63,611,818

Miscellaneous income pertains fo charges on bank statement, service charge on interbranch

transachion, service charge on loans, pre-terminafion fee and refated accounts.
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Note 19
DOther Operatil ENSEs
This account consists of the following:
‘Yaars Ended December 31 Note 2024 2023
Compensabion and employees’ benefits:

Salaries and wages 29,207 658 26,106,181

Director’s fees 1.920,000 1,360,000

585, Philhealth, Pag-ibig and employees' premium 2,295,303 1,931,798
Depreciation and amaortization ] 6,203,691 9,256,461
Taxes and licenses b} 6,433,365 5,763,632
Communications 3,178,617 3,316,659
Light, power, and water 2357226 2275812
Inswrance .1 2,346,538 2,306,274
Documentary siamp taxes b} 2,239,193 1,064,853
Security, messengerial and janitorial services 2,176,965 1,996,216
Litigaion and assets acquired 1,868,825 2.904,0M1
Management and other professional fees 1.440,353 1,204,358
Stafionery and supplies used 1,313,942 1,052,626
Retirement benefits expense 12 1,251,601 404784
Fuel, oil and lubricants 1,199,365 1,012,128
Repairs and maintenance 1,101,800 896,831
Representafion 902,601 1,068,312
Provision fo provident fund ] 829,483 T93.717
Information technology 405,725 w747
Fees and commission expense 268,560 324 508
Banking and supervision fees 198 822 223733
Donations 185,668 115,868
Travel and transportation 180,108 102 465
Memibership fees and dues 60,080 40,162
Fines, penalties and other charges ERLE 27 440
Miscellaneous 720,803 701.150

723314353 £7.587.623

Security services amount to P1.915,847 for security, messengerial, and janitorial expenses. The agency
fee amounted to PE92,210 which was the only amount subjected o expanded withholding tax.

Note 20
Details of Insurance Expense

This account consists of the following:

YYaars Ended Dacembar 31 2024 202_3
Philippine Deposits Insurance Corporation 1,637,597 1,625,952
Others 708,941 880,322

2,346,518 2,006,274

Others pertain fo insurance paid on fidelity bonds, car, and moforcycle, and building and fumiture and

fixtures.




Note 21
Income Tax

Under current tax regulations, the applicable income tax rate is twenty percent (25%). Interest allowed
as a deductible expense is reduced by an amount equivalent to twenty percent (20%) of interest income
subjected to final tax. Also, entertainment, amusement and recreation (EAR) expense is limited fo one
percent (1%) of net revenues, as defined, for sellers of services beginning September 1, 2002.

The details of the account were derived by the following computations:

Years Ended December 31 2024 2023
Normal income tax 5,781,701 479676

Deferred tax expense (income) refating fo
origination and reversal of temporary differences (399.734) 5539137
6,181,435 10.335,813

The current tax expense was derived from the following computations:

Yaars Ended Dacember 31 Notes _2024 2023
Profit before income tax 8,780,142 41424339
Non-taxable income:

Interest income already subjected fo final tax 16 (761,924) (146.044)

Reversal of provision for impairment losses 18 - (27,794,326)
Non-deductible expense:

Interest expense 190,481 36,511

Fines and penalties 19 3 27440
Temporary differences:

Provision for impairment losses 9 (2,982,394) 4874515

Retirement benefits expense 12 1,251,600 404784

Benefits paid 12 (566,142) -

Finance lease Bability 13 181,294 358.482
Taxable income 6,096,174 19,185,701
Tax rate 25% 26%
Normal Income Tax 1,524,044 4796425
Minimum CMte Income Tax (MCIT) 8_00.535 1,220,014
Normal income tax or MCIT whichever is higher 1,524,044 4796425
Prior year's excess credit (559,127) -
Tax payments from prior quarters (5,295,899) (4,594 992)
Creditable withholding tax (298.127) (760.560)
Income tax payabie (Prepaid tax) (4.629.109) (559.127)

The current regulations also provide for MCIT of 2% on modified gross income and allow a three-year
NOLCO. Any excess of the MCIT over the regular income tax is deferred and can be used as a tax
credit against future income tax liability whie NOLCO can be applied against taxable income, both in
the next three years from the year of occurrence.
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The computaBion of MCIT follows:
Years Ended Dacember 31 Notes 2024 2023
Gross receits 16 T24363068 71542752
Less: Aliowable deductions
Salanes and wages 19 33423001 29,397 979
Interest expense 7 21,530,589 23 268,093
Insurance on PDIC 2 1,637,397 1,625,952
Confributions fo Retirement/Provident Fund 10 620,483 733,717
Provision for Pensions and Other Post Refirement 1,251,601 404, TB4
Supenvision fee 198.822 223,739
Total 58,871,092 50,674,264
Gross Income 13,563,213 15,868 488
Add Ofher Income 18 27,223 484 65,611,818
Less Interest Income Subjected Final Tax 16 (T61,924) (146.044)
Total Gross Income 40,026,773 61,334,262
Tax rafe Fa 1.5%
Minimum Corporate Income Tax E00.535 1.220.014

Deferred income fax is pravided, using the balance sheet Rabiity method. on all temporary differences
at the consolidated balance sheet date between fhe tax bases of assets and liabilities and their camying
amuounts for financial reporting purposes. The defermed tax expense relating to origination and reversal
of temporary differences is computed as follows:

Dscember 31 Motss 2024 2023

Reversal of impairment loss g . 6,948 582
ABowance for impainment loss g (T43,599) {1,218,629)
Retirement benefits obligafion 12 312,900 (104,196)
Finance lease liability 13 43,324 (B9 620)
Deferred tax (benefit) expense [387.375) 5.539.137
Note 22

Earnings per Share

Basic eamings per share is calculated by dividing net profit by the weighted average number of
commen shares during the year computed as follows:

iaars Ended December 31 Note 2024 2023
Profit fior the year 6,686,723 31088777
Profit aftributable fo preferred shares . -
et profit attibutable to common shares 6,686,723 31088777
Weighted average number of outstanding

commen shares Fii) 643,250 639.250
Basic Eamings per Share 10.10 46 28

As of December 31, 2024, the Bank has no outstanding potentially dilutive securiies, hence, basic
eamings per share is equal to diluted eamings per share.




Note 23

Related Party Transactions

Other transactions with related parties

The key 0 P ion and employees’ benefits is as follows:

JYears Endsd December 31 2024 2023

Salaries and wages 5,717,204 5,129,793

Benefits and allowances 2.392.664 2.319.365
8,109,868 7.449.158

Key 0 p D ions are p d as part of compensation and employees’

benefits under other operating exp in the st of profit or loss (See Note 19). There are no

outstanding Babiities related to key management compensation in 2024 and 2023.

There were transactions entered by the Bank involving businesses owned by its stockholders. These
businesses and the amount of payment are as folows: (a) Lease Contract with Jerry B. Coloma Jr., and
Mercedes S. Coloma. The Bank has paid its rent amounting to P2,107 480 and P1,851,015 for December
31, 2024 and 2023, respectively (b) Legal Consultancy with Atty. Jerry S. Coloma Il one of the partner of
MOSVELDTT (Molo, Sia, Dy, Tuazon, Ty, Coloma Law Offices). The Bank has paid the total retainers fee
for its legal services amounting to P40,000 for both December 31, 2024 and 2023. All these dealings are
within the so-called arm's length transactions without any special arrangements or accommodations.

Note 24
Risk Management Obiectives and Policies

The Bank is exposed to a vanety of financial nisks in performing its activiies. The main types of risks to
which the Bank is exposed to include market risk, credit risk, liquidity risk, operations risk, and legai and
reguiatory risk.

The Bank's risk g s d in close coop with the BOD and focuses on actively
secuning the Bank’s short to medium-ierm cash flows by minimizing the exposure to financial markets.
The Bank does not actively engage in trading of financial assets for specutative purposes, nor does it
write opions. The most significant financial nisks to which the Bank is exposed to are described below
and in the succeeding pages.

The BOD is primarily responsible for approving the credit policies and the overall risk capacity of the
Bank_Board Committees have been established by the BOD to oversee the increasingly varied risk
management activities of the Bank with the active participation of senior management.

The Audit Committee is an advisory committee whose main function is to assist and act on behalf of the
BOD and provides oversight of the Bank’s financial reporting. It serves as principal agent of the BOD in
ensuring independence of the Bank's external auditors and the internal audit function, the integrity of

management, and the adequacy of and reporting to sic

The Corp G Committee is responsible for ing the BOD's effect and due
observance of corporate governance principles and guideli It the periodic perf
evaluation of the BOD and its cc and i 0

In compliance with BSP Circular 747, the Bank has revised its manual to incorp: the

revised compliance framework for banks. The manual is designed to guide the identification of business
risks to miigate factors that might be defrimental to the Bank's business model and its ability to
retuns from operati

.37-
Market Risk

The Bank is exposed fo market risk throwgh its use of financial instruments and specifically to foreign
currency risk and interest rate nsk which result from its operating, invesfing, and financing activiies.

(a) Foreign Cumency Risk
Most of the Bank's transactions are carried out in Philippine pesos, its funclional currency. The
Bank's exposures fo currency exchange rates may arise from deposits with other banks
denominated in cumencies other than the Philippine peso. As of December 31, 2024, and
2023, the Bank has no significant foreign currency risk exposure as it has no significant foreign
cumency denominated deposits with other banks.

) Interest Rate Risk
The Bank's policy is fo minimize interest rate cash flow risk exposures on long-term financing.
Long-term borrowings are therefore usually made at fixed rates. As of December 31, 2024, and
2023, the Bank has no significant exposure to interest rate risk as most of its financial
instruments have fived rates.

Liquidity Risk

Liguidity risk is the risk that there could be insufficient funds available fo adequately mest the credit
demands of the Bank's customers and repay deposits on maturity. The Bank manages liquidity risk by
hoiding sufficient liquid assets of appropriate quality fo ensure short-term funding requirements are met
by maintaining a balanced loan porifolio. In addition, fhe Bank seeks fo maintain sufficient liquidity o
take advantage of interest rate opportunities when they anse.

The analysis of matunty groupings of financial resources, financial liabilities as of December 31, 2024,
are presented below:

Nots _ Ore vear and below Over ong jear Tatal
Cash and cash equivalents 4 369,028 539 - 369,028,559
Loans receivable 5 25469.160  532.520.741 957,989,501
394497719 532.520.741 927,018,460
Deposit Babiities 10 634 T7.968 117.265.335 B02,053,303
Minirruem Liguidity Ratio (MLR)

To promate shori-term resilience to lquidity shocks, banks shall mainkain a stock of liquid assets
proportionate o their on- and off-batance sheet liabilifies. MLR is computed as follows:

December 31, 2024

Stock of Bguid assets (a) 369,028 959
Qualifying liahilities (b 787.272.603
Minimum quidity ratio {a/b) 46.87%

The: Bank honors all cash requirements on an ongoing basis. To address the negative gap, the
management avoids raising funds above market rates through the forced sale of assefs.



Credit Risk

The Bank takes on exposure to credit risk, which is the risk that the counterparty will cause a financial
loss fo the Bank by defaulting on an obligation. Signi ges in the y. of in the prospects
of a parti industry seg! that may rep a ion in the Bank's portfolio, could resuit

in losses that are different from those provided for at the reporting date.

The Bank has significant concentration on credit risk. There are no risks involved on cash, due from
BSP and due from other Banks since the counterparties are reputable Banks.

The Bank mitigates its credit risk by requiring secusity, parficulariy for loans. The Bank implements
guidelines on the acceptability of specific classes of collateral for credit risk mitigation. The principal
collateral types for loans are mortgages over real estate properties. To minimize credit loss, the Bank
seeks additional collateral from the counterparty when impairment indicators are observed for the
refevant individual loans.

The Bank's maximum exposure fo credit risk before collateral held or other credit enhancement is
shown below:

Neither Past Due PastDueBut  Past Due non- Total

Decamber 31. 2024 Note Nor Not Impaired
Due from other banks and BSP 4 352,755,961 - - 352,755,961
Loans receivable - net 5 480,526,100 7146675 70317126 557,989,901
833.282.061 7146675 70.317.126 910,745.862
91.49% 0.78% 7.72% 100%

High grade cash and cash equivalents are short-term placements and working cash fund; and special
Bank deposit which are placed, i , or dep d in local Banks belonging 1o the top ten (10)
Banks in the Philippines in terms of resources and profitability. The counterparties have a very remote
likelihood of default and have consistently exhibited good paying habits. Standard grade accounts are
active accounts with propensity of deteriorating to mid-range age brackets.

These accounts are typically not impaired as the counterparties generally respond to credit actions and
update their payments accordingly.

As part of Bank's policy, deposits with other Banks are only maintained with reputable financial
institutions.

In respect for loans and receivables, the Bank is not exposed to any significant credit risk exposure to
any single counterparty or any group of ies having similar ch istics. Based on
historical information about borrower default rates, management considers the credit quality of loans
and receivables that are not past due or impaired to be good.

Exposure fo credit risk is managed through regutar analysis of the ability of borrowers and potential
borrowers fo meet interest and capital repayment obligations and by changing these lending limits
when appropriate. Exposure to credit risk is also ged in part by obtaining and p
guarantees.

The Bank’s loans are actively monitored to avoid significant concentrations of credit risk in accordance
with the BSP’s prohibitions on maintaining a financial exposure fo any single person or group of
persons exceeding 25% of its net worth.

Loans receivable of Gateway Rural Bank Incorporated is summarized as follows:

WAgra Loan Small and Medium Other Purpose Loan
Entities

Security of Real Estate Morigage |  |Real Estate Morigage / Real Esiate Morigage /
Loans Unsecured Unsecured Unsecured
Term of Loans |20 days fo 15 years 90 days o 10 years 1 month to 15 years
Interest Rate  |B% to 18% per annum  |B% o 22% per annum 8% to 25% per annum
Purpose Farm Production/ Land  [Additional Working Capital | Additional funds to sustain

Improvement/ necessities and other

Purchase of farming EXPENSES.

Equipment/ Warking

Capital for Livesiock

Production

Risk concenfrations of the maximum expasure to credif risk

‘Concentrafions arise when several counterparties are engaged in simitar business activities or activilies
in fhe same geographic region or have similar economic features that would cause their ability to mest
confraciual obligations to be similarly affected by changes in economic, poliical, or ciher conditions.
Concentrafions indicate the relafive sensitivity of the Bank's performance o developments affecting a
iparticutar industry or geographical location. Such credit risk concenirations, if not properly managed,
may cause significant losses that could threaten the Bank's financial strength and underming pubiic
confidence.

Given the Bank's diverse base of counterparfies, mosfy various individual buyers of real estates, it is
not exposed to large concentration of credit risks.

Operafions Risk

Operations risks are nsks arising from the polential inadequate informafion systems, operations or
transacional problems (relaing to service or product delivery), breaches in infemal controls and fraud
or unfioreseen catasirophes that may result in unexpected loss. Operations risks inchede the risk of loss
arising from various types of human or technical emor, setlement or payment failures, business
interrupBion, administrative and legal risks, and the risk arising from systems not performing adequately.

The Bank has established measures to mitigake the effects of risks related to operations through its
senior management. Af year-end, the Bank also ensures that disclosures are made in the financial
statements for any significant accounts, if any, which may have been affected by such risks.

Legal Risk

Leggal risk pertains fo the Bank's exposure fo losses arising from cases decided not in favor of the Bank
where significant legal costs have already been incumed, or in some instances, where the Bank might
b2 required to pay damages. The Bank is ofien involved in liigation in enforcing s collection rights
under loan agreements in case of borrower default. The Bank may incur significant begal expenses as a
result of fhese events, but the Bank may siill end up with non-collection or non-enforcement of claims.
The Bank has established measures to avoid or mifigate the effects of these adverse decisions and
engages several qualified advisors, who were endorsed to and carefully approved by senior
management. At year-end, the Bank also ensures that material adjusiments or disclosures are made in
the financial statements for any significant commitments or contingencies which may have risen from
legal proceedings involving the Bank.



. 40-

Regularifies risk refers o the potential risk for fhe Bank fo suffer financial loss due to changes inthe
laws or monetary, tax or other governmental reguiations of the couniry. The monitoring of the Bank's
compliance with fhese regulations, as well as the study of fhe potential impact of new laws and
regulations, ks the primary responsibility of the Bank's Compliance Officer. The Compliance Office is
responsible fior communicating and disseminating new rules and regulafions to all units, analyzing and
addressing compliance issues, performing penodic compliance testing on branches and head office
units, and reporting compliance findings to the Audit Committee and the BOD.

i Objectives. Polices and Procedures

The Bank manages its capital to ensure that it has the ability o confinue as a going concem while
maximizing fhe return to shareholders. The Bank's Board of Directors reviews regularly its capital
sinucture based on the carying amount of equity, less cash, as presented on the face of the statement
of financial condition. As a part of this review, the Board of Directors considers the cost of capital and
the risks associated with each class of capital.

The Bank balances its overall capital structure principally through the payment of interest on capital
stock (fhe Bank may adjust the amounts fo be paid as interest on capital siock or increase fhe amounts
allocated fior statutory reserves, as needed), campaign for additional deposits and intensify its capital
[build-up programs.

The Bank's overall strategy has remained unchanged for several year. Its reported capital as of
December 31, 2024 and 2023, is summanzed as follows:

December 31 Nals 2024 2023
Total sharehokders’ equity 191,212.629 189,553 B60
Less cash on hand and other cash items. 4 16,272.538 14,870 566
Capital 207 485,227 174724 043
Total sharehokders’ equity 191,212,629 189,553 BE0
Bomowings (total Rabilities) 907,243,004 933,705,963
‘Overall financing 1.098,455,630  1.123.250,573
Capital-to-Overall Financing Rate 18.89% 15.656%
ii.  Reguiatory Capital

The lead regulator of the Bank, the BSP, sets and monitors capital requirements for the Bank. In
implementing current capital requirements, the BSP requires the Bank to maintain a prescribed ratio of
qualifying capital to risk-weighled assets.

Under current Banking regulations, the combined capital accounts of each Bank should not be less than
an amount equal fo ten percent of its risk assets.

The qualifying capital of the Bank for purposes of determining fhe capital-to-risk assets ratio is fotal
equity excluding:

a) Un-booked waluation reserves and other capital adjustments as may be required by the BSP,;

b} Total outstanding unsecured credit accommodations to directors, officers, stockholders, and
related interests (DOSRI);

¢} Defesred tax asset or liability;
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d) Goodwill;
€) Sinking fund for iption of red ble p shares; and
f) Other reguiatory deductions.

Risk assets consist of total assets after exclusion of cash on hand, due from BSP, loans covered by
hoid-out on or assignment of depasits, loans or acceptances under lefters of credit to the extent covered
by margin deposits, and other non-risk items as defermined by the MB of the BSP.

The regulatory capital is analyzed into two tiers, which are Tier 1 Capital plus Tier 2 Capital less
deductons from the total of Tier 1 and Tier 2 capital for the following:

a) Investments in equity of unconsofidated subsidiary Banks and other financial alied
undertakings, but excluding insurance companies;

b) Investments in debt capital instruments of unconsolidated subsidiary Banks;

c) Investments in equity of subsidiary insurance companies and non-financial allied undertakings;

d) Reciprocal invesiments in equity of other Banks/enterprises; and

e) Reciprocal investments in unsecured {erm debt i of other
Banks/quasi-Banks qualifying as Hybrid Tier 1, Upper Tier 2 and Lower Tier 2, in excess of the
lower of: (i) an aggregate celing of 5% of total Tier 1 capital of the Bank excluding Hybrid Tier
1; or () 10% of the total ding unsecured inated term debt issuance of the other

Bank/quasi-Banks.

Provided that any asset deducted from the qualifying capital in computing the numerator of the risk-
based capital raio shall not be inciuded in the risk-weighted assets in computing the denominator of the
ratio. At the end of each reporting period, the Bank has complied with the prescribed raio of qualifying
capital to risk-weighted assets.

The Bank's regulatory capital position as of December 31, 2024 and 2023, is as follows:

December 31 2024 2023
Tier 1 capital:

CET1 capital 189,794798 186,303,860

Less required deductions 15,430,388 14.019.725
Net Tier 1 Capital 174,364,410 172,284,135
Net Tier 2 Capital 7,445,260 7.887.720
Total Qualifying Capi!al 181,809.670 180.171.855
Credit Risk-Weighted Assets 995,389,525  1,012,045954
Operational Risk-Weighted Assets 113.458.173 107,844 657
Total Risk-Weighted Assets 1,108,847,698  1.119.890611
Risk-Based Capital Adequacy Ratio 16.40: 16.09:1
CET 1 Raio 15.26: 15.38:1
Tier 1 Ratio 15.26: 15.38:1

The above CAR differs from the CAR per FRP of the Bank due to the adjustments in deferred tax
assefs, leases, and liabilities which resulted in an increase in total qualifying capital and a decrease in
risk-weighted assets.

Per BSP Circular No. 1151 dated August 24, 2022, the monetary board approved the amendments o
the redevant provisions of the Manual of Regulations for Banks (MORB) aimed at increasing the
minimum capital requirements for rural banks. Rural Banks with 6 to 10 branches are required o comply
with the minimum capital of P120 million. RB's availing of the capital build-up track shad submit to the
Bangko Sentral an acceptable capital build-up program within six (6) months from the date of effectivity
of the Circuiar. The Bank is compliant with the minimum capital as of December 31, 2024.



Mote 26
Supplementary Information Reguired by the Bangho Sentral ng Pili

as (BSP

Presented below are the supplementary information required by fhe BSP under Section 174 (Appendix
35) of the BSP Manual of Regulations for Banks (MORB) to be disciosed as part of the notes o financial
statements based on BSP Circular 1074, Amendments to RegulaBons on Financial Audit of Banks.

(a.) Selected Financial Performance indicators

The financial ratios of the Bank for the years 2024 and 2023 have been computed as follows:

December 31 _2024 2023
Retum on average equity {Nef profit/ Average fofal capital accounts) 10.16% 45.26%
Retumn on average assefs (Met profit / Average folal assets) 0.62% 270%
Net inberest margin (Net inferest income./ Avarage intarest saming assefs) 9.15% 11.66%
Debt to equity ratio (Total Fabdites Total equiy) 4.74:1 4831
Capital-to-risk as5e1s (Shamsholders' equity / Risk assafs) 9.32% B46%

{b.) Description of capital instruments issued.

The details of the preferred and commaon shares are as fiollow:

Shares Amount
2024 2023 2024 2023
Common Shares - B100 par value
Autharized 500,000 500,000 80,000,000 60.000.000
Issued and outstanding
Balance at beginning of year 639,250 639,250 63,925,000 63,925,000
Issued during the year 800 - 800.000 -
Balance at end of year 647,250 630250 64725000 63925000
Preferred Shares - B100 par value
Preferred Stock (Private)
Autharized 120,000 120,000 12,000,000 12,000,000
Issued and outstanding 32,500 32,500 3,250,000 3,250,000
Preferred Stock (Public)
Autharized 130,000 130,000 13,000,000 13,000,000
679,750 671,750 67,975,000 67,175,000
Private Preferred Shares

1. Except when otherwise provided by law and shall be issued only against fhe equity
invesiment of qualified private persons, natural or juridical, Private Prefemed Shares shall be
nen-wolting, on-parficipating, cumulafive and redeemable at fhe option of the Bank.

2. It shall have preference over Common Shares in fhe assels of the corporation in the even to
liquidation to the extent io their par vakee fogether with accrued interest and unpaid
dividends, if any.

3. it shall likewise have preference over Common Shares in fhe distribution of dividends which
shall be cumulative and shall be fixed at Eight Percent (8% per annum and shall be paid to
holders of Private Prefemred Shares before any cash andior Shares dividend is declared and
paid to holders of Common Shares.
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4. It shall be non-voting, non-parficipating, cumulafive and redeemable at the option of the
Bank.

B. Public Preferred Shares

1. Public Preferred Shares which shall be issued against equity invesiment by Land Bank of the:
Philippines, Development Bank of the Philippines, or any other government-owned or control
bank or financial institution pursuant to Section 8 of Republic Act no.7833 (Rural Bank Act of
1992).

2. Public Preferred Shares shall be non-woting. They are preferred only as io asset upon
liquidation and entitled fo dividends without preference from fhe date of issuance at the rate
provided under the Section & of R.A No. 7333,

The rate is as follows:

First and second year 4%
Third and fourth year 6%
Fifth and six years B%
Seventh and esghth year 10%
Ninth to fifieenth year 12%

3. Public: Preferred Shares held by fhe Land Bank of the: Philippines, or any government-owned
or controlled bank or financial instituBion may be retired in the manner provided for in Secton
8 of RLAND.7353.

4. When all the Public: Prefemred Shares of fhe Bank has been sold to private sharehalders, the
Articles of Incorporation of the Bank shall be amended to reflect the conversion of the Public
Prefemed Shares into Commaon Shares.

5. No retirement or purchase by the Bank of its shares subscribed by private sharcholders shall
be made unless an equal amount to Public Prefemed Shares is refired or purchased so long
as the government holds Public Preferred Shares in the Bank.



(c.) Significant Credit Exposures for Loans

The breakdown of this account classified as to concentration of credit is as follows:

December 31 2024 % 2023 i)
Real estate, renfing and business

activities 244,648,765 4384 215268812 35.59
Wholesale and retail trade 64,899,708 1163 79571964 13.16
Agricultural, forestry and fishing 78,363,093 1404 79984110 1322
Construction 86,052,702 1542 114090505 18.86
Transpartation and storage 28,831,833 34T 45031367 743
Manufacturing 17,183,895 308 2145314 355
Electricity, gas, steam and air-

conditioning supply T.443 206 133 B 486,640 140
Accommodation and food service

activities 13,876,360 285 15926170 263
Education 1,964,378 0.33 2422704 0.40
Human heatth and social work

activities 4,748,106 043 5443230 0.30
Water supply, sewerage, waske

management and remediation

activities 1.268 316 0.23 1,393,184 023
Ofher senice activiies &.708,537 120 15738102 260
Tofal 557,989,901 10000  G04.810.339 100

The B3P considers that concentrafion of credit exists when total loan exposure to a particular
indusfry or economic sector exceeds 30% of total koan portiolio.

(d.) Credit Siafus of Loans

The breakdown of total loans as to status:

Decembar 31 2024 % 2023 %
Cument 479,219,168 8588 538,257,801 £69.00
Past Due Performing Loans 7,146 673 128 23,562,0M 390
Past Due Mon-Performing Loans 70,317,126 1260 35,536,835 587
Iterns in litigation 1,306,932 0.23 7,453,552 123
Total 557,989.901 100.00 604,810,339 100.00
Past Due
Performing ~ Pasf Due Non-

Dacembar 31, 2024 Cumant Loans Perorming Loans Liigation Total
Agrarian Reform Loans 14,680 540 300.000 211138 1162677 16,334,735
Ofher Agri. Credit 52,045,006 20,859 BT17.740 124346 61,808,341
Microenterprise loan 95,435 43482 25914 19,709 184,520
Small Enterprise 150,337 282 4247463 25183830 - 179,773,593
Medium Enterprise 140,566,638 16,917 649 - 157,084,287
Ofher g 120,393,777 2534701 19,655,835 - 142 584,403
TOTAL 479,219,168 7146675 70317126 1,306,932 557 989,801

85.88% 1.28% 12.60% 0.23% 100%:

.45.

(e.) Analysis of Loan Porffolio as fo Type of Securty

()

Portion of the past due accounts and accounts under ligation are covered by real estate
morigages, which could be foreclosed io reduce possible losses from non-collection.

The breakdown of this account dassified as io security is as follows:

Decembar 31 2024 % 2023 i
Secured:

Real estate and chattel

mortgage 550,549,519 98.67 54,175,626 B.9%

Deposit Hold-out 80,456 0.01 51,097 0.01

Others 461.416 0.08  50.139.381 13.25
Total 351,013 9B.76 134566114 222
Unsecured 6,894,510 1.24 470444225 71.78
Total 357.989.001 100.00  G04.610.339 100
Information on Retated Pary Loans
In the ordinary course of business, the Bank has loans, deposits and ofher iransactions with its
redated parties and with certain DOSRI.

i Loans fo related parfies
The Bank's related parties include its Directors, Officers, Stockholders and Related Interests
{DOSRI) and key management as describe below. None of the transactions incorporates special
terms and condiions and gives or receives no guarantee. Oufstanding balances are generally
seftled in cash. Under Bank's policy, these boans and ofher fransactions are made substantially on
the same terms and conditions as with ofher individuals and businesses of comparable risks.
The General Banking Act and BSP regulations lmit the amouwnt of the boans granted by a bank to a
single bomower to 25% of equity. The amount of individual loans fo DOSRI, of which 70% must be
secured, should not exceed the amount of the deposit and book valuee of their investment in the
Bank. In fhe aggregate, loans to DOSRI generally shouwkd not exceed the tolal equity or 15% of the
total loan portiolio of the Bank, whichever is lower.
The following are information related to DOSRIrelated party koans:
December 31 2024 2023
Total Qutstanding DOSRlrelated party boans to tofal loan portfolio - -
Percent of DOSRIrelated parfy loans to toal loans 0% 0%
Percent of unsecured DOSRIrelated party loans fo total
DOSRUrelated party loans 0% 0%
Percent of past-due DOSRUirelated party loans fo fotal DOSRI loans 0% 0%
Percent of non-performing DOSRLredated party loans fo
iotal DOSRirelated party loans 0% 0%

The Bank has complied with the requirements set by BSP with regards to the limits on DOSRI
loans. Total interest income on DOSRY loans is presented as part of interest income on boans in the
statemnent of profit or loss. The outstanding balance of fhese boans is presented as part of others
under loans and receivables in the statement of finandial position (See Note 5).
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{g.) Secured Liabilifies and Assets Pledged as Securify

The Bank has secured liabilities consisting of bils payable amounted to P37,610.417 and

1P63,216 467 for years ended December 31, 2024, and 2023, respectively. The fofal loan receivables
were pledge for this rediscounting agreement amounting fo P558,036,772 and PE04 888 370 for
December 31, 2024, and 2023, respecively.

(h.) Contingencies and Commitmenis Ansing from Off-balance Sheef ltems

The Bank is a lessee under non-cancetable leases coverning offices and certain branches. The
leases have ferms ranging from fen fo twenty-five year for fhe year ended December 31, 2024, with
renewal options and include fixed rates and escalation rates ranging from 5% to 10% per annum.
There are contingent liabilities such as litigations and claims fhat anise in fhe normal course of the
Bank's operafions which are not reflected in the financial stalements. The Bank's management is of
the opinion that losses. if any, as of Decemnber 31, 2024, from these claims will not have any
material effect on the Bank's financial statements.

Note 27
RBeclassification

Certain amounts and figures as of December 31, 2023, financial statements had been reclassified fo
confiorm to the presentation of the Bank's financial statements for the period ended December 31, 2024.

Revenue Regulations (RR) Mo. 13-2010

On Movember 23, 2010, the BIR issued RR Mo. 15-2010 fo amend certain provisions of RR No. 21-
2002. The regulations provide that starfing 2010, fhe notes to financial statemenis shall inchede
information on taxes, duies and license fees paid or accrued during the taxable year,

The: following is the additional information reguired by RR No. 15-2010. This information is presenied for
purpeses of fling with the Bureau of Intemal Revenue (BIR) and is not a required part of the basic
financial statements.

a. Gross receipt tax

In Beu of fhe value-added tax. the Bank is subject to the gross receipts tax (GRT) imposed on
all banks and non-bank financial intermediaries pursuant to Section 121.2 of the Phillippine Tax
Code. For the year ended December 31, 2024, and 2023, the Bank paid GRT amounting fo
P5,030,818 and P5,119.460. For 2023, there are GRT shoukdered by the bomowers.

b. Taxes on importafion

The Bank does not have any landed cost, customs dufies and tariff fees in 2024 and 2023
since it does nof have any importation during the year.

¢. Enxcisefax

The Bank did not have transactions in 2024 and 2023 which are subject to excise tax.
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d. Documentary stamp tax
The Bank remitted documentary stamp as follows:

ear Ended Decamber 31, 2024

DST paid on cestificate fime deposits 1,678,861
DST paid on loans 1,340,520
DST paid on annotation of loans 559,500

3778881

Only the DST paid on fhe cerlificaie of ime deposits were claimed as expense since the rest of
the documentary stamp tax were shoubdered by fhe bomowers.

€. Taxes and licenses

The details of taxes and licenses for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023, s as

follows:
Years Ended December 31 2024 2023
Gross receipt tax 5,758 414 5.119,450
Business pemit 596,134 573,365
LTO registration 92317 65,307
BIR annual registration fee 6,500 5,500
6,453,365 5.763.632
f. Withholding faxes
‘Withholding taxes paid and accrued andior withheld for the year ended December 31, 2024,
consist of:
ear Ended Decamber 31, 2024 Tax base Amount paid
Salanes and wages 16,907 424 M1
Rental 4,919,621 245,981
Directors 1,920,000 96,000
Goods 944,242 9,442
Professional fees 20,000 3,000
Security services 692,210 13,844
Management and technical consultants 1,715,443 85,772

25,118,940 997,163

g. Deficiency tax assessments and fax cases
As of December 31, 2024, the Bank does not have any final deficiency tax assessments from
the BIR. nor does it have tax cases outstanding or pending in courts or bodies outside of the
BIR.
Revenue Regulations (RR) Mo. 34-2020

The Bank is not covered by the requirements and procedures for related party transactions under
Section 2 of RR No. 34-2020.
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RECONCILIATION OF RETAINED EARNINGS AVAILABLE FOR DIVIDEND DECLARATION

As of December 31, 2024
Amounts in Phiippine Peso

GATEWAY RURAL BANK INCORPORATED

Gatebank Bidg.. Borol 1* Mac Arthur Highway,

Balagtas, Buacan, Philippines

Unappropriated Retained Earnings, beginning of reporting

period

Add:

Unapp

_Category A: Items that are directly credited to
Unappropriated
Retained Eamnings
Reversal of Retained Eamings Appropriation/s
Effect of restatements or prior-period adjustments
Others (describe nature)

Category B: tems that are directly debited to
Unappropriated

Retained Earnings

Dividend declaration during the reporting peniod
Retained Eamings appropriated during the reporti

period
Effect of restatements or prior-period adjustments

Others (describe nature) - (6,009.954)

d Eamnings, as adj

Add/Less: Net Income (loss) for the current year

Less:

; Unrealized income recognized in the
profit or loss during the reporting period (net of tax)

Equity in net income of associate/joint venture, net of
dividends declared

Unrealized foreign exchange gain, except those
attributable 1o cash and cash equivalents

Unrealized fair value adjustment (mark-to-market gains) o
financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss
(FVTPL)

Unrealized fair value gain of investment Property

Other unrealized gains or adjustments to the retained
eamings as a result of certain fransactions accounted for
under the PFRS (describe nature)

Sub-total

Category C.2: Unrealized income recognized in the
profit or loss in prior reporting periods but realized
in the current reporting period (net of tax)

Realized foreign exchange gain, except those
aftributable to cash and cash equivalents

Realized fair value adjustment (mark-to-market gains)
of financial instruments at fair value through profit or
loss (FVTPL)

116,904,780

6,868,723

.49.

Realized fair value gain of Investment Property
Other realized gains or adjustments fo the retained
eamings as a result of certain transactions accounted
for under fhe PFRS (describe nature)

Sub-fotal

Category C.3: Unrealized income recognized in the
profit or loss in prior periods but reversed in the
current reporting period (net of tax)

Reversal of previously recorded foreign exchange
gains, except those atfributable to cash and cash
equivalent

Reversal of previously recorded fair value adjustment
{mark-to-market gains) of financial instruments at fair
wvalue thraugh profit or loss (FVTPL)

Reversal of previously recorded fair value gain of
Investment Property

Reversal of other realized gains or adjustments 1o the
retained eamings as a result of cerfain transactions
accounted for under the PFRS, previously (descibe
nature)

Sub-total
Adjusted Net Income /Loss

Category D: Non-actual losses recognized in profit
of loss during the reporting period (net of tax)

Depreciation on revaksation increment (net of tax)
Sub-total

Category E: Adjustments related to relief granted by
the SEC and BSP

Amortizafion of fhe effect of reporting relief

Total amount of reporting refief granted during the year
Others (describe nature)

Sub-total

Category F: Other ltems that should be excluded
from the determination of the amount of available
for dividends distribution

Wet movement of treasury share (except for
reacquisition of redeemable shares)

Net movement of deferred fax asset not considered in
the reconcling items under the previous categories

Net movement in the deferred tax asset and deferred
tax liabilities refated to same transactions, e.g., setup
of night of use of asset and lease liability, set up of assst
and assef refirement obligafion, and set up of service
concession asset and concession payable

Adjustment due to deviation from PFRSIGAAP -
gain{loss)
Sub-total

Total Retained Eamings, end of the reporiing period available for dividend

117,763,349
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